. A T

2017

ANNUAL
REPORT

w OE G R A E

Softpower International L|m|ted

(RBAEFETMKIZZBRRAF)
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)
f&{A45% - 00380 Stock code: 00380



Corporate Information

RAEF

Chairman’s Statement
FEWRE

Mission and Strategy

{8 am Ko SRS

Management Discussion and Analysis

BB WM

Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EENERERABZRERE

Corporate Governance Report
CEEARE

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE g kERWmE

Report of the Directors

EEEWmE

Independent Auditor’s Report
B AZB AR E

Consolidated Income Statement

/\/\I:l J‘I&

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

frAEmERER

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

AR

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

frAEmEER

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
/u\ ﬁi/miﬁ

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

Five-Year Financial Summary

hEPBHRE

Contents

H %

Pages
EPN

12
19
37
60
79
88
89
90
92
94
95

176

—Z—+FFH Annual Report 2017

1



Corporate Information

LFIEH

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. Lai Guanglin (Chairman)

(Resigned on 30 March 2018)
Mr. Lai Fulin (Appointed as Chairman on 30 March 2018)
Mr. Yu Ben Ansheng (Chief Executive Officer)

Non-executive Director
Mr. U Kean Seng (Resigned on 30 March 2018)
Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Wong Yee Shuen, Wilson
Mr. Chen Wei Wen
Mr. Guan Zhigiang

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Wong Yee Shuen, Wilson (Chairman)

Mr. Chen Wei Wen

Mr. U Kean Seng (Resigned on 30 March 2018)
Mr. Guan Zhigiang (Appointed on 30 March 2018)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Guan Zhigiang (Chairman)

Mr. Lai Guanglin (Resigned on 30 March 2018)
Mr. Chen Wei Wen

Mr. Lai Fulin (Appointed on 30 March 2018)

NOMINATION CMMITTEE

Mr. Lai Guanglin (Chairman)
(Resigned on 30 March 2018)
Mr. Lai Fulin (Chairman) (Appointed on 30 March 2018)
Mr. Chen Wei Wen
Mr. Guan Zhigiang

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Cheng Siu Kwan

Softpower International Limited &EHEIBEEAERAF

4
BITES

Lai Guanglin Jc £ (£ &)

(R=ZF—NF=H=1+HFHT)
BEBTER=_F-—NFZH=1HEZFREE)
NEEEE(EFRITE)

FEHITES

REKEE R -_F—NF=ZHA=+HEFT)

BYFHITES

=LA

BR{Z ST

BEERiE

ERZEES

HMEHE(ERE)

PR{Z ST

REKREE R -_F—NF=A=+HEFT)

EERAEE (R —F— N F=A=+HEZT)

FMZEES

EEREE(ERE)

Lai Guanglin o £ (R =F— /\F = H =1 HFHF)

PRIE

BEBTER-_F-—NF=ZH=F+HEZT)

REZEE

Lai Guanglin 7oA (£ E)
(R=F—/\E=H=-1HEHF)

BEBEE(XE)(R-F—/NF=A=1+HEZF)

PRIE

B oA

NEWE

BORRE



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers
22/F, Prince’s Building
Central, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Estera Management (Bermuda) Limited
Canon’s Court

22 Victoria Street

Hamilton HM 12

Bermuda

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716

17th Floor, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited
Shanghai Commercial Bank Limited

DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
Bank SinoPac, Hong Kong Branch

East West Bank, Hong Kong Branch

China Citic Bank International Limited

The Bank of East Asia, Limited

Dah Sing Bank, Limited

Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

Chong Hing Bank Limited

Chiyu Banking Corporation Limited

REGISTERED OFFICE

Canon’s Court
22 Victoria Street
Hamilton HM 12
Bermuda

Corporate Information

LFEH

By HAE

E UK BEERTEN ST
EBPIR
AKFRE-_+1&

TEROBFETE

Estera Management (Bermuda) Limited
Canon’s Court

22 Victoria Street

Hamilton HM 12

Bermuda

BREROBFETIE

BEETPREBEFERLERAT]

BEET
EEANBFR1835

BMA 178
1712-17165%48

FTERERRIT

RERTT(FR)BERAA

B TR ER1T(GEM) BR DA
FEBERRITERLA]
ERR1T(FB)BRAF]
HELBESQRITERATR
KEBERITEMBERRR(FEDT)
EXRT(BEDTT)
RERITERAR QA

R RITERAA
KITRITER AR
BITRIT(EB)BRAT
BIERIRTTAR A
SERRITERRA]

AfREE

Canon’s Court

22 Victoria Street
Hamilton HM 12
Bermuda

—Z—+FFH Annual Report 2017



Corporate Information
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Dear Shareholders,

| am pleased to present to our shareholders the
annual report of Softpower International Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”)
for the year ended 31 December 2017.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The revenue of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2017 slightly increased by 5.0% to HK$650.5
million (2016: HK$619.2 million). The gross profit
margin was approximately 32.2% for the year ended 31
December 2017 (2016: 29.8%). The profit attributable
to equity shareholders was HK$74.9 million for the year
under review (2016: HK$50.6 million), representing an
increase of approximately 48.0% over last year. Basic
earnings per share was HK 5.62 cents (2016: HK3.79
cents).

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board of Directors of the Company does not
recommend a final dividend for the year ended 31
December 2017 (2016: Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

This was another year of strong performance with
outstanding bottom line results. Our hard work last year
laid a strong foundation for our strong results in 2017.

For the year under review, the demand for the
construction materials in the Hong Kong construction
industry remained strong. The Group recorded a revenue
of approximately HK$650.5 million (2016: HK$619.2
million), representing an increase of approximately
5.0% as compared to that of 2016. The increase was
attributable to the increase in construction works in
Hong Kong but partly offset by the decrease in Macau
projects. 2017 saw the Group maintained a stable growth
in revenue and performed well in profit. With a solid
foundation in Hong Kong and Macau, the Group further
strengthened its market position in 2017. Riding on our
experiences and market-leading position in pipes and
fittings business, we continued to achieve commendable
growth in the year under review.
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Chairman’s Statement

EFRHE

The Group benefited from the sizeable infrastructure
projects in Hong Kong in recent years. During the
year, the Group completed the delivery of 23-metre
long stainless steel structural pipes for the project of
Passenger Clearance Building of the Hong Kong-Zhuhai-
Macao Bridge Hong Kong Boundary Crossing Facilities.
The Group also completed the delivery of pipes and
fittings to several prestigious projects such as Hong Kong
Airport Midfield Apron Development Works and Lisboa
Palace in Macau.

The growing public awareness of health issues has raised
demand for a stricter statutory standard for plumbing
products since 2015. The Water Supplies Department
implemented a General Acceptance system in place
to pre-approve plumbing products used in plumbing
projects. We strived with our suppliers to obtain the
international quality mark such as BSI Kitemark or Water
Regulations Advisory Scheme (WRAS). The Group’s key
products have fulfilled this standard. This will further
reinforce our market position as one of the leading
players in the market.

FUTURE PROSPECTS

Rising overhead costs, increasing material costs and
maintaining high-quality products will be the challenges
to the Group in the coming year. We will remain vigilant
and monitor closely in response to market volatility and
to grasp the right business opportunities.

Looking forward to 2018, the Group has a strong market
position with a clear strategy and a highly capable and
committed management team. As always, the Group
will continue to deepen and strengthen its market
position in supplying of pipes and fittings. The Hong
Kong Government will continue to increase the land
supply for private and public housings. This will underpin
the growth of construction industry in Hong Kong.
The Group is confident about the construction market
outlook and the prospects of pipes and fittings. By taking
full advantages of sound financial position and our
experience, we will explore any investment and business
opportunities.
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APPRECIATION

| would like to take this opportunity to express my
sincere appreciation to our shareholders, customers,
suppliers, banks and other stakeholders for their
continuous support. | would also like to thank our
Directors, management team and employees for their
commendable efforts and valuable contribution to the
Group over the years. Your dedicated support is the
driving force behind our achievements.

Lai Guanglin
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 March 2018
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Mission and Strategy

{E on B¢ 5% B

The business of the Group was commenced in 1949 as a
pipe’s retail shop. Since then the Group has developed
into a sizeable company and become a listed company
in the main board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited on 21 December 2000. We root in Hong Kong
over 69 years and are the mainstay of the industry.

The principal business of the Group is the importing
and selling of a comprehensive range of pipes, fittings
and other related accessories of different materials,
applications and brandnames in Hong Kong by Bun Kee
(International) Limited (“Bun Kee”). Sales of the Group’s
products are conducted either by wholesale or retail
sale. We offer quality goods storage and logistic services
for local main contractors and landlords. Throughout the
years, the Group has supplied quality piping materials
to many landmark projects in Hong Kong, Macau and
Mainland China.

The mission of the Group is to provide high quality
products to the customers and serve with value-added
and excellent customer services.

In attaining the above, we provide “one-stop-
shop”platform that provides high quality and a variety of
pipes and fittings that readily available to our customers
in ways that meet their needs and exceed their
expectations.

Whenever you think pipes and fittings, think Bun Kee.

Softpower International Limited &EHEIBEEAERAF
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS OVERVIEW AND FINANCIAL
PERFORMANCE

The Group is a leading provider to the construction
sector offering a wide range of pipe (including copper
tube, stainless steel and steel pipes, etc), related
products, fittings, comprehensive services and
solutions to the contractors, designers, consultants and
government agencies in Hong Kong and Macau.

The Group’s core business mainly operated through our
flagship subsidiary, Bun Kee (International) Limited, a
well-established company with a long history. Starting
from a small retail shop, we grew up to a company listed
in Hong Kong. We have become one-stop supplier of a
comprehensive range of pipes and fittings. The Group
has built a good reputation for the pipes and fittings
business in Hong Kong and Macau. We have established
a stable major customer base and suppliers over the
years.

The Group posted solid results for the year ended
31 December 2017. In 2017, the Group recorded an
increase in both revenue and profit as compared to
the same period of last year. The Group’s revenue
amounted to HK$650.5 million (2016: HK$S619.2 million),
representing an increase of 5.0%. The profit attributable
to equity shareholders was HK$S74.9 million for the
year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: HKS50.6 million),
representing an increase of 48.0%. The increase in
revenue and profit was primarily driven by the demand
of numerous infrastructure projects and public and
private construction works in Hong Kong.

Sales in Macau were slow in 2017 as expected. However,
the construction market in Hong Kong continued to
maintain strong which drove demand for pipes and
fittings. In order to cater for customers’ needs and
different market segments including public and private
housings, commercial buildings and civil works, we
provided a comprehensive range of pipes and fittings for
different usage.

The Group’s selling and distribution costs amounted to
approximately HK$23.5 million in 2017 (2016: HKS$20.8
million), an increase of about 13.0% year-on-year. The
increase was mainly attributable to the increase in
logistic and warehouse staff costs, sales commission
and promotion, overseas travelling and transportation
costs. The Group’s general and administrative expenses
amounted to approximately HK$112.2 million in 2017
(2016: HK$105.2 million), representing an increase of
about 6.7% year-on-year. Such increase was primarily
attributable to the general increase in staff costs, rental,
depreciation and professional fees.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

CE - Lok

In 2017, other net gains were about HKS$2.6 million (2016:
losses of HKS4.1 million). It was mainly attributable to
the increase of exchange gains during the year. Finance
income increased significantly due to the interest
income from a loan to a related party. Finance costs also
increased mainly attributed to the increase in effective
interest rate per annum. However, as finance income
outpaced costs, we recorded net finance income of
HKS$8.1 million (2016: HKS3.4 million).

OUTLOOK

While the Group achieved strong results in 2017, there
is still room for us to build a better business. It is not an
easy job. With our experienced staff, the foundation built
and the numerous opportunities ahead of us, we are
well prepared to strive for a stable growth. We continue
to hold a positive outlook for the business of the Group
in 2019 and beyond.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES ANALYSIS

As at 31 December 2017, the cash and bank balances of
the Group were approximately HK$183.6 million (2016:
HK$186.4 million) including pledged bank deposits
of HK$37.0 million (2016: HK$37.0 million). Basically
the Group’s working capital requirement has been
financed by its internal resources. The funds generated
from operations and the available banking facilities will
enable the Group to meet its future working capital
requirements.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had aggregate
banking facilities for trade finance of approximately
HK$289.2 million (2016: HK$S254.2 million),
approximately HK$88.3 million (2016: HK$88.9 million)
was utilised. The Group’s total borrowings stood at
approximately HK$70.5 million (2016: HK$74.0 million),
the entire amount of borrowings for both years end will
mature within one year.

The entire amount of borrowings outstanding as at 31
December 2017 was approximately HK$70.5 million
(2016: HKS74.0 million). 26% (2016: 33%) and 74%
(2016: 67%) of borrowings were subject to floating and
fixed rates respectively.

The gearing ratio as measured by total bank borrowings
to total equity was approximately 13.8% as at 31
December 2017 (2016: 17.0%).

As at 31 December 2016 and 2017, the entire amount of
the Group’s borrowings was denominated in Hong Kong
dollars.

Softpower International Limited &EHEIBEEAERAF
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Group conducts its business transactions mainly in
Hong Kong dollar, Macau Pataca, Renminbi and United
States dollar. In order to manage foreign exchange
risk, the Group has been closely monitoring its foreign
currency exposure and will arrange for any hedging
facilities if necessary.

CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2017, certain bank deposits and
certificate of deposit held by subsidiaries of the Group
with aggregate carrying amounts of approximately
HKS$37.0 million (2016: HKS37.0 million) and HK$10.0
million (2016: HKS10.0 million) respectively were
pledged to banks for banking facilities.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group did not have any significant contingent
liabilities as at 31 December 2016 and 2017.

COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had outstanding
commitments in respect of future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable lease of approximately
HKS$213.1 million (2016: HK$199.3 million).

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had outstanding
commitments in respect of acquisition of motor vehicles
of approximately HK$1.2 million (2016: HK$1.3 million).

STAFF AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2017, the Group employed a total
of 177 employees (2016: 173). Total employee benefit
expenses for the year ended 31 December 2017 was
approximately HKS80.2 million (2016: HKS74.3 million).

Remuneration policy is reviewed annually and certain
staff members are entitled to sales commission. In
addition to the basic salaries and contributions to
the mandatory provident fund, the Group also pays
discretionary bonus and provides staff with other
benefits including medical scheme to the employees
in Hong Kong. The Group contributes to an employee
pension scheme established by the PRC Government
which undertakes to assume the retirement benefit
obligations of all existing and future retired employees
of the Group in Mainland China. The Group adopted
a share option scheme for the purpose of providing
incentives and rewards to motivate the eligible directors
and employees of the Group in recognition of their
contributions to the Group.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EFREREEARZCEE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lai Guanglin, aged 54, was appointed as a director
and the Chairman of the board of the directors of the
Company in February 2009. He is also the Chairman
of the Nomination Committee and a member of
the Remuneration Committee of the Company. The
Company is a leading provider to the construction sector
offering a wide range of pipe related products, fittings,
comprehensive services and solutions to the contractors,
designers, consultants and government agencies in Hong
Kong and Macau. Mr. Lai’s wholly owned investment
vehicle, Singapore Zhongxin Investment Company
Limited, is the controlling shareholder of the Company.

Mr. Lai is the founder and the Chairman of the board of
directors of Agria Corporation which is primarily engaged
in research and development, production and sale of
crop seeds to the agricultural sector in Australia, New
Zealand, China and South America and the provision of
rural services to the farmers in New Zealand and South
America. Agria Corporation operates the Southern
Hemisphere’s largest forage seed business in New
Zealand. The activities in forage seeds and rural services
are carried out by PGG Wrightson Limited (“PGW”) which
is a subsidiary of Agria Corporation. PGW is a company
listed on the New Zealand Stock Exchange. Mr. Lai was
appointed as a director of PGW in December 2009 and
as the Chairman of the Board of the Directors of PGW
in October 2013. Mr. Lai’s wholly owned investment
vehicle, Brothers Capital Limited, is Agria Corporation’s
largest shareholder.

Mr. Lai has extensive experience in investments,
acquisitions and operation management. Mr. Lai has
established many other enterprises in China, Hong Kong
and internationally, in particular, animation, logistics and
transportation, pharmaceutical sectors, etc. He takes a
leading role in respect of strategic planning and business
development in his investment portfolio.

Mr. Lai is the Vice Chairman of Shenzhen General
Chamber of Commerce in China and the Vice Chairman
of Chinese Chamber of Commerce in New Zealand.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Lai holds Bachelor’s degree in accounting from
Monash University, Melbourne, Australia and a Master
of business administration in finance from The Chinese
University of Hong Kong. He is a fellow certified public
accountant in Australia. Mr. Lai is a Fellow of Monash
University and also the member of Global Advisory
Council of Faculty of Business and Economics, Monash
University.

Mr. Lai is the elder brother of Mr. Lai Fulin, an Executive
Director of the Company. Mr. Lai is the sole director of
Singapore Zhongxin Investment Company Limited, a
substantial shareholder of the Company which has an
interest in the shares of the Company that is required to
be disclosed under Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance.

Note: Mr. Lai Guanglin has resigned as an Executive Director and
the Chairman of the Board with effect from 30 March 2018.

Mr. Yu Ben Ansheng, aged 53 was appointed as Executive
Director and Chief Executive Officer of the Company in
May 2009. Mr. Yu is responsible for managing overall
daily operations of the Group and the implementation of
the Group’s development strategies.

Mr. Yu has over 20 years of experience in investment
management, investment banking and general
management of listed companies. Mr. Yu began his
career at Mackenzie Financial Corporation in Toronto,
Canada as an investment analyst in 1989 and since
then, he has served several major financial corporations
including J.P. Morgan, Deutsche Bank and CITIC
Capital. In addition to his vast investment banking and
management experience, Mr. Yu has also managed listed
companies such as New World Cyberbase Limited and
Asia Logistics Holdings Limited in Hong Kong. During
his past career, Mr. Yu has focused on direct investment
and mergers and acquisitions activities in sectors
including construction materials, infrastructure, energy,
technologies, media and financial services.

Mr. Yu holds a Bachelor of Arts degree in English
Literature from the Beijing Foreign Studies University, a
Master of arts degree in Education from the University of
Toronto and a master’s degree in business administration
from the University of Western Ontario, Canada.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EFREREEARZCEE

Mr. Yu is a director of King Jade Holdings Limited, a
substantial shareholder of the Company which has an
interest in the shares of the Company that is required to
be disclosed under Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance.

Mr. Lai Fulin, aged 52, acted as an Executive Director
of the Company from October 2009 to May 2017 and
continued to sit on the senior management team of the
Group thereafter. Mr. Lai has rejoined the Board as an
Executive Director of the Company with effect from 27
November 2017. Mr. Lai is also the Head of Production
& Purchasing of the Group and holds directorships in
certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Lai has over 20
years of experience in the banking sector, investment
management and general management of companies in
China. Mr. Lai worked in the Bank of China in Shenzhen
from 1986 to 2001. From 1995 to 2001, he was the
deputy general manager of a subsidiary of Bank of
China dealing with businesses in the securities industry.
During the period from 2002 to 2008, Mr. Lai was the
general manager of RYIMERTHEREFEER
72 A)] (Shenzhen Huaao Guanli Technologies Company
Limited*). Mr. Lai holds a certificate of graduation
in Chinese Language from =JI|Z8 & £t (Shenzhen
Institute of Education*).

Mr. Lai is the younger brother of Mr. Lai Guanglin, the
controlling shareholder, the Chairman of the Board and
Executive Director of the Company.

*  For identification purpose only

Note: Mr. Lai Fulin has been appointed as the Chairman of the
Board, the Chairman of the Nomination Committee and a
member of the Remuneration Committee with effect from
30 March 2018.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. U Kean Seng, aged 51, was appointed as Non-
executive Director of the Company in February 2009.
He is also a member of the Audit Committee of the
Company. Mr. U has more than 20 years of experience in
legal practice. Mr. U specialises in the area of corporate
law and corporate finance. Mr. U was admitted to
the Supreme Court of Victoria, Australia in 1991, the
Singapore Bar in 1993 and the Roll of Solicitors for
England and Wales in 2009. Mr. U holds a bachelor’s
degree in economics and a bachelor’s degree in laws
(Honours) from Monash University, Australia. Mr. U
currently acts as the Head of Corporate and Legal Affairs
of Agria Corporation. Mr. U was appointed as a director
of PGG Wrightson Limited, a company listed on the New
Zealand Stock Exchange, on 4 December 2012.

Note: Mr. U Kean Seng has resigned as a non-executive Director
with effect from 30 March 2018.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wong Yee Shuen, Wilson, aged 50, was appointed
as Independent Non-executive Director of the Company
in February 2009. He is also the Chairman of the Audit
Committee of the Company. Mr. Wong is a fellow
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and member of Australia CPA and Australian
Institute of Banking and Finance. He holds a master of
commerce degree, specializing in banking and finance
from the University of New South Wales. With more
than 20 years of experience in PricewaterhouseCoopers
and Ernst and Young, Mr. Wong specializes in the area
of auditing banks and listed companies. Mr. Wong is
currently the chief financial officer of China Animation
Characters Company Limited (Stock code: 1566, a
company listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited “HKSE”). He served as independent non-
executive director of Ping An Securities Group (Holdings)
Limited (Stock code: 231, a company listed on HKSE)
from 17 November 2015 to 1 December 2017. Mr. Wong
has been appointed as an independent non-executive
director of PT International Development Corporation
Limited (Stock code: 372, a company listed on HKSE) on
6 November 2017.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EFREREEARZCEE

Mr. Chen Wei Wen, aged 49, was appointed as
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company in
April 2010. He is also a member of the Audit Committee,
Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee
of the Company. Mr. Chen holds a Bachelor of Business
(Accounting) from Monash University, Australia. Mr.
Chen worked as a general manager of Guangzhou Futian
Trading Company Ltd (EMNTEAE S BERAA]) from
1997 to 2005. Since November 2004, Mr. Chen was
appointed as chief operating officer of Guangzhou Kanxin
Polymer Technology Co., Ltd (BEM TR L&D TR
BPR /A7) which is an affiliated company of Guangzhou
Futian Trading Company Ltd (BEM T EAE S ER A
AJ). Mr. Chen was also appointed as director and general
manager of Fuda Enterprises Limited (& Mz AGR
/7 7)) since February 1998.

Mr. Guan Zhigiang, aged 55, was appointed as
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company
in September 2016. He is also the Chairman of
Remuneration Committee and a member of Nomination
Committee of the Company. Mr. Guan holds a bachelor
of Agronomy from Huazhong Agricultural University
and a master degree in business administration from
Southwestern University of Finance. During the period
from 1984 to 1996, Mr. Guan had successively worked
in the Ministry of Agriculture of the People’s Republic
of China and the State Planning Commission. He
subsequently joined the Agricultural Development Bank
of China and held various senior management positions
and was granted a qualification of senior economist
from the bank. From February 2002 to March 2003,
Mr. Guan served as the general manager in New China
Life Insurance Company Ltd, Jinan branch. From March
2003 to November 2005, he worked in Yeland Group
Co. Ltd. (now known as Hna Investment Group Co.,
Ltd), a company listed on Shenzhen Stock Exchange,
and was appointed as the chairman of its group’s real
estate company. Since 2005, Mr. Guan has established
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

an investment advisory firm and invested in a number
of enterprises which engaged in various fields including
mining, energy and biotechnology, etc., and acted as
a director in those enterprises. Mr. Guan is currently
the vice chairman of AT HEEMEEBER A A
(Zhejiang Ecopro Biotech Company, Ltd.*) and a director
of EMRITBREBRLEFEABR AR (Huoerguosi
Poly Entertainment Culture Industry Co., Ltd*). He
has extensive experience in finance, investment and
corporate management.

* For identification prupose only

Note: Mr. Guan Zhigiang has been appointed as a member of the
Audit Committee of the Company with effect from 30 March
2018.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chow Wai Koon, Timothy, aged 48, was appointed as
Chief Operating Officer of the Company in January 2015.
Mr. Chow is responsible for directing, administering and
co-ordinating the operational activities of the Group. He
is also responsible for recommending and developing
strategies, goals and policies of the Group.

Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Chow devoted almost
20 years to Hewlett-Packard group (“HP”), a leading
global IT provider of products, technologies, software,
solutions and services. While at HP, Mr. Chow held
several senior positions in sales, marketing, business
planning and finance in the Asia Pacific region including
China, Australia and Singapore.

Mr. Chow has extensive experience in sales and marketing
in the Asia Pacific region, particularly China, across
consumer, commercial and enterprise customers. In
addition, Mr. Chow has robust knowledge of end-to-end
systems from research and development, manufacturing
and distribution to channel, communication and
customer support.

Mr. Chow holds a Master’s Degree in Business
Administration from the Macquarie Graduate School
of Management, Australia, and a Bachelor’s Degree of
Accountancy from the Nanyang Technological University,
Singapore.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EFREREEARZCEE

Mr. Cheng Siu Kwan, aged 48, joined the Company as
the Financial Controller in December 2012 and has been
appointed as the Company Secretary of the Company
in February 2013. Mr. Cheng is a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Cheng
held various finance positions at a number of companies
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and
has over 23 years of experience in auditing, finance and
accounting.

Ms. Chan Yuk Fan, aged 54, joined the Group in 1982
and has held a number of leadership roles in the Group’s
retail, project sales and procurement division. Ms. Chan
currently is the Deputy Managing Director of Bun Kee
(International) Limited, the pipe trading subsidiary of
the Group and is mainly responsible for the leadership,
control and long-term business development of the
Company. She has extensive experience and knowledge
in managing a successful piping distribution operation.
She is a member of Lions Club.

Mr. Lai Kui Chung, aged 60, joined the Group in 1979 and
is the Warehouse Director of the pipe trading subsidiary,
Bun Kee (International) Limited. Mr. Lai is responsible
for the warehouse and transportation activities of the
Group. He has over 38 years of experience in supervising
warehouse and transportation operations. Mr. Lai holds a
Certificate in Store Supervision from a technical institute.

Mr. Ku Chun Ming, aged 52, joined the Group in 1993
and is the Sales Director of the pipe trading subsidiary,
Bun Kee (International) Limited. Mr. Ku is responsible for
the Group’s sales operations, new product development
and promotion activities including the exhibitions and
seminars. He has over 31 years of experience in sales
and marketing activities.
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Softpower International Limited (the “Company”) is
committed to maintain a high standard of corporate
governance. The board of directors of the Company
(the “Board”) and management maintain and enhance
the policies and practices of the Company on a timely,
transparent, effective and reasonable manner, so as
to maintain good, solid and reasonable corporate
governance. The Company believes that good corporate
governance is not only in the interest of shareholders and
investors but also in the interest of the Company. The
Company will continue to raise the standard to formalize
the best practice of corporate governance as far as we
could.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company has complied with the code provisions
set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”)
as stated in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”) throughout the year ended
31 December 2017.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers contained in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rule (the “Model Code”). Having
made specific enquiry with the directors of the Company
(“Directors”), all Directors confirmed that they have fully
complied with the required standard as set out in the
Model Code during the year ended 31 December 2017.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Composition

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises
seven Directors, including three executive Directors,
Mr. Lai Guanglin* (the Chairman of the Board), Mr. Yu
Ben Ansheng (the Chief Executive Officer) and Mr. Lai
Fulin; a non-executive Director, Mr. U Kean Seng**;
and three independent non-executive Directors, Mr.
Wong Yee Shuen, Wilson, Mr. Chen Wei Wen and
Mr. Guan Zhigiang, one of whom namely, Mr. Wong
Yee Shuen, Wilson has appropriate professional
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ERELRSE

accounting experience and expertise. Biographical
details of the Directors are set out in the section headed
“BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT” of this Annual Report.

* Mr. Lai Guanglin has resigned as an executive Director and
the Chairman of the Board with effect from 30 March 2018.

**  Mr. U Kean Seng has resigned as a non-executive Director
with effect from 30 March 2018.

Mr. Lai Fulin retired on 25 May 2017 and then rejoined the
Board on 27 November 2017. He has been appointed as the
Chairman of the Board with effect from 30 March 2018.

Throughout the year, the Board has at least one-third in
number of its members comprising independent non-
executive Directors under Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules.

Each of the non-executive Directors (including the
independent non-executive Directors) has entered into a
service contract with the Company and appointed for a
term of one year. All Directors are subject to retirement
by rotation and re-election at the annual general
meeting of the Company in accordance with the bye-
laws of the Company.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has
made an annual confirmation of independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company is of the
view that all the independent non-executive Directors
meet the independence guidelines set out in Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers that they are
independent.

Mr Wong Yee Shuen Wilson, an independent non-
executive Director, has served the Company in this
capacity for more than nine years. Notwithstanding
his long term service, given his extensive business
experience and not connected with any director or
substantial shareholder of the Company, the Board is of
the opinion that he continues to bring independent and
objective perspectives to the Company’s affairs.

To the best knowledge of the Company, except that Mr.
Lai Guanglin is the elder brother of Mr. Lai Fulin, there is
no relationship (including financial, business, family or
other material/relevant relationship) among members of
the Board.

Softpower International Limited &EHEIBEEAERAF

MEXEHERNEMNE - BUESNEABER
HERAFRZ[EENGREBABZBEIA -

& Lai Guanglin L EE BT HITEFMEF S F/EBRYT R
ZE-NF=H="FHEERK -

* REHALEHAIIPTEFRYE R_F—/\F=A

:7L/5'A’L&5’ft"x}?

g t¢+ H_+tHEmMA%$§°ﬁEE§
TAREFESERF N/ \EZA=+HB4EK -

BFEA RELMRAUBIAZRTEEFEKNER
=2 —HBIIFITERANX °

/\\
N
D

BRIFNTER (BB IFRTER)HEAR ﬂﬂ
VA FERNREBAER - IEESAREAR
ZRRAARER AR RBRBFAE LWER T{r&
BEEE -

FRBIIERNTESCRE LEMRAEIIMENRT
EEEBEBY ENFEBIER - NARREA
B IEMITE R BT EMRBISE3 KNS A B
Bl A AR RRBEERBL

B FFRITEFEAMERE D BB R AR RE
NE - BERRHETZEA BEERRAGREZE
BRENENNTESTHTIERRYERE EF]

RE - FUEER A AR EFEHEBEY MEEHNE
2o

LA A RIFTAN © B Lai Guanglin JcAE ThRBREE R A 2
BRI EEEXKERTEBR(BREYG - %

% KBS EMEE HERANEER) o



The Board has balance of skills, knowledge and
experience appropriate for the requirements of
the business and to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy. The Board membership is covered
by professionally qualified and widely experienced
personnel to bring in valuable contributions and
different professional advices and consultancy for
development of the Company. All Directors have
separate and independent access to the advice and
services of the senior management and the company
secretary with a view to ensuring the board procedures,
and all applicable rules and regulations are followed.
The principal functions of the Board are to supervise
the management of the business and affairs; to approve
the strategic plans, investment and funding decision; to
review the Group’s financial performance and operating
initiatives.

The Board, led by the Chairman, is responsible for
formulating overall strategy and polices, monitoring and
controlling the performance of the Group. In addition to
its overall supervisory role, the Board also retains specific
responsibilities such as approving financial accounts,
approving annual budget, recommending dividend
payments, approving policies relating to the Board’s
compliance, etc. whilst managing the Group’s day-to-
day operations is the responsibility of the management
of the Group (the “Management”) such as implementing
internal control, business strategies and plans set by the
Board, etc.. When the Board delegates certain aspects
of its management and administration functions to the
Management, it has given clear directions as to the
powers of the Management.

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Each newly appointed Director has received
comprehensive, formal and tailored induction on
appointment so as to ensure that he/she has appropriate
understanding of the business and operations of
the Group and that he/she is fully aware of his/her
responsibilities under the Listing Rules, legal and other
regulatory requirements.

The Directors are regularly briefed on the amendments
to or updates on the relevant laws, rules and regulations.
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In addition, all Directors are provided with monthly
updates on the Company’s performance, position and
prospects to enable the Board as a whole and each
Director to discharge their duties.

The Directors confirmed that they have complied with
the code provision A.6.5 of the Code on Directors’
training. During the Year, all Directors have participated
in continuous professional development by attending
seminars and/or reading materials on the following
topics to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills
and provided a record of training to the Company.

Name of Directors

EEHR

Mr. Lai Guanglin

Mr. Yu Ben Ansheng B AE
Mr. Lai Fulin b e
Mr. U Kean Seng REKSE
Mr. Wong Yee Shuen, Wilson \mLAMERE
Mr. Chen Wei Wen BRIZSC A
Mr. Guan Zhigiang EERELE

Note:

C: Corporate Governance

F: Finance and Accounting

L: Listing Rules Updates

R: Other Relevant Regulatory Updates

ROLES OF CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

The position of the Chairman of the Board and the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company are held by separate
individuals. The role of the Chairman is separated from
that of the Chief Executive Officer. Such division of
responsibilities helps to reinforce their independence
and accountability.

Mr. Lai Guanglin was appointed as the Chairman of the
Board on 23 February 2009 and up to the date of this
report. Mr. Lai Fulin has been appointed as the Chairman
of the Board with effect from 30 March 2018.
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The Chairman of the Board takes up the role of providing
leadership for the Board and ensures that the Board
works effectively and discharges its responsibility
properly. With the support of executive Directors and
the Company Secretary, the Chairman seeks to ensure
that all Directors are properly briefed on issues arising
at board meetings and receive adequate and reliable
information in a timely manner. The Chairman also
ensures that good corporate governance practice is in
force from time to time, and all key issues are discussed
by the Board in a timely manner.

The Chief Executive Officer of the Company, Mr. Yu
Ben Ansheng, is responsible for managing overall
daily operations of the Group, the implementation of
the Group’s development strategies and plans and to
perform other responsibilities as assigned by the Board.

BOARD MEETING

The Board meets regularly, and at least four times a
year, additional meetings are convened when deemed
necessary by the Board. Board members are provided
with complete, adequate and timely information to allow
the Directors to fulfill their duties properly. In addition,
Directors have full access to information on the Group
and independent professional advice whenever deemed
necessary by the Directors. In addition, the Chairman
and non-executive Directors (including the independent
nonexecutive Directors) meet at least once every year
without the presence of executive Directors.

During the year, the Board met regularly and held seven
meetings. Notices and board papers were given to all
Directors prior to the board meetings in accordance with
the Code. The Chairman and non-executive Directors
(including the independent non- executive Directors)
met once without the presence of executive Directors.
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Meetings held in 2017

Details of the Directors’ attendance at Board meetings,
Board committee meetings and general meetings
(including the annual general meeting) respectively held
in 2017 are set out as below:

R-B—LF2THNER
ENESERN_ZT—LEDHINEFTEEH  EFEH

TREEERMIRAE (RREKRBERE)NLE
OB T

Attended/Eligible to attend

HERY REREERE
Audit Nomination Remuneration
Board Committee Committee Committee General
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
EX® BNRZEE RAZEY FMzZE"
el g3 =t oE BRAE
Number of Meetings Held BEBTRY 7 3 2 2 1
Executive Directors HiTES
Mr. Lai Guanglin Lai Guanglin &4 77 - 2/2 2/2 1/1
Mr. Yu Ben Ansheng mRELE 7/7 - _ _ 11
Mr. Lai Fulin (ot B ) 3/3 - - - -
Non-executive Director FHTES
Mr. U Kean Seng REMEE 7/7 3/3 - = 1/1
Independent Non-executive BYHHTES
Directors
Mr. Wong Yee Shuen, Wilson BUELE 7/7 3/3 - = 1/1
Mr. Chen Wei Wen FRiES R AE 7/7 3/3 2/2 2/2 11
Mr. Guan Zhigiang LA 717 - 2/2 22 1/1
Note: Kt -

Mr. Lai Fulin retired on 25 May 2017 and then rejoined the Board
on 27 November 2017.

BOARD COMMITTEES

A number of Board committee, including audit
committee, remuneration committee and nomination
committee, have been established by the Board to
strengthen its functions and to enhance its expertise.
All committees have been formed with specific written
terms of reference which deals clearly with the
respective committees’ authorities and duties.
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Remuneration Committee

As at the date of this report, the Remuneration
Committee comprises three members including one
executive Director, namely Mr. Lai Guanglin and two
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chen
Wei Wen and Mr. Guan Zhigiang. It is chaired by Mr.
Guan Zhigiang.

The major roles and functions of the Remuneration
Committee are as follows:

(a) To make recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s policy and structure for all directors
and senior management remuneration and on
the establishment of a formal and transparent
procedure for developing remuneration policy;

(b) To review and approve the management’s
remuneration proposals with reference to the
Board’s corporate goals and objectives;

(c) To make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages of individual executive
directors and senior management, including
benefits in kind, pension rights and compensation
payments (including any compensation payable for
loss or termination of their office or appointment);
and

(d) To make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration of non-executive directors.

The remuneration package of executive Directors
is determined by reference to their duties and
responsibilities, experience and the prevailing market
conditions. The remuneration package of individual
executive Directors includes salary, discretionary bonus
and share based payment. Details of the Directors’ fee
and other emoluments of the Directors of the Company
are set out in Note 30 to the financial statements.
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The Remuneration Committee has adopted the
model that it will review the proposals made by the
management on the remuneration of executive Directors
and senior management, and make recommendations to
the Board. The Board will have final authority to approve
the recommendations made by the Remuneration
Committee.

The Remuneration Committee held two meetings during
2017, the following major matters were reviewed and
discussed in the meetings and recommended to the
Board for approval:

. To review the remuneration policy and
remuneration packages of Directors and senior
management of the Company;

o To consider the bonus arrangement of the Directors
and senior management of the Company;

o To review the remuneration package of a newly
appointed Director; and

° To review the new service contracts entered
into between the Company and non-executive
Directors.

Pursuant to the code provision B.1.5 of the Code, the
details remuneration of the senior management of the
Company by band for the year ended 31 December
2017 was set out in Note 8 to the consolidated financial
statements of this Annual Report.

Nomination Committee

As at the date of this report, the Nomination Committee
comprises three members including one executive
Director, namely Mr. Lai Guanglin and two independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chen Wei Wen and
Mr. Guan Zhigiang. It is chaired by Mr. Lai Guanglin, the
Chairman of the Board.
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In August 2013, the Company adopted the Board
Diversity Policy in accordance with the requirement set
out in the code provision A.5.6 of the Code. Such policy
sets out the approach to achieve diversity on Board.
With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced
development, the Company sees increasing diversity at
the Board level as an essential element in supporting the
attainment of its strategic objectives and its sustainable
development. Selection of candidates will be based on a
range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length
of service. The ultimate decision will be based on merit
and contribution that the selected candidates will bring
to the Board. All Board appointments will be based on
meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against
objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of
diversity on the Board.

The major roles and functions of the Nomination
Committee are as follows:

(a) To review the structure, size and composition
(board diversity has been considered from a
number of aspects, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and
length of service) of the Board at least annually and
make recommendations on any proposed changes
to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy;

(b) To identify individuals suitably qualified to
become Board members and select or make
recommendations to the Board on the selection of,
individuals nominated for directorships. All Board
appointments will be based on meritocracy, and
candidates will be considered against objective
criteria, having due regard for the benefits of
diversity on the Board;

(c) To review the Board Diversity Policy, as appropriate,
and disclose the Board Diversity Policy or its
summary in the corporate governance report of
the Company including the measurable objectives
set for implementing the Board Diversity Policy
and progress made towards achieving these
measurable objectives;
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(d) To assess the independence of independent non-
executive directors; and

(e) To make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of directors and
succession planning for directors in particular the
chairman and the chief executive.

The Nomination Committee held two meetings during
2017, the following major issues were reviewed and
discussed in the meeting:

° To review the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge and experience) of
the Board;

o To review the Board Diversity Policy;

o To make recommendation to the Board for the
appointment a Director of the Company; and

o To evaluate and make recommendation as to the
qualification and experience of the directors who
were subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at the 2017 annual general meeting.

Audit Committee

As at the date of this report, Audit Committee consists
of two independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr.
Wong Yee Shuen, Wilson and Mr. Chen Wei Wen, and
a non-executive Director, namely Mr. U Kean Seng. It is
chaired by Mr. Wong Yee Shuen, Wilson who has the
appropriate professional qualifications, accounting and
financial management expertise.

The major roles and functions of the Audit Committee
are as follows:

(a) To make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment, reappointment and removal of the
external auditor, and to approve the remuneration
and terms of engagement of the external auditor,
and any questions of its resignation or dismissal;

(b) To monitor integrity of the Company’s financial
statements and to review significant financial
reporting judgements contained in them;
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(c) To review the Company’s financial controls, risk
management and internal control systems; and

(d) To discuss the risk management and internal
control systems with management to ensure that
management has performed its duty to have
effective systems.

The Audit Committee held three meetings during 2017
and the following major matters were reviewed and
discussed in the meetings:

o To review the annual results of 2016 and
the interim results of 2017 and making
recommendation to the Board for approval;

o To make recommendation on the reappointment of
the auditor;

. To review the adequacy of resources, qualifications
and experience of staff of the Group’s accounting
and financial reporting function and their training
programme and related budget;

o To review the risk management and internal control
systems;

o To approve the auditor’s fees for audit of 2017
financial statements; and

o To discuss the audit service plan of 2017.
Corporate Governance Functions

The Board has adopted the written terms of reference
on corporate governance functions in March 2012 so as
to assist the Board performing corporate governance
functions. The terms of reference of the Board in respect
of corporate governance functions are summarized as
follows:

(a) To develop and review the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance;

(b) To review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;
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(c) To review and monitor the Company’s policies
and practices to ensure compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements;

(d) To develop, review and monitor the code of
conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable
to employees and Directors; and

(e) To review the Company’s compliance with the code
provisions set out in the Corporate Governance
Code contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing
Rules and its disclosure requirements in Corporate
Governance Report.

During the year, the Board has reviewed the Company’s
corporate governance policies and practices, training
and continuing professional development of Directors
and senior management, the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements, the compliance of the Model Code, and
the Company’s compliance with the Code and disclosure
in the Corporate Governance Report.

This corporate governance report has been reviewed
by the Board in discharge of its corporate governance
functions.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The fees charged by the auditor generally depends on
the scope and volume of the auditor’s work. For the
year ended 31 December 2017, the remuneration to
the auditor of the Company in respect of audit services
was HKS1,250,000 and fees related to taxation services
and other non-audit services amount to HK$91,000 and
HKS100,000 respectively.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced,
clear and understandable assessment of annual and
interim reports, inside information announcements and
other disclosures required under the Listing Rules and
other regulatory requirements. The senior management
provides such explanation and information to the Board so
as to enable the Board to make an informed assessment
of the financial information and position of the Company.
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The Directors acknowledge the responsibilities
for preparing the accounts of the Company. The
responsibilities of the auditor of the Company with
respect to the financial statements of the Group is set
out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 79 to
87.

GOING CONCERN

The Directors, having made appropriate enquiries,
consider that the Company has adequate resources to
continue in operational existence for the foreseeable
future and that, for this reason, it is appropriate to
adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial
statements.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate
system of risk management and internal controls within
the Group and for reviewing their effectiveness. The
systems of risk management and internal control are
designed to facilitate effective and efficient operations,
to safeguard assets and to ensure the quality of internal
and external reporting and compliance control and risk
management functions. It is also designed to provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that material
misstatement or loss can be avoided, and to manage and
minimize risks of failure in operation systems.

The Group has set up a risk management system
to provide directions in identifying, evaluating and
managing significant risks and is reviewed at least
on an annual basis. The senior management of the
Group identifies risks that would adversely affect the
achievement of the Group’s objectives, and assesses
and prioritizes the identified risks according to a set of
standard criteria.

The Board has engaged an independent professional
advisor to perform ongoing monitoring of the risk
management and internal control review to assess
the effectiveness of the financial, operational and
compliance controls and risk management functions of
the Company and the Group’s major subsidiaries on a
rotation basis.
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Risk management report and internal control report are
submitted to the Audit Committee at least once a year.
The Board, through the Audit Committee, had performed
annual review on the effectiveness of the Group’s
risk management system and internal control system,
including the scope on risk management and internal
control systems, result of internal audit work and status
of compliance control.

At the meeting of the Audit Committee held on 26 March
2018, the independent professional advisor reported
their review work for the year ended 31 December 2017
performed in accordance with the detailed risk-based
internal control review plan which was approved by the
Audit Committee and the risk management report was
also circulated to the Audit Committee for review. The
Board, through the Audit Committee, has conducted
a review of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management system and internal control system for the
year ended 31 December 2017. The Audit Committee
members, together with the senior management,
have also reviewed, considered and discussed the risk
management system, all findings relating to the internal
control system and recommendations for improvement.
The Board considers the risk management system and
internal control system of the Group were effective and
adequate during the year.

The Audit Committee also reviewed and was satisfied
with the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programmes and budget of the
Group’s accounting and financial reporting function.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary of the Company is Mr. Cheng
Siu Kwan, who is also the Financial Controller of
the Company. Mr. Cheng is a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He fulfills the requirement under Rules 3.28
and 3.29 of the Listing Rules.
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The Company Secretary is responsible for providing
secretarial services to the Board and ensuring the operation
of the Company is properly complied with Hong Kong listed
companies’ regulatory requirements as well as enhancing its
corporate governance standards. All Directors have access
to the advice and services of the Company Secretary with a
view to ensuring that board procedures and all applicable
rules and regulations are followed. Company Secretary is
also the secretary of each of Board committees. Minutes
of Board meetings and meetings of all Board committees
are kept by the Company Secretary and are available for
inspection by the Directors at all times.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS
Right to convene special general meeting

Pursuant to Section 74(1) of the Bermuda Companies
Act and the bye-law 62 of the Bye-Laws of the Company,
the shareholder(s) of the Company holding at the date of
the deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of
the paid-up capital of the Company as at the date of the
deposit carries the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company may request the Board to convene a
special general meeting. The requisition must state the
purposes of the meeting, and must be signed by the
requisitionists and deposited at the registered office
of the Company and its head office and principal place
of business in Hong Kong for the attention of Company
Secretary and may consist of several documents in
like form each signed by one or more requisitionists. If
the Directors do not within twenty-one days from the
date of the deposit of the requisition proceed duly to
convene a meeting, the requisitionists, or any of them
representing more than one half of the total voting
rights of all of them, may themselves convene a meeting,
but any meeting so convened shall not be held after the
expiration of three months from the said date.

Right to put enquiries to the Board

Shareholders should direct their enquiries about
their shareholdings to the Company’s share registrar.
Other shareholders’ enquiries can be directed to the
head office and principal place of business of the
Company in Hong Kong as set out in the “CORPORATE
INFORMATION” section of this Annual Report for the
attention of Company Secretary.
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Right to put forward proposals at general meetings

Pursuant to Sections 79(1) and 79(2) of the Bermuda
Companies Act, on the requisition in writing of either (i)
any number of members of the Company representing
not less than one-twentieth of the total voting rights of
all the members having at the date of the requisition
a right to vote at the meeting to which the requisition
relates; or (ii) not less than one hundred members, the
Company shall, at the expense of the requisitionists
unless the Company otherwise resolves:

(a) to give to members of the Company entitled to
receive notice of the next annual general meeting
notice of any resolution which may properly
be moved and is intended to be moved at that
meeting;

(b) to circulate to shareholders entitled to have notice
of any general meeting sent to them any statement
of not more than one thousand words with
respect to the matter referred to in any proposed
resolution or the business to be dealt with at that
meeting.

A copy or copies of requisition signed by all
requisitionists shall be deposited, with a sum reasonably
sufficient to meet the Company’s expenses in giving
notice of the proposed resolution or circulating any
necessary statement, at the registered office of the
Company and its head office and principal place of
business in Hong Kong in the case of:

(i)  a requisition requiring notice of a resolution, not
less than six weeks before the meeting; and

(ii) any other requisition, not less than one week
before the meeting.

The Company will verify the requisition and upon
confirming that the requisition is proper and in order,
the Board will proceed with the necessary procedures.
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COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board is obliged to provide regular, effective and
fair communication with the shareholders and the
investors of the Company. Latest information is conveyed
to the Shareholders and the investors of the Company
on a timely basis. A Shareholder Communication Policy
(the “Policy”) was adopted by the Company in March
2012. The Policy aims to set out the provisions with
the objective of ensuring that the latest information
of the Company is conveyed to the Shareholders and
investors on a timely basis. The Company uses a range
of communication tools to ensure the Shareholders and
the investors are kept well informed of key business
imperatives.

Disclosure of Information

Information shall be communicated to Shareholders
and the investors mainly through the Company’s
financial reports (interim report and annual report),
annual general meetings and other general meetings
that may be convened, as well as by making available
all the disclosures submitted to The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Hong Kong Stock Exchange”)
and its corporate communications and other corporate
publications on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s website
and the Company’s website.

General Meeting

Shareholders are encouraged to participate in general
meetings or to appoint proxies to attend and vote at
meetings for and on their behalf if they are unable to
attend the meetings. Shareholders’ views on matters
that affect the Company are welcome by the Board at
shareholders’ meetings. Shareholders of the Company
are notified of shareholders’ meetings through notices
and reports or circulars sent to them. Each item of special
business in the notice of the meeting is accompanied,
where appropriate, by an explanation for the proposed
resolution. A separate resolution is proposed by the
chairman of the meetings in respect of each separate
issue, including the re-election of Directors.
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The Chairman of the Board and Chairmen of the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee or failing him/her, his/her duly appointed
delegate, are available at the annual general meeting
to answer questions with regard to the work of these
committees.

Voting by Poll

Save as provided under the Listing Rules, resolutions put
to vote at the general meetings of the Company (other
than procedural matters) are taken by poll. Procedures
regarding the conduct of the poll are explained to the
shareholders at the commencement of each general
meeting, and questions from shareholders regarding
the voting procedures are answered. The poll results are
posted on the respective websites of the Company and
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange on the same day of the
poll.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company maintains a website (www.softpower.hk)
where information and updates on the list of directors
and their roles and functions, constitutional documents,
terms of reference of the Board committees, procedures
for shareholders to propose a person for election as
a director, announcements, circulars and reports, etc.
released to the HKExnews’ website (www.hkexnews.hk)
and other information are posted. Information on the
Company’s website will be updated from time to time. A
dedicated email address (ir@softpower.hk) for investor
enquiry is set out in the “Contact Us” section on the
Company’s website.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year, there was no significant change to the
Company’s constitutional documents.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

ABOUT US

The flagship subsidiary of Softpower International
Limited (“Softpower International” or the “Group”), Bun
Kee (International) Limited (“Bun Kee”), was established
in 1949 and has developed from a pipe’s retail shop
into an integrated enterprise. It is principally engaged
in trading of construction materials, mainly pipes and
fittings in Hong Kong and Macau. Widely known as
the leading pipe company in Hong Kong and Macau,
Softpower International was listed on the main board of
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange in 2000.

Owing to a high reputation in Hong Kong and Macau,
Softpower International mainly provides services for
local contractors, designers, consultants and government
agencies. As a leading enterprise in construction
materials, mainly pipes and fittings industry, the
Group provides a wide range of pipes, fittings and
comprehensive pipeline project solutions that cater to
different market segments covering civil engineering,
fire control, air conditioning, plumbing and maintenance
services. In addition, the Group also offers goods storage
and logistics services for local main contractors and
landlords.

ABOUT THIS REPORT

This report is the second Environmental, Social
and Governance Report published by Softpower
International. Through reporting the Group’s policy,
measure and performance in the environment, social
and governance aspects, its aims to let stakeholders
enhance understanding of the Group’s progress and
direction in sustainable development. This report has
been prepared in both Chinese and English, and it has
been uploaded on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“HKSE”) and our official website at www.
softpower.hk.

Scope of report

This report mainly focuses on principal places of business
of Softpower International in 2017 (the “year”). The
principal places of business include:

. Two offices, one warehouse and three retail shops
in Hong Kong;

o One retail shop in Macau; and

o One office in Shenzhen.

Compared with the report in 2016, this report extended
the scope to cover the office in Shenzhen.
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Reporting standard

This report has been prepared in accordance with the
“comply or explain” principle stipulated in Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide (the “Guideline”)
issued by HKSE. It is compiled according to four reporting
principles, namely materiality, quantification, balance
and consistency. In addition, this report based on
actual conditions and adopted certain key performance
indicators in “recommended disclosure” of the Guideline
to make it more complete. On this basis, the Group is
actively considering the future reference of national
and international reporting standards for sustainability
development.

To ensure accuracy of environmental key performance
indicators, the Group engaged Carbon Care Asia, a
professional consultancy, to conduct carbon evaluation
according to “Guidelines to Account for and Report on
Greenhouse Gas Emissions and Removals for Buildings
(Commercial, Residential or Institutional Purposes) in
Hong Kong” published by the Environmental Protection
Department and the Electrical and Mechanical Services
Department, “Accounting Methods and Reporting
Guidelines for Greenhouse Gas Emissions of Public
Building Operating Enterprises (Trial)” promulgated by
the National Development and Reform Commission, and
reference to the International Standard ISO 14064-1 and
the GHG Protocol.

Confirmation and approval

All the information cited in this report comes from
official documents and statistical data of Softpower
International, and the management and operation data
collected according to regulations of the Group. The
report has been approved by the board of directors of
the Company in March 2018.

Feedback

Softpower International attaches much importance
to stakeholders’ opinion. If you have any queries or
comment on the content or form of this report, please
contact the Group by email at ir@softpower.hk.
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MESSAGE FROM CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

“Deepen interaction with internal and external
stakeholders to timely address environmental and social
risks. Seize opportunities to make steady progress.”

Since it was founded in 1949, the Group has been
committed to becoming a comprehensive pipe solution
provider. As Hong Kong Government tightened test
requirements on pipe products because of the lead-in-
drinking-water incident several years ago, we are all the
more aware of the far-reaching impact of environmental
and social risk management on corporate sustainable
operation. As the market leader, we are determined
to include environmental and social consideration in
operation decision, and make business development
plan consistent with the sustainability goal.

Over the years, the Group attaches much importance
to product safety through investing resource in
product inspection and certification on one hand, and
establishing strict supplier management system on
the other hand. The lead-in-drinking-water incident
highlights the importance of risk management; it
is because of our insistence on quality that we can
seize new business opportunities from the crisis and
consolidate our leading status in the industry.

In the course of operations, the Group is also committed
to minimizing environmental pressure. Through yearly
capital investment, we gradually phase out outdated
diesel-powered trucks and forklifts and strive to build a
more environment-friendly transport fleet. To be more
resource-saving, we are exploring new directions with
high cost effectiveness and high resource utilization
efficiency.

Thanks to employees’ trust and support over the past
seven decades, the Group has scored remarkable
development, so it is the basic operation requirement
to safeguard the safety and health of employees.
In addition, we pay a close attention to high-risk
positions in warehouse operation, and strive to improve
occupational safety management, including research of
the possibility of mechanization.
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Looking ahead, the Group will continue to take the lead
and cooperate with real estate developers, engineering
consultants and other partners to constantly improve
quality of products and provide customers with more
suitable pipes for different construction works solutions.
Meanwhile, the Group will deepen communication with
other internal and external stakeholders through various
interaction methods, and timely identify and address
risks in environmental and social aspects. In this way, we
will seize opportunities and make steady progress.

Yu Ben Ansheng
Chief Executive Officer
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STAKEHOLDER COMMUNICATION FHERE
Communication with key stakeholders in the year EFEANETERFHEBRELR

RANES)
Corporate activity

BiE

Telephone

e HER
Board of Directors
o FIBfE

The Management \
REBFH D& * fTHRAE \
Internal EX&?IC:LIJtives
stakeholder c—RBT

Employees

ESHE

o
Internal o /B E IS Mo %
communication Government/Regulatory authorities eeting

o RITRIREE
Banks and investors

A o BIEREH
SMEBFF D E Potential investors
External EEBRES

stakeholder Contractors and customers

o RS
Suppliers

o PTE
Intermediaries

LIEES-

Industrial associations

I8

B
Site visits

Seminars

NSEER
Company
Website

Stakeholders’? participation is vital to the Group to ERNEBHERERY FHBHNREEHF—
review risks and business opportunities in the business ~ EEZ& 5 - HEIAREEEE BN R EEH o B
potential management. The communication with  FFRERR - BHBEREERABRBRMPNEEL - #
stakeholders helps Softpower International know better — REIEF RE AT TRFHE T ZMEIE -

about their opinions and enable the business operations

to cater for their needs and expectations.

1 “Stakeholders”, also called “interested parties” or 1 [FhE ] XBIFEBEA Ik EmAl BEHAEE

“beneficiaries”, refer to groups and individuals that may MEBEEATE  NEIXEBFENEENEAA - &
significantly affect, or be affected by the business of BEAPHES  EEBE - BT  IHEFE - £
the Group. Stakeholders of the Group not only include - REE  EERERSEUNOTEEES -

internal parties such as the directors, the management and
employees but also external parties such as customers,
business partners, investors, regulatory authorities and
various social communities.
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RBIE - MERESHE

Through various constant communication channels,
the Group can timely share information about its
development and operation strategy with internal and
external key stakeholders. In addition, the Group can listen
to their opinions to prioritize different issues and make
corresponding policies and management measures.

Major sustainability issues during the reporting period

Product liability

EmAE

Sustainability issues
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Use of resources

BIREA

Health and safety
Rz 5

As it did last year, Softpower International engaged
independent professional consultancy to communicate
with the Management to recognize vital environmental and
social issues for the Group and stakeholders, and discuss
long-term sustainability strategy and direction. Based on
interviews and the suggestions of consultants, the Group
selects four environmental and social areas from the
Guideline as the key issues discussed in this report.

To ensure effective communication with stakeholders,
the Group establishes transparent, honest and accurate
communication mechanism and provides timely reply.
In future, the Group will strengthen interactions with
stakeholders, diversify channels, increase communication
opportunities and create mutually beneficial and win-
win relations with them.
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

Softpower International has set up Environmental
Protection Policy, and it also establishes environmental
management principle, and takes specific measures
for managing emission, improving resource utilization,
and reducing influence of operation on environment
to ensure environmental management is included
in decision-making process of operation. The Group
conducted comprehensive assessment during the year
to understand the environmental protection measures
and performance of various business units; the
assessment also helped the Group quantify and report
the effectiveness of the measures in the future.

Emissions
1.  Greenhouse gas and air emissions

Softpower International engaged a professional
consultancy to conduct carbon assessment, and
measures greenhouse gas emissions (or “carbon
emissions”) to furhter examine effectiveness
of measures and make improvement plan. The
assessment result shows that over 65% of carbon
emissions are from burning of moving source fossil
fuel in Scope 1, 85% of which is from the diesel
consumed by trucks and forklifts in warehouse; the
second largest carbon emissions of the Group are
from the externally purchased electricity power
which is mainly used in air-conditioners and lighting
of all places of business.

Greenhouse gas emission

BERBHER

Scope 1: Direct greenhouse gas emission
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Scope 2: Energy indirect greenhouse gas emission
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Scope 3: Other indirect greenhouse gas emission
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Total greenhouse gas emission
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Plan of 2018

Review the effectiveness of the existing
measures to formulate and improve
more targeted measures
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In addition, the directly-emitted air pollutants are
mainly from air emissions caused by engines of
diesel-powered trucks for warehouse operation,
including sulfur oxide, nitric oxide and particulate
matter. To further reduce greenhouse gas and
air emissions, Softpower International has
implemented vehicle renewal plan, and prepared
to phase out outdated trucks and diesel-powered
forklifts with trucks and petroleum gas forklifts with
Euro V Standard. During the year, the Group has
replaced three trucks and two forklifts according
to the plan; as of now, 80% of trucks and 35% of
forklifts have been replaced respectively.

Air emissions

EESRBEIR

Sulphur oxides (SOx)
=Rl )]

Nitrogen oxides (NOx)
A8

Particulate matter (PM)

FaRLY)

Waste and sewage

The Group conducts comprehensive evaluation on
measures and performance of waste management
in all business departments. The waste of the
Group mainly includes harmless waste, such as
office paper, newspaper, magazines and other
household waste. In every office, the Group has
recycling bins, so waste paper can be regularly
collected and disposed by recyclers. As for the
few damaged electric lamp bulbs and light tube
produced in operation, the Group disposes them
according to laws and regulations. In future, the
Group will classify waste, place other types of
waste recycling bins, and provide employees
with clear sorting and recycling instructions, and
encourage employees to reduce waste at source.

Softpower International Limited &EHEIBEEAERAF
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Plan of 2018

Replace three trucks, and the greenhouse
gas and air emissions will be further
reduced.
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Total hazardous waste produced (light bulbs and light tube)
FESXREEEDHES (ERERKE)

B mHERELIHRS

Produced amount (tonnes)

ELEE ()

0.03

Intensity of hazardous waste produced (in tonnes/square meter area)

BEEEMEE (CATME/ F 7 KEETE)

Total non-hazardous waste produced (municipal solid waste)

ELBERRYEE (FTERREY)

0.000001

148

Intensity of non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes/square meter area)

EERERYEE (CATNE /¥ I KEE )

The sewage of Softpower International is mainly
produced from daily operational needs. The
sewage produced by all offices and shops has
been discharged through local pipe network and
disposed at Sewage Treatment Works.

Use of resources

As the Group focuses on trade business, our offices use
a lot of documents in office daily operations. Softpower
International is working hard to minimize the use of
paper through various methods. For instance, employees
are encouraged to adopt electronic filing instead of
paper filing. In respect of the operation in warehouses
and retail shops, the Group generally uses the packaging
materials such as plastic bags, nylon bags and carton
boxes to ensure product quality and unbreakable
throughout the of goods in transit. The Group has
consumed nearly 18 tonnes of packaging materials in
the year (Packaging material intensity: 0.028, calculated
in tonnes/HKD million revenue). Besides the plan of
replacing vehicles, Softpower International always
encourages employees to keep the good habit of saving
electricity and water.
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B mHERELIHRS

Use of energy
BERGER

Type
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Environment and natural resources

Softpower International attaches much importance to
protection of natural environment. The Management of
the Group always reviews the implementation progress
of environmental protection measures, and prudently
evaluates and manages possible adverse influence of
operation on the environment. As the business involves
no industrial production, the Group has not identified
any major influence on environment and natural
resources besides the above-mentioned emissions and
use of resources.

Softpower International will continue to evaluate, record
and disclose the data related to greenhouse emission
and other environment issues annually, and use this
year's data as a benchmark for future review of the
effectiveness of the measures. In the year, the Group has
not identified any cases that violated the laws related to
emissions or environment.

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICE

Softpower International cares for every employee and
strives to provide pleasant working conditions for them.

Softpower International Limited &EHEIBEEAERAF
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Health and safety

The Employee Handbook of the Group lists detailed
measures related to occupational safety. Due to high
risks of warehouse operation, the Group has set up
Warehouse Safety Regulations which lists all necessary
safety equipment for employees to wear, and provides,
safety guidelines for different posts (such as operators of
forklifts, drivers, outdoor workers and delivery assistant),
covering operation of mobile machinery, handling and
operation by physical strength, and outdoor work. During
the year, the Ten Important Points of Safety Regulations
has been made for warehouse operation, and it sets out
the key safety points for warehouse employees in goods
handling and forklift operation.

Safety Regulations

Pay attention of cargo
Check water tank and weight and avoid
petroleum gas pipe before
turning on the forklift
FENEIEERT - EI/KAEM
A S

on the forklift
FB) X ER]

el

In the year, the Group has not identified any work-related
fatal accident or illegal cases violating health and safety
laws. However, the Group had 13 accidents at work.
After investigation, most employees were sprained when
they carried the cargo in the warehouse in Yuen Long. As
at the end of the year, the injured employees have been
treated properly, and they have entitled applicable sick
leave, due payment and compensation for work injuries
according to Employees’ Compensation Regulations.

To enhance employees’ safety awareness, the Group
has authorised two experienced employees as safety
supervisors. Besides follow-up the injury cases,
the supervisors are responsible for introducing the
Warehouse Safety Handbook to new employees,
regularly reporting safety precautions to members
of the Employee Safety Committee, and offering
improvement plan for warehouse’s safety management.
The supervisors also through quarterly safety meeting
to introduce and update the latest occupational safety
regulations to warehouse staff.

overloading before turning  work outdoor during bad

weather, and shelter indoor
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Temporarily suspend
Use the trolley to carry
heavy cargos
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Work injury and absence from duty
IERRE

Number of work injuries

THEAH

Injury rate (number of injuries per 1,000 staff)
ITER(ME-—THREIHRNIEHT)
Lost days due to work injury
EIGEAIHENBH

Rate of lost days due to work injury

HATEEATENE X

Number of absence days

ERE) A

Absentee rate

BRE =

Employment

Through formulating the Employment Contract and
Employee Handbook, Softpower International ensures
all employees fully understand the information related
to recruitment, promotion, remuneration, welfare,
working hours and holidays, includes medical insurance
and benefits for staff at all levels. In addition, Softpower
International is committed to promoting equal
opportunities and anti-discrimination and establishing a
harmonious and mutually-respecting work environment.
To this end, the Employee Handbook sets out the
following specific management measures:

o Job seekers and on-job employees will be equally
treated in different employment scopes, regardless
of gender, pregnancy, disability, marriage status or
family status

o Clarify the definition and legal responsibility of
discrimination and sexual harassment

o Provide guidance and assistance for employees
who need help

o Establish complaint mechanism and handling
procedure

Softpower International Limited &EHEIBEEAERAF
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Softpower International takes an open policy towards
employee communication. In addition to employees
who can express their views by e-mail or interview
at any time to the department manager or human
resources department, the human resources department
will also conduct exit interviews with the resigned
employees to know about the work conditions of
different departments. During the year, the Group
held quarterly staff gathering and annual dinner to
encourage employees at various levels to establish good
relationships.

B mHERELIHRS
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Through adopting Board Diversification Policy, Softpower
International regularly examines the composition of
the Board of Directors, and tries to recruit high calibre
individual with different genders, ages and cultural and
educational backgrounds. In future, the Group will make
the diversification policy suitable to all-grade employees.

The Group has a total of 177 employees (Hong Kong:
168, Macao and Mainland China: 9), with the ratio of
male to female employees being 1.8:1, and the average
female-to-male salary ratio being 0.89:1.
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Employee Turnover Rate
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The Management of Softpower International has noted
that the turnover rate of employees in certain regions
is high. To solve the turnover problem of warehouse
staff in Hong Kong, the Management has increased
employees benefits since October 2017, including raising
meal allowance and work attendance bonus. In addition,
the Group will distribute discretionary bonus to the
outstanding employees in the Mainland China to retain
talent.
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Development and training

Based on functions of different departments, Softpower
International arranges the training to meet their needs
and provide development opportunities.

During the year, the Group provides financial support
as well as professional associations fees and assistance
for the relevant courses to the employees in accounting
department, company secretarial department, human
resources and administration department in order to
update their understanding of work-related knowledge
and compliance rules. For the needs of sales department
and purchasing department, the Group provides
on-job training for them and occasionally arranges
employees to attend symposiums and training course
held by chambers of commerce in the industry to know
about the application of mechanical and engineering
installation system and the latest products informations.

The Group also establishes the annual performance
appraisal system. Employees can discuss objectives,
difficulties and improvement methods with heads of
departments to score a better career development.

Labour standards

Softpower International’s Prohibition of Child Labour
Policy sets out to prohibit employment of the persons
below working age and the human resources department
should take effective procedures to verify the age of
condidates. The relevant policy also ensures the right of
everyone to freely choose a job, and all employment are
voluntary. In case of changing the employment category
(for instance, change from full-time to part-time or
contract form), the Group should obtain employees’
written consent. In case of emergency, if employees
agree to work on rest days, they may submit the records
to human resources department to take compensatory
time off after approval by the supervisor.

During the year, no internal whistle-blowing or illegal
cases related to recruitment or labour practices (including
child labour and forced labour) were received by the
Group.
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OPERATION MANAGEMENT
Supply chain management

Products of Softpower International mainly come from
35 suppliers across the world.

Number of suppliers

HIEm 2

Product liability

Softpower International pays much attention to product
quality assurance and strives to continuously improve
product quality and ensure all pipe products provided by
suppliers satisfy customers’ specifications and comply
with the laws and regulations where the Group operates.
For instance, the products shall be healthy and safe to
humans and environment and managed by labeling. At
each of the following major procurement decision stages,
the Group also takes into account the environmental
and social performance of suppliers to make a more
comprehensive decision.

Recognize and prioritize the products
with excellent environmental
performance to ensure they are free
of substances harmful to humans or
environment

Recognition

Review Evaluate and select suppliers from
various aspects such as quality,
environmental protection and labour

human rights

Encouragement |Encourage suppliers to obtain
certificates of non-use of hazardous
substances and other product

validation marks

Conduct sampling inspection of
suppliers' products to ensure
compliance with the requirements

Supervision

Softpower International Limited &EHEIBEEAERAF
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For the safety of products, the Group conducts tests
on reliability, compatibility and safety specifications
of the products provided by suppliers. The Group
has been promoting suppliers to obtain and provide
internationally recognized quality and safety marks. As
early in 2015, all products of the Group had obtained
the general acceptance letter (commonly known as
acceptance letter) from the Water Supplies Department
of Hong Kong (“WSD”) in accordance with the newly
promulgated Waterworks Regulations.

WSD — “General Acceptance”
Pre-approval System for plumbing products

At present, the WSD implements “General Acceptance”
(“GA”) pre-approval system for plumbing products
during the approval of plumbing projects. Qualified
plumbing products must be provided with a sample test
report issued by a local laboratory accredited by Hong
Kong Laboratory Accreditation Scheme (HOKLAS), or
a certificate issued by the British Standards Institution
Kitemark (BSI Kitemark) or Water Regulations Advisory
Scheme (WRAS) to prove conformity of the product to
the statutory standards.
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In October 2017, WSD formally implemented GA
surveillance program for plumbing products, and
started spot tests on plumbing products that obtained
GA to monitor whether the products continue to meet
the requirements for accreditation, including the
metal elements contained in the parts that come into
contact with drinking water. During the year, all of the
Group’s products subject to spot check had passed the
test results, with the related test results having been
published on the website of WSD.

The Group establishes Internal Product Acceptance
Guideline according to different types of pipes and
fittings. Warehouse workers must conduct sampling
inspection on every batch of products according to
required technical standards stipulated in the guideline. If
the products cannot conform to customers’ requirements,
warehouse workers will record the damaged conditions
and inspection data and report to the purchasing
department for follow-up. In case of receiving customers’
complaints, the sales department of the Group will,
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based on actual conditions, conduct further investigation
on the sites of customers. In the year, the Group received
13 complaint cases related to product quality, and all
unqualified products had been replaced and the Group
shared the economic loss of customers. Customers
expressed their satisfaction on our follow-up measures.
In addition, the Group valued the opinions of customers.
The sales team visited the customers regularly to deeply
know about their needs and provide appropriate services.
The Group also regularly organizes social activities
with the trade associations in the industry, such as golf
tournaments, inviting customers’ participation to foster
better relationships.

The Group attaches much importance to protecting
customers’ privacy and intellectual property right.
All employees should not directly or indirectly use
the materials of customers or suppliers, including
confidential information such as trade secrets, business
transactions and technologies, and disclose them to the
third parties. The relevant requirements are stipulated in
Employee Handbook. In the year, no illegal cases related
to product liability occurred in the Group.

ANTI-CORRUPTION

The Group works hard to promote corporate culture
of integrity and honesty. According to Gift and
Entertainment Policy of the Group, all employees have to
declare the gift and entertainment from outsiders. Based
on value, form and purpose of the gift or entertainment,
the Group has formulated handling principles and
methods in relevant policies. If employees would like to
provide customers and government officials with gifts
and entertainment, they should fill in the Entertainment
Fee Application Form and provide details, and submit
it to the Management for special approval according to
local laws and regulations. The Group also establishes the
communication channel for employees to consult with
the Management, human resource department, or their
own department head and manager in case of any doubt.
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During the year, no corruption litigations against the
Group or employees or relevant illegal cases happened
in the Group.

COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

Softpower International is committed to becoming a
caring company for "Take from society, Give back to
society". The Group's Community Policy starts from
the two directions of volunteer work and the donor
community. It encourages employees to organize
and participate in voluntary activities, and assists
institutions in need through donations at the same time.
Softpower International also actively explores and seeks
opportunities to work with customers and partners to
help the disadvantaged groups and expects to give back
to the society in innovative ways.

During the year, the Group participated in the projects
of several communities, donated over HK$20,000, and
contributed voluntary works for over 100 hours.

October 2017

Bun Kee participated in voluntary activities yearly
organized by The Hong Kong Air Conditioning and
Refrigeration Association Ltd. In the year, Bun Kee
participated in the voluntary service “Caring Event —
Happy Rice Delivery 2017”, visited low-income elderly
and presented them with rice.
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RBIE - MERESHE

November 2017

The Group participated in the “25th Anniversary
Celebration and Walking Carnival 2017” organized by
The Hong Kong Liver Foundation; several employees
took their children to participate in the walking charity
to support education and research of liver diseases, and
care for liver disease patients.
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Material Aspect

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

B HERE

KPI SUMMARY AND REPORT CONTENT INDEX BRENEEAERFERNR RS
Content
RE

TEEE

A. Environmental ZR1%

A1l Emissions BERY

General Disclosure

—RRIEE

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to
air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and land, and generation of hazardous and
non-hazardous waste.

Eﬁﬁﬁ?ﬁ&/'zﬁ‘%‘%ﬁﬁﬁl LK R THEEES A EREEEEYNEESN

(a) K

(b) E?%ﬁé‘ﬁ/\*ﬁé FENEEEAERARRIEER

Al

Section
HEE

The types of emissions and respective emissions data
(from warehouse truck and forklift; in tonnes)

PERiE AR EE IR CREEAE W EEFMNXE  AFmitHE)
Sulphur oxides (SOx) Fi &%)
Nitrogen oxides (NOx) & &1L #)
Particulate matter (PM) E8XI ¥

Al.2

Greenhouse gas emissions in total (in tonnes CO2-e)
RERBAINE(W_aiRES
Inten5|ty of greenhouse gas emissions (in tonnes CO2-e / square meter area)

BEREEEE (AN — S biRE S T REE G E)

Emissions

e

Al3

Total hazardous waste produced (light bulbs and Ilght tube; in tonnes)
FEEEEEENEE (BRIERLE  UMRTE)
Intensity of hazardous waste produced (in tonnes / square meter area)

BEEEDEE Al FHRkEEIEE)

Al.4

Total non-hazardous waste produced (municipal solid waste; in tonnes)
FEEREEREYES (MHERED - UMETE)
Inten5|ty of non-hazardous waste produced (ln tonnes / square meter area)

EBEENTE AW, FIOREE FE)

Al.5

Descrlptlon of measures to mitigate emissions and results achieved

R URE B R HOFE 5 2 PR IS AR

Al.6

Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are handled, reduction initiatives and results
achieved

REE A E MEEERYN L  BUEELENERRATER

A2 Use of Resources & iR i A

General Disclosure

—RRIEE

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water and other raw materials.

BREAER(BIEER K REMEED B

A2.1

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. electricity, gas or oil) in total (in megawatt hour).
ARSI SWEER SEEER(NE - RIvh)EREE

Direct energy HEER

Indirect energy fEZRETR

Energy intensity (in megawatt hour / square meter area) 8&JR %A E (JA K ERS F 5 oKmE i 51 E)

A2.2

Water consumption in total (in Cubic meter) 2 5E/K & (VA 75 KT E)
Water intensity (in tonnes / square meter area) /KB E (JA 325K, “F oK mEiE 51 E)

Use of

A2.3

Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and results achieved

L REIR{E A At B R P 1S AR

resources

BIR{E A

A2.4

Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is fit for purpose, water efficiency initiatives
and results achieved

Rt SREGE R KR E AT B A ERE - ARSI Rkt 8 R AR R

A2.5

Total packaging material used for finished products (in tonnes)
SR AT BEM RS (CAREAE
Packaging material intensity (in tonnes / HKS million revenue)

BEEEUAIN, BEETERAGE
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BE lgRELIRSE

Material Aspect Content

TEHRE RS
A3 The Environment and Natural Resources 3835 & X R &R
General Disclosure Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impact on the environment and natural resources.

Section

Environment

—ARHER BIRBITAHRBE RAAERENERZEHECR and natural
A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the environment and natural resources and the actions resources
taken to manage them Tfﬁﬁ;%éﬁi&
B EDWES R AR DRNEANERERREREHYENTE AR
B. Social {+ &
B1 Employment {E{&
General Disclosure Information on:
(a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating
to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal
opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.
— R ER ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ@ﬁ&ﬁﬂ% CHBERES - TERS - BRE - TSRS - St - REBEBAREMFE REFN
(@) BR K
(b) BEFHETARBEAZEMEREERRANESR - Em"?{é‘%‘em
B1.1 Total workforce 1& 8 422
Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group and geographical region
IR - BIEEE - FRERIRMREDNESHE
B1.2 Employee turnover rate & /i kL &
Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical region
R - FEER KRS S BE B MK E
B2 Health and Safety fZEEEEZ &
General Disclosure Information on:
(a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to
providing a safe working environment and protecting employees from occupational hazards.
— R EE BRRMtZE TERRRREREBBRBEEREN
(a) %BZ% iR ) .
(b) BEFHBETAREATENEBEZEANNER
B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities Bl T {ERG R ML T-HI A £ % th & He:;;zt?/nd
B2.2 Lost days due to work injury A L5185 TVER) B £X RS
Rate of Lost days due to work injury L1585 TVEH) B 8ikt &
B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted, how they are implemented and monitored
FIPTER A R B 2516 - ARABBRI T RER A
GRI 403-2 Injury rate (number of injuries per 1,000 staff) TIZ X (MG —FHE THHIAMTEHT)
Absentee rate (number of absence days per number of working days) i )% ( 8 THE) H &R F TIER
2 hl)

B3 Development and Training 2% /& 2 &% 3
General Disclosure Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for discharging duties at work. Description of training

Development

activities. and training
— MR BRRAE B BT TIEBE R AHZ RIXEERBER © S 3IEE) TR L
B4 Labour Standards %5 T %8|
General Disclosure Information on:
(a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to Labour
preventing child and forced labour. standard
—AR R ER BRI IEE T SeaH4TH L T %R
(a) BE: Rk
(b) BEFHETAREAZEMEBEZRRANER
B5 Supply Chain Management {3 fE$E & 18
General Disclosure Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply chain.
—MRE BIR AR AR Rt & ER AR Supply Chain
) ) ) management
B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region {HrEdE ST

iR B D MR EE
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BE lgRELIHRE

Material Aspect Content Section
TEHRE RS EE
B6 Product Responsibility 2= fa &S F
General Disclosure  Information on:
(a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating
to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating to products and services
provided and methods of redress.
— B ERAMRHEERMBRENRERRELZ S - BS  REIAEBEEARESRT AN Product
(a) BR: R responsibility
V3 S = 7 N SR O ==
(b) EFHBETAGSEAFENHEBEERBAOBER EmREF
B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints received and how they are dealt with
ZREEANERERBRFEE AREEH A -
B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, how they are implemented and monitored
B E A RMRE RALBBCR - ARBBERITRER
B7 Anti-corruption X &35
General Disclosure  Information on:
(a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to
bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering. )
— R ER B IEHE - B1R - BEFRARER —
(a) WE R corruption
(b) BEFHETARSAZEMEREEZRRANER RES
B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought against the issuer or its employees
during the reporting period and the outcomes of the cases
RERIAAAETASERBEREWEEENETHARMOEE RFARER
B8 Community Investment ¥ BiR &
General Disclosure  Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the communities where the issuer operates
and to ensure its activities take into consideration the communities’ interests. Community
— R AR [E 2 B L BT B R EAERE XS EEEE B EFEBCR investment
y =N PA N
B8.2 Resources contributed to the focus area HREE

EEIHRMPANER
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Report of the Directors

EFERS

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) have
pleasure in presenting their report together with the
audited financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. The principal activities of its subsidiaries are set
out in Note 33 to the financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by
operating segments is set out in Note 5 to the financial
statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2017 are set out in the consolidated income statement
on page 88.

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”)
does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2017.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the
year and a discussion on the Group’s future business
development, possible risks and uncertainties that the
Group may be facing are set out in the sections headed
“Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion
and Analysis” of this Annual Report.

The details of financial risk management of the Group
are set out in Note 3 to the financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance during the year
using financial key performance indicators is set out in
the section headed “Five-Year Financial Summary” of this
Annual Report.

The compliance with relevant laws and regulations which
have a significant impact on the Group is set out in this
“Report of Directors” and the section headed “Corporate
Governance Report” of this Annual Report.

Softpower International Limited &EHEIBEEAERAF

ARAER(EF)MARZEREERBE_F
—tF+ A=+ HIEFEZRERMBERE -

FBRRK
AR TBEBRIEER - MEMBAR TR
EBRIBN I RAM £33

REED R AREBRE 2 DR I SRR LS

RERDIK

AEEHE_T—+F+_A=+—RLEFEZEE
HNEBAZIRA MR ©

ARPEFS([EFS N TEBRNBEE—T—+F
T-A=1T—BLFEZREES -

RGO

B EBR LR DB R AR AR
HR 2 - AEE A 2 EERR R TR
ERMNARERO ERERE | R EREHRRAIN
B -

AREE 2 B RREIEFFHN Y BRKRMES -

AEBERBEIEVBERREFTHEAFERE 20
FNAFR A FHHERE IRBEE

A S EAYEORAR AN 2 EFERR
RA[EFGRE I RRARF R CEEARE P
0 -



The details of social responsibilities and services and
environmental policies are set out in the “Environmental,
Social and Governance Report” of this Annual Report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Details of the distributable reserves of the Company
as at 31 December 2017 are set out in Note 29 to the
financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in properties, plant and
equipment of the Group are set out in Note 13 to the
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the
Company are set out in Note 21 to the financial
statements.

BORROWINGS

Particulars of borrowings of the Group as at 31
December 2017 are set out in Note 23 to the financial
statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during
the year. Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
has purchased or sold any of the Company’s shares
during the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under
the Company’s bye-laws or the Bermuda Companies
Act, being the jurisdiction in which the Company was
incorporated.

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31
December 2017 are set out in Note 33 to the financial
statements.
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Report of the Directors

EFERS

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to
the date of this report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Lai Guanglin (Chairman) (Nete Y
Mr. Yu Ben Ansheng (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Lai Fulin (Vote2)

Non-Executive Director
Mr. U Kean Seng Note 3)
Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Wong Yee Shuen, Wilson
Mr. Chen Wei Wen
Mr. Guan Zhigiang

Notes:

1. Mr. Lai Guanglin has resigned as an executive Director and
the Chairman of the Board with effect from 30 March 2018.

2. Mr. Lai Fulin retired on 25 May 2017 and then rejoined the
Board on 27 November 2017. He has been appointed as the
Chairman of the Board with effect from 30 March 2018.

3. Mr. U Kean Seng has resigned as a non-executive Director
with effect from 30 March 2018.

In accordance with bye-law 99 of the Bye-laws of the
Company, Mr. Wong Yee Shuen Wilson and Mr. Chen Wei
Wen will retire from office by rotation and being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

In accordance with bye-law 102(B) of the Bye-laws of
the Company, Mr. Lai Fulin will hold office until the
forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible,
will offer himself for re-election.
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CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each independent
non-executive Director an annual confirmation of his/
her independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules and the Company considers that all of them are
independent.

Mr Wong Yee Shuen Wilson, an independent non-
executive Director of the Company, has served the
Company in this capacity for more than nine years.
Notwithstanding his long term service, given his
extensive business experience and not connected
with any director or substantial shareholder of the
Company, the Board is of the opinion that he continues
to bring independent and objective perspectives to the
Company’s affairs.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of Directors and senior
management are set out in the section headed
“Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management” of this Annual Report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACT

None of the Directors offering themselves for re-
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting
of the Company has entered in to any service contract
with the Company or any of its subsidiaries, which
is not terminable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors and their respective associates
has an interest in any business which competes or may
compete with the business in which the Group engaged.
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EFERS

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The share option scheme approved by the shareholders
of the Company on 24 June 2004 (the “2004 Scheme”)
which expired on 23 June 2014. Thereafter, no further
options will be granted under the 2004 Scheme but
the subsisting options granted thereunder prior to the
expiry date will continue to be valid and exercisable in
accordance with the terms of the 2004 Scheme.

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on
21 May 2015, the shareholders of the Company approved
the adoption of a new share option scheme (the “2015
Scheme”) under which the directors of the Company
may grant options to eligible persons to subscribe for the
Company’s shares subject to the terms and conditions
as stipulated therein. Unless otherwise cancelled or
amended, the 2015 Scheme will remain valid for a period
of 10 years from the date of its adoption.

1. The 2004 Scheme
The details of 2004 Scheme are as follows:
(a) Purpose

The purpose of the 2004 Scheme is to provide
the Company with a flexible means of giving
incentive and/or rewarding the participants.

(b) Participants of the Scheme

The Board may offer to grant options to the
participants which means (i) any Director
(including any executive director, non-
executive director or independent non-
executive director) of any member of the
Group; (ii) any employee (whether full-
time or part-time) of any member of the
Group; (iii) any consultant, adviser, supplier,
customer or sub-contractor of the Group; and
(iv) any other person whatsoever from time
to time determined by the Board as having
contributed to the development, growth or
benefit of the Group.
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(c)

(d)

(e)

Total number of shares available for issue
under the Scheme

The total number of shares of the Company
which may be issued upon exercise of all
options to be granted under the Scheme
and any other share option schemes of the
Company must not in aggregate exceed 10%
of the issued share capital of the Company
as at the date of the general meeting of the
Company approving the Scheme. The number
of shares may be refreshed by the approval
of the shareholders and the refreshed limit of
the number of shares must not exceed 10%
of the issued share capital of the Company
as the date of the approval of the refreshed
limit. The maximum number of shares of the
Company which may be issued upon exercise
of all outstanding options granted and yet to
be exercised under the Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company must
not exceed 30% of the total number of shares
of the Company in issue from time to time.

The total number of shares available for issue
upon exercise of all options were granted
under the Scheme are 19,300,000 Shares,
representing approximately 1.45% of the total
number of shares of the Company in issue as
at the date of this report.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

Total number of shares of the Company
issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
options granted to each participant (including
exercised or outstanding options) in any
12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the
total number of shares in issue as at the date
of grant.

Minimum period for options to be held

No minimum period for which an option must
be held before it can be exercised unless
otherwise specified in the relevant offer
letter.

(c)

(d)

(e)
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EFERS

(7)

()

(h)

Period and payment on acceptance of
options

Pursuant to the Scheme, HK$10 is payable by
the grantee to the Company on acceptance
of the option within 28 days from the date of
grant of the option.

Basis determining the subscription price

The subscription price of a share in respect
of any particular option granted under the
Scheme shall be a price determined by
the Board and notified to the participants
and shall be at least the highest of (a) the
closing price of the shares as stated in The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Hong Kong Stock Exchange”) daily quotation
sheet on the date on which the options
are deemed to be granted and accepted in
accordance with the terms of the Scheme (the
“Commencement Date”), which must be a
business day; (b) the average closing price of
the shares as stated in the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheet for the five
business days immediately preceding the
Commencement Date; and (c) the nominal
value of the shares.

Life of the Scheme

Subject to earlier termination by the
Company at general meeting or by the Board,
the life of the Scheme commenced from 24
June 2004, date of adoption, and ended on
23 June 2014.

Details of options granted, exercised,
lapsed, cancelled and outstanding under the
Scheme during the year (the information of
exercise price, number and share price of
the Company is disclosed on the basis of the
information after the Share Consolidation
became effective) are as follows:

Softpower International Limited &EHEIBEEAERAF

(f)

()

(h)

BEREREZ B R
RIFFTE] - ARABERRBBERNIE

HAERE B T —+ N\ BARARRFX

r107%87T -

ETRMEZEE

RIEET SR 2 45 E B AR 2 B 38
BE SHESERNEETE  YANESH
% MABERELDS () BN ERER
REMAR /S 1R PR B R AT 8 (5 R
Z2R(HRBH] (BERBEEHMARZMA
RAm] ([ FBBRM])ELEEFBEREER
ZBEM(RZHE DETEMI AT ARE
KA WTE ¢ (b) IR EZFR B H
FIEENER S B EEEHAEHRE
KR FHWTE R ()R EE=%
hZREE

it B2 B

BRARARBEREAS EIHEESRFER
SN SHEl 2 BB ST MFNA
“TTHEBAEMRBRH)REE_T—MF XA
—+=BA&lt-

REFER - REFAERE 176 - K%
AEiH M M ARTTE R B < 1B (BT
B HH MEPERERTIRERD G H
R BRFES) T



Report of the Directors

EFERS

Movement during the year
Fres

Held as at Held as at

1January 31 December

Exercise 2017  Granted and 2017

PriceHKS RZE—t& accepted RZE-tF

Name of Directors Date of grant 1E —-A-A ERE  Exercised lapsed Cancelled +=HA=1-H

BEpg REAH BT BB Y#m 2AF  2XM  caEs b2

Lai Fulin (ore ) 3/12/2009 0.71 5,000,000 = - - - 5,000,000
fRiEm (i)

U Kean Seng ore ) 3/12/2009 0.71 3,000,000 = = = = 3,000,000
£ ﬁjz(ﬁ/ﬁ‘zj)

Wong Yee Shuen, Wilson ot 3/12/2009 0.71 1,000,000 = = = = 1,000,000
EOVEGE

Chen Wei Wen 02} 5/5/2010 0.83 1,000,000 = = = = 1,000,000
Bty (Hiz2)

10,000,000 = = = = 10,000,000

Employees Vo143 3/12/2009 071 9,300,000 - - - - 9,300,000
(B 8 (W1i3)

19,300,000 = = = = 19,300,000

Notes: Kiaz

1.  The options granted to these grantees are vested in stages 1. BTZEABANBRESSEERSEB @ W T5HHN

and be exercised in the following manner: 1718
Maximum percentage of options exercisable Period for exercise of the relevant percentage of the options
AT BRES=AE DT TEERERET DL 2 HIR
20% 3/6/2010-2/12/2019
20% 3/6/2011-2/12/2019
20% 3/6/2012 —2/12/2019
20% 3/6/2013 -2/12/2019
20% 3/6/2014 —-2/12/2019
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2. The options granted to these grantees are vested in stages
and be exercised in the following manner:

Maximum percentage of options exercisable

ATz BRERR AN L

2. BTREFARANBRESOEEREE WA TN

38 -

Period for exercise of the relevant percentage of the options

1TEARRAR AR B 0 Lt 2 HARR

20%
20%
20%
20%
20%

3. Vesting of options granted to certain employees is subject to
achievement of profit target.

Details of the fair value of options granted under the
Scheme during the year ended 31 December 2017 and
the accounting policy adopted for the options are set
out in Note 21 and Note 2 to the financial statements
respectively

2. The 2015 Scheme
The details of 2015 Scheme are as follows:
(a) Purpose

The purpose of the 2015 Scheme is to
recognize and acknowledge the contributions
or potential contributions made or to be
made by the participants to the Group, to
motivate the participants to optimize their
performance and efficiency for the benefit
of the Group, and to maintain or attract
business relationship with the participants
whose contributions are or may be beneficial
to the growth of the Group.
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5/11/2011 - 4/5/2020
5/11/2012 - 4/5/2020
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(b)

(c)

Participants

The Board may offer to grant options to the
participants which means (i) any director
(including any executive director, non-
executive director or independent non-
executive director) of any member of the
Group; (i) any employee (whether in full time
or part-time employment) of any member
of the Group; (iii) any consultant, adviser,
supplier, customer or subcontractor of the
Group, and (iv) any other person whatsoever
from time to time determined by the Board
as having contributed to the development,
growth or benefit of the Group.

Total number of shares available for issue
under the Scheme

The total number of shares of the Company
which may be issued upon exercise of all
options to be granted under the Scheme
and any other share option schemes of the
Company must not in aggregate exceed 10%
of the issued share capital of the Company
as at the date of the general meeting of the
Company approving the Scheme. The number
of shares may be refreshed by the approval
of the shareholders and the refreshed limit of
the number of shares must not exceed 10%
of the issued share capital of the Company
as the date of the approval of the refreshed
limit. The maximum number of shares of the
Company which may be issued upon exercise
of all outstanding options granted and yet to
be exercised under the Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company must
not exceed 30% of the total number of shares
of the Company in issue from time to time.

The total number of shares available for issue
under the Scheme is 133,327,000 Shares,
representing 10% of the total number of
shares of the Company in issue as at the date
of this report.

(b)

(c)
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(d)

(e)

(7)

()

Maximum entitlement of each participant

Total number of shares of the Company
issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
options granted to each participant (including
exercised or outstanding options) in any
12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the
total number of shares in issue as at the date
of grant.

Minimum period for options to be held

No minimum period for which an option must
be held before it can be exercised unless
otherwise specified in the relevant offer
letter.

Period and payment on acceptance of
options

Pursuant to the Scheme, HK$10 is payable by
the grantee to the Company on acceptance
of the option within 28 days from the date of
grant of the option.

Basis determining the subscription price

The subscription price of a share in respect
of any particular option granted under the
Scheme shall be a price determined by
the Board and notified to the participants
and shall be at least the highest of (a) the
closing price of the shares as stated in The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Hong Kong Stock Exchange”) daily quotation
sheet on the date on which the options
are deemed to be granted and accepted in
accordance with the terms of the Scheme (the
“Commencement Date”), which must be a
business day; (b) the average closing price of
the shares as stated in the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheet for the five
business days immediately preceding the
Commencement Date; and (c) the nominal
value of the shares.
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(h) Life of the Scheme

Subject to earlier termination by the
Company at general meeting or by the Board,
the life of the Scheme commenced from 21
May 2015, the date of adoption, and ended
on 20 May 2025.

As at 31 December 2017, no share option
was granted by the Company under the 2015
Scheme.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

The interests of the directors in the share options of the
Company are separately disclosed in the section headed
“SHARE OPTION SCHEME” above.

As at 31 December 2017, the interests and short
positions of the Directors and chief executive of
the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)) as
recorded in the register required to be kept under
Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”), were set out below:

Long positions in the shares and underlying share of the
Company

Name of Directors Capacity

Ex2B 5%

Interest of controlled corporation

REH)EE R

Lai Guanglin

Beneficial owner/Interest
of controlled corporation

EREAA/ZEHERRER

Yu Ben Ansheng
A E
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HAE 501 ([ 78 275 R BB 1P 1) 56 xv 8B ) ruf 7 - 18F8
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HIERGIFE3526FF 2 BERM 2 EREIRE © HEA
RIEBEEMRBESEITESFRR HHIEESTAI([REEST
Al DS ARRBI MEBMRITZERIORBIN T ¢

RAEARRG REBERG 2R

Approximate
percentage of
Personal Corporate shares in issue
Interests Interests Total HERTRE
BARR EERER st L E =R
= 770,552,120 770,552,120 57.79%

(Note 1 ffi#1)
3,000,000 146,000,000 149,000,000 11.18%

(Note 2 fli#2)
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Notes:

1. These shares are held by Singapore Zhongxin Investment
Company Limited, which is wholly and beneficially owned
by Mr. Lai Guanglin, an executive Director and the Chairman
of the Company. Accordingly, Mr. Lai is deemed to be
interested in such shares under the SFO.

2. These shares are held by King Jade Holdings Limited, which
is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Yu Ben Ansheng,
an executive Director and the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company. Accordingly, Mr. Yu is deemed to be interested in
such shares under the SFO.

Save as disclosed above and in the section headed
“SHARE OPTION SCHEME” above, as at 31 December
2017, none of the Directors or chief executive or their
respective associates had any interests or short positions
in shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO
or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2017, the interests or short positions
of the following persons or corporations, other than
the Directors or chief executive of the Company, in
the shares and underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Long position in share and underlying share of the
Company

Name of shareholders Capacity

RREE )

Singapore Zhongxin Investment

Company Limited (Note 2 /it 1) EnEAA

Li Juan (Note 2)

ﬁﬁﬁ (HisE 2) @E{%$g§

King Jade Holdings Limited (Note 3 /it 3) Beneficial owner
EnEAA
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Beneficial owner

Interest of spouse
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1. % % %17 H Singapore Zhongxin Investment Company
Limited #5 » 3% /A Al Lai Guanglin %04 (KA R Z 1T
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Bl - Lai R AR SRR ER NP HEEER °

2. ZERH King Jade Holdings Limited 354 » 52 A FIH &
BERE(RRARIZHTEEREENTE ) 2EEnE
Ao At - BEZBSFRPEKI - 1L EWRARZE
RRAD AP HER HE s o

B EX R m il R & A REEIN  R-F
—tF+T-A=1—H BEEZIIHRSTBRAEN
MESBZBMEATRAR RS E T EEAE (E
& R n MG EGIZE xv B mik ) - BB MME
T - BAAECRARRIREREZ KB GEIH
32 IFE 2 B < A TORR - HARBIREST
AIAMEARNR R RE BB ESIAR °

FERR

RZZE—+F+_A=+—H ' LW TATSEE (L
NHHEBEZARBAEETRZTTHRABRINREA
AIMD R ARRERR (DA BE BN A R AIREE 5 N
EIEHIE336IKFE 2 E M2 ERSART ¢

RAEXBRRG REERD 2FR

Number of shares/
underlying shares held

Approximate percentage
of shares in issue

iR, 1= oy
HEROHA BROBMOE DL
770,552,120 57.79%
770,552,120 57.79%
146,000,000 10.95%



Notes:

1. Singapore Zhongxin Investment Company Limited is wholly
and beneficially owned by Mr. Lai Guanglin, an executive
Director and the Chairman of the Company. Accordingly, Mr.
Lai is deemed to be interested in such shares under the SFO.

2. Ms. Li Juan, the spouse of Mr. Lai Guanglin, is also deemed
to be interested in Mr. Lai’s interest in the Company under
the SFO.

3. King Jade Holdings Limited is wholly and beneficially owned
by Mr. Yu Ben Ansheng, an executive Director and the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company. Accordingly, Mr. Yu is
deemed to be interested in such shares under the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, the
Company had not been notified by any persons or
corporations, other than the Directors or chief executive
of the Company, who had interests or short positions
in the shares or underlying shares of the Company
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of
the business of the Group were entered into or existed
during the year.

DONATIONS

Donations for charitable made by the Group during the
year amounted to HK$28,120.

SHARES ISSUED

The Company has not issued any share during the year
ended 31 December 2017.

DEBENTURE ISSUED

The Company has not issued any debenture during the
year ended 31 December 2017.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed under the section headed “SHARE
OPTION SCHEME” above, no equity-linked agreements
were entered into by the Group, or existed during the
year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Company’s Bye-laws, every Director
shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of
the Company against all losses or liabilities which he/
she may sustain or incur in or about the execution of the
duties of his/her office or otherwise in relation thereto.

The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and
officers’ liability insurance coverage for the Directors and
officers of the Group throughout the year.

MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTION,
ARRANGEMENT OR CONTRACT OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as the disclosure of related party transactions
set out in Note 28 to the financial statements, no
Director or an entity connected with Director had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, in any
transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to
the business of the Group to which the Company, its
holding company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries was a party during the year.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER’S INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

There was no contract of significance between any
members of the Group and the Company’s controlling
shareholders subsisting at the end of the year or at any
time during the year.
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ARRANGEMENT TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the section headed “SHARE
OPTION SCHEME” above, at no time during the year was
the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors of the Company
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares or debentures of the Company or any other body
corporate.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTION

As mentioned in the announcement dated 11 May 2016
and the circular dated 15 July 2016 of the Company,
on 11 May 2016, Mao Xing Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company (the “Lender”), entered into
a loan agreement (the “Loan Agreement”) with China
Victory International Holdings Limited, (the “Borrower”),
pursuant to which the Lender has conditionally agreed
to grant to the Borrower a loan facility in the amount
of up to US$10,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$77,746,000) upon and subject to the terms and
conditions set out therein.

As at the date of the Loan Agreement, Mr. Lai Guanglin,
an executive Director, the Chairman and a controlling
shareholder, held approximately 57.79% of the issued
share capital of the Company and is also the controlling
shareholder of Agria Corporation. The Borrower is an
associate of Mr. Lai Guanglin and therefore a connected
person of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. As such, the transactions contemplated under
the Loan Agreement constitute continuing connected
transactions for the Company under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.
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The proposed annual caps of the maximum principal
loan outstanding for the financial years ended/ending 31
December 2016, 31 December 2017, 31 December 2018
and period ending 1 August 2019 were US$10,000,000
for each year/period. The annual caps of the interest
amounts for financial years ended/ending 31 December
2016, 31 December 2017, 31 December 2018 and period
ending 1 August 2019 were US$450,000, US$1,100,000,
US$1,100,000 and US$650,000 respectively (“Annual
Caps”). The Annual Caps of the principal loan
outstanding and interest amounts were approved by the
shareholders of the Company at the Company’s special
general meeting held on 1 August 2016.

On 15 December 2017, the Lender has entered into
a deed of novation (the “Deed of Novation”) with
the Borrower and Agria Group Limited (the “New
Borrower”), pursuant to which the Borrower agreed to
novate and the New Borrower agreed to assume, from
the date of the Deed of Novation, all the Borrower’s
rights and obligations in and under the Loan Agreement,
upon and subject to the terms and conditions set out
therein. Accordingly, the Borrower is released from any
obligation under the Loan Agreement to be performed
on or after the date of the Deed of Novation. The Deed
of Novation was approved by the shareholders of the
Company at the Company’s special general meeting held
on 23 February 2018.

The independent non-executive Directors of the
Company have reviewed the continuing connected
transaction and confirmed that (i) the entering into of
the Loan Agreement, although is not conducted in the
ordinary and usual course of business of the Group, is in
the interests of the Company and the shareholders as a
whole; and (ii) the terms of the loan agreement and the
Annual Caps are on normal commercial terms and are
fair and reasonable.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the
Group’s continuing connected transaction in accordance
with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements
3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or
Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with
reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong
Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants.
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The auditor has issued an unqualified letter containing
its findings and conclusions in respect of the above
mentioned continuing connected transaction in
accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A
copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the
Company to the Stock Exchange.

Save as disclosed above and in Note 28 to the financial
statements, during the year, there were no connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions of
the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
which are required to comply with any of the reporting,
announcement or independent shareholders’ approval
requirements under the Listing Rules.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of purchases and sales for the year
attributable to the Group’s major suppliers and
customers are as follows:

Purchases
—  the largest supplier 21.75%
—  five largest suppliers combined 57.98%

Sales
— the largest customer 3.97%
—  five largest customers combined 16.16%

None of the Directors, their associates or any
shareholder (which to the knowledge of the Directors
owns more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had
an interest in the major suppliers or customers noted
above.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

Details of the compliance with corporate governance
code of the Company are set out in the “CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE REPORT” of this Annual Report.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

As at the date of this report,the audit committee consists
of two independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr.
Wong Yee Shuen, Wilson and Mr. Chen Wei Wen, and a
non-executive Director, namely Mr. U Kean Seng.

By reference to “A Guide for the Formation of An Audit
Committee” published by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, written terms of reference
which describe the authority and duties of the audit
committee were prepared and adopted by the Board of
the Company.

The annual results have been reviewed by the audit
committee of the Company.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors,
the Company has maintained the prescribed public float
required under the Listing Rules as at the date of this
report.

AUDITORS

The financial statements have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-appointment.

By Order of the Board

Lai Guanglin
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 March 2018
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To the Shareholders of Softpower International Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Softpower
International Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) set out on pages 88 to 175, which comprise:

o the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 December 2017;

o the consolidated income statement for the year
then ended;

. the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income for the year then ended;

o the consolidated statement of changes in equity for
the year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended; and

. the notes to the consolidated financial statements,
which include a summary of significant accounting
policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2017, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Independent Auditor’s Report
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with
the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

The key audit matters identified in our audit are
summarised as follows:

° Net realisable value of inventories
o Provision for impairment of trade receivables

o Impairment of loan to a related company

Softpower International Limited &EHEIBEEAERAF
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KEY AUDIT MATTER
FRENER

Net realisable value of inventories
Refer to notes 4 and 16 to the consolidated
financial statements.

As at 31 December 2017, inventories of
the Group amounted to approximately
HKS$204 million. As described in the Basis of
preparation and accounting policies in note
2(h) to the consolidated financial statements,
inventories are carried at the lower of cost
and net realisable value.

Management applied judgment in
determining the appropriate provisions
for obsolete inventories and inventories
with net realisable value below cost. Net
realisable value is determined based upon a
detailed analysis of the aging of inventories
on a product-by-product basis, and with
reference to their latest invoice prices and
current market conditions. An impairment
provision of approximately HKS19 million has
been recorded to reduce the carrying value
of certain inventories to their estimated net
realisable value.

We focused on this area due to the size of
the balances and the judgment involved
by management in determining the net
realisable value of the inventories.
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HOW OUR AUDIT ADDRESSED THE KEY AUDIT MATTER
EANES AR ERRETSE

Our procedures in relation to management’s assessment on net
realisable value of inventories included:

— We understood and evaluated the appropriateness and
consistency of the basis management used in estimating the
level of provision for inventories by comparing the historical
accuracy of inventory provisioning, on a sample basis, to the
realised amount; and reviewing the level of inventory write-
offs during the year.

—  Checked, on a sample basis, the accuracy of inventories aging
used by management to estimate the appropriate provision for
slow moving and obsolete inventories.

— Performed audit analytics on inventories holding and
movement data to identify products with indication of slow
moving or obsolescence.

—  Compared the carrying amounts of a sample of inventories
to their net realisable value through a detailed review of
sale subsequent to the year end to check for completeness
of the associated provision. Where there are no subsequent
sales of the respective products after the year end, we
challenged management as to the realisable value of the
products, corroborating explanations with the aging, sales
orders, historical margins and marketability of the respective
inventories, as appropriate.

Based on the procedures performed, we found the assumptions of
management in relation to assessment on net realisable value of
inventories to be supportable by available evidence.
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KEY AUDIT MATTER
FRENER

Provision for impairment of trade receivables
Refer to notes 4 and 17 to the consolidated
financial statements.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group held
gross trade receivables of approximately
HKS$121 million with provision for impairment
of trade receivables of approximately HKS2
million.

Management applied judgement in
determining the appropriate provision for
impairment of trade receivables. Provisions
are determined based upon a detailed
analysis of trade receivables aging on a
customer-by-customer basis, with reference
to their credit history, settlement subsequent
to the year end, and market economics
and financial condition of the respective
customers. A provision of approximately
HKS2 million has been recorded to reduce the
carrying values of certain trade receivables to
their estimated recoverable amounts as at 31
December 2017.

We focused on this area due to the size of
the balances and the judgment involved by
management in determining the recoverable
amounts of the trade receivables.
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HOW OUR AUDIT ADDRESSED THE KEY AUDIT MATTER
EANES AR ERRETSE

Our procedures in relation to management’s assessment on
provision for impairment of trade receivables included:

— We understood and evaluated the controls by which
management determined the recoverable amount of
receivables and the consistency of the basis and the estimation
process.

—  Checked, on a sample basis, the accuracy of trade receivables
aging used by management to estimate the appropriate
provision for impairment.

—  Performed audit analytics on aging profile of trade receivables,
and by making reference to settlement received after the year
end, if any, to identify aged receivables or potential receivables
in dispute for which no provision had been made.

—  Where settlement had not been received subsequent to the
year end for those older unprovided receivables beyond the
credit period as at year end, we challenged management
as to the recoverability of these receivables, corroborating
explanations with underlying documentation and
correspondence with the relevant customer.

—  Reviewed the circumstances of all major receivables provided
against with reference to their credit terms, overdue period,
settlement history, and/or amount in dispute as appropriate to
determine the reasonableness of the amount provided.

Based on the procedures performed, we found the assumptions of
management in relation to assessment on provision for impairment
of trade receivables to be supportable by available evidence.
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KEY AUDIT MATTER
FRENER

Impairment of loan to a related company
Refer to notes 4, 17 and 28 (e) to the
consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group held a
loan to a related company of approximately
HKS78 million.

Management applied judgement in
determining the appropriate provision for
impairment of loan to the related company.
The loan is secured by the entire issued
shares of the related company, which are
not publicly traded, and guaranteed by a
holding company of the related company (the
“Guarantor”). The loan is interest bearing
and repayable by July 2019 as detailed in
note 28(e) to the consolidated financial
statements.

Management reviewed the financial
conditions of the related company and the
Guarantor, taking into account the settlement
history of the related interest elements, and
concluded that no provision for impairment
is required for such loan as at 31 December
2017.

We focused on this area due to the size of
the balance and the judgment involved by
management in determining the recoverable
amount of the loan.
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HOW OUR AUDIT ADDRESSED THE KEY AUDIT MATTER
EANES AR ERRETSE

Our procedures in relation to management’s impairment assessment
on the loan receivable included:

We reviewed the loan agreement and obtained direct
confirmation from the related company on the balance and
terms of the loan as at 31 December 2017 with no exception.

Checked, on a sample basis, the accuracy of interest payment
received and whether they are in accordance with the terms of
the loan.

We challenged management as to the recoverability of the
loan, corroborating explanations with the latest financial
information of the related company and the Guarantor and
correspondence with the relevant parties.

Based on the procedures performed, we found the assumptions of
management in relation to assessment on provision for impairment
of loan to the related company to be supportable by available
evidence.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
other information. The other information comprises all
of the information included in the annual report other
than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements
does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated
financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements
that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The audit committee is responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.
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Hitpfz 8

ERREFAHEMESAE - HUESBRFRA
HMPTEES - ETBREGA SRR LB IR EED

wE -

B GEEPHBRROBALL TIREEMES - T
M TEZFEMEE BRI ANEZEw o

BABLMYEEPHRROEFT - RANEEEHME
HpE8 @ EiEET  EEEMESSTEGAH
MR EMERDERT A TROBRFEERR
BREUFFEERERRERIER

HERRAEBHITHIE  MRBRMARBSEMERTFE
BEAREREL BB EREXFE - HEETHE R
2B EAHRE -

EERENZEERGAUBRRARENTR

BERAEEABERBEEBSHMASRHN(ER
MREER) RBEB(RRGRID M REREREE
EMPEESMHHRE  UHERSREHESTH
BEROBE T FERRRFFRERMEBEAHER
BRAFFFBAREHRE

ERBREVBREAES  EFAFTHESEEREL
LR WEERBA TRERSELLEAENE
B ARERFELERGTER  RIFEZAEH
BEREBRNIFLELE  SFNEEMERNERS

o

v

ZZEBe/RAREEERENYHREIBIE -

Bt



AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of
the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents
of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we
exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Independent Auditor’s Report
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the
directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report
to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease
to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner
that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding the financial information of the
entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit.
We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the audit committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

We also provide the audit committee with a
statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the audit
committee, we determine the matter that was of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and is therefore
the key audit matter. We describe the matter in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Mak Tze Leung, William.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 29 March 2018

Independent Auditor’s Report
35 3L &% BUED ¥R B

REARETREMBRRAENEE S

HAPEREZZESRER  SARFETEER
B ERERERBEER  YEMFIERBERES
B WA R ERPIBLIENMEREMEME
8 UREBERNERT - 18R EEE -

tHEEZZ 8 SRBNERT - RIFEEHRLERY
AHGRAMBHREANBARAEE - AMEKERE
A1 - RMESHBE RS PG LEIR - FRIPA
RERTAFLARFBEELER  ERRFRNB
AT - IRAERHPAERMRE T BBREHERD
BEARBEBELNARNER - BHIVRENEERS
FIBBZEIR ©

H BRI AZ B AN IR & BB At

o=

BEBARETR °

BERKES TSR
B E AN

'S —E—N\FE=A-1+NH

—Z—+FFH Annual Report 2017

87



88

Consolidated Income Statement
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-P—tFT-A=t—ALFE

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other gains/(losses), net

Selling and distribution costs
General and administrative expenses

Operating profit

Finance income
Finance costs

Finance income, net

Profit before income tax
Tax expense

Profit for the year
Profit attributable to:

Equity holders of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Earnings per share
Basic and diluted

The notes on pages 95 to 175 are an integral part of
these consolidated financial statements.

Softpower International Limited
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2017 2016
—E—tfF —TNEF
HKS$’000 HKS'000
FET T
650,461 619,203
(441,328) (434,588)
209,133 184,615
2,623 (4,113)
(23,542) (20,833)
(112,180) (105,172)
___________ 76,034 54497
10,359 5,239
(2,219) (1,876)
,,,,,,,,,,,, 5140 3363
84,174 57,860
(9,386) (7,297)
74,788 50,563
74,945 50,572
(157) (9)
74,788 50,563
HK cents HK cents
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income:
Item that will not be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss

Actuarial gain on post-employment
benefit obligations, net of tax

Item that may be subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss

Currency translation differences

Other comprehensive income
for the year, net of tax

Total comprehensive income
for the year

Total comprehensive income
attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company
Non-controlling interests

The notes on pages 95 to 175 are an integral part of
these consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
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___________ 74,788 = 30,363

935 91

(4) 404

931 495

75,719 51,058

75,876 51,067

(157) (9)

75,719 51,058
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e B E
As at 31 December 2017
R=F—+tF+=-A=+—H

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Loan to a related company
Pledged certificate of deposit
Rental deposits and other assets

Current assets

Inventories

Trade receivables

Deposits, prepayments and other
receivables

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Tax recoverable

Pledged certificate of deposit

Pledged bank deposits

Cash and bank balances

Total assets

The notes on pages 95 to 175 are an integral part of

&E

FRBEE
E NG
ERT—HRERT
B 7 5RE
HERSMNEAMEE

RBEE

8

B 5 RUGIA

®rE - BN EMER
IR

RO BEFARRZ
TRIEE

A W El AR
[REEREER )
BRI T

e MIRTTHE

HEE

Note
BRE

13
17
19
17

16
17

17
18
19

19
20

2017 2016
—E—+tF ZERF
HKS’000 HKS$’000
FTHET FHET
5,317 5,409
78,357 77,746

— 10,000

7,327 6,732
__________ 91000 99887
204,341 159,439
119,390 127,180
60,906 23,625
2,744 1,651

— 17

10,000 o
37,000 37,000
146,571 149,374
580,952 498,286
671,953 598,173

these consolidated financial statements.

Softpower International Limited
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EQUITY

Equity holders

Share capital

Reserves
Non-controlling interests
Total equity

LIABILITIES

Non-current liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities
Other non-current liabilities

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables
Taxation payable
Borrowings

Total liabilities
Total equity and liabilities

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e B E
As at 31 December 2017
RZZT—+tF+=A=+—H

2017 2016
—E—+tF —T—RF
Note HK$’000 HKS’000
MIsE FET FHEIT
R
EZEBEEA
N 21 26,665 26,665
e 22 485,377 409,611
512,042 436,276
IR i — (8)
RS 512,042 436,268
a&E
FRBEME
FEERIEEE 24 436 181
BEMIERBEE 2,572 3,457
____________ 3008 3638
HREEE
BN EMENFRIE 25 82,436 80,546
i ANE R 3,990 3,730
== 23 70,477 73,991
156,903 158,267
wWaE 159,911 161,905
HEZKEE 671,953 598,173
REBEEFE 424,049 340,019
HEERABEE 515,050 439,906

The financial statements on pages 88 to 175 were
approved by the board of Directors on 29 March 2018

and were signed on its behalf:

Lai Guanglin

Director 2%

The notes on pages 95 to 175 are an integral part of
these consolidated financial statements.

FeE 1 HMIERARCHETEN T —\F=

AZThABR#E  IRKREFEHRE

Yu Ben Ansheng 81 &4
Director 2%

F95E1758 2 MIFE R FERE MG IRER 2 EERRED
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

FeEREER

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-_Z—+F+-A=+—HIFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company
FATEGRAAREDH

Share based Non-
Share Share Capital Merger  Statutory Other  Exchange  payment  Retained  controlling
capital - premium reserve reserve reserve Teserve Teserve feseve  eamings  interests Total
hlor:
Hff R

Br o BiEE ArER  AMBRE  AEER 0 BR EXER  GER  RELN MREE 4B
HOODD  HGOO0 MO0 MO0 HKSOD  HKSODD  HKSODD SO0 WSO RSO0 RS
TR Thr  TEr  TAn  TRL TAR TAL  TEr TR TR TER

At lanuary 2016 S
A (Lo UGHR ST A0 BRI Mk R T ik
Proft or the year KER R = - - - - - - -0 0 5053

Other comprehensiveincome:~~~ Ef 2N
Actuarial gain on postemployment BB TER|ETS
henefit obligations, net of tax e
e - - - - - W - - - -
Currency tranglton differences ~ SHAEEE - - - - - - 404 - - - o

Total comprehensive income KERAENGRES

for the year = = = = = 9 404 = 50572 9) 51,058
Transactons with owners: HREAIRS
Share based payment Wi B
it = S S S = - - 8 - - B
Transfer upon lapse of share RERExyES
options = = = = = = = (152) 152 = =
Captalfrom non-controling FERERNES
interests - - - s = - - - - 1 1
At 31 December 2016 RZEE
t2h=1-H 26,665 126,618 34115 3,700 U 200 1,107 5197 238 580 (8) 436,268

The notes on pages 95 to 175 are an integral part of F95E 1758 2 T BULFir e MRk 2 BEEHHm o
these consolidated financial statements.

Softpower International Limited &EHEIBEEAERAF



At 1 January 2017

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income:;

Actuarial gain on post- employment
henefit obligations, net of tax

Currency translation differences

Total comprehensive income
for the year

Transactions with owners:
Share based payment

(Changes in ownership interests in
subsidiaries without changes of

control

At 31 December 2017

The notes on pages 95 to 175 are an integral part of
these consolidated financial statements.

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

FEEREER

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-_Z—+F+-A=1+—HILFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

KTREREARLEEH
Share hased Non-
Share Share Capital Merger  Statutory Other  Exchange  payment  Retained controlling
capital  premium  reserve  reseve  reserve reseve  reseve  reseve earnings  interests Total
HkiA
Hf -t
B hOEE EABR  GHEE  LRRAE B EXRE NARE  REEA FERER 2]
HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
Thn THr TR TR TEn T T T TR TEn TEn
RoE-tE
-B-A 26,665 126,618 3115 3,700 U 10 1,107 5197 238,580 (8 436,268
KER R = = - - - - - - M (57) 74788
Ef2ENG:
RRARNER
N
HkRER - - - - - 95 - - - - 95
gHiagEE = - - - - - 1] - - - (o
FERRENGER
- - - - - 95 (4 - U (157) 75719
AL
IR AR
ftit = - - - - - - 5 - - 5
TEHk%
o N
sy - - - - - - - - (165) 165 -
ﬁig_{g
TZA=t-A %6665 126618 3115 3,700 U 1,205 1103 52 313360 -

F95E1758 2 MIFE R FERE MG IRER 2 EERRAED
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

FEBeiER

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-_ZT—+tF+-A=+—RALFE

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations
Interest paid

Interest received

Income tax paid

Net cash generated from operating
activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and
equipment

Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Dividend income from financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss

Loan to a related party

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Drawdown of borrowings

Repayment of borrowings

Purchase of pledged certificate of
deposit

Decrease in pledged bank deposits

Capital from non-controlling interests

Net cash (used in)/generated from
financing activities

Net decrease in cash and cash
equivalents

Exchange differences

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning
of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of
the year

The notes on pages 95 to 175 are an integral part of

these consolidated financial statements.

REXBCHERE
ERHE

BEUFE
EAEHR

REEBELHR TR

REXBCRERE
BAME - BEKEE

HEME - B &R E
RS TIR

BAREBEFARTLZ
ERMEEZBERA

ERT—HRERT

LB RE TR EFER

BMEEBZHERE
RAEE
BERE

BADERERE

SRR (117 HORL
RIS E S

BMETB(FAA)/ELE
BREFE

Be MR EEWRD
R

b = HR

FUzHREMRE

FRZAERAE
EEW

Softpower International Limited &EHEIBEEAERAF

2017 2016
—B—tF —E—REF

Note HK$’000 HK$'000
BRE THERT FAET
27 3,946 64,538
(2,240) (1,753)

10,341 3,785

(9,038) (6,208)

____________ Sy 60362

(3,312) (2,500)

27 125 106
78 113

- (77,746)

___________ (3,109)  (80,027)
470,445 376,480

(473,959) (374,368)

— (10,000)

— 24,000

— 1

___________ 35199 16113

(3,614) (3,552)

811 (270)

20 149,374 153,196
20 146,571 149,374

E95E175 8 2 MIFE Rt FERE ME R < BERRERD



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GENERAL INFORMATION

Softpower International Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) are
principally engaged in trading of construction
materials, mainly pipes and fittings.

The Company is a limited liability company
incorporated in Bermuda. The address of its
registered office is Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria
Street, Hamilton HM 12, Bermuda. The Company’s
shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Hong Kong Stock
Exchange”).

These consolidated financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HKS”), unless
otherwise stated. These consolidated financial
statements have been approved for issue by the
Board of Directors on 29 March 2018.

fr e MEmRMEE

—REHR

BHBEBRARQR([ARR])REKE QR (5
BWIAREDEBREZEMH(EBREEEBM
EMIZES -

AR AE—HEBREFMK I 2ER AT -
s EE AL Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria Street,
Hamilton HM 12, Bermuda ° ZNA &0 FE & & Bt
BRI ERARI(TEBB R ER LT ©
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BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies adopted in
the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap.622) under the historical cost
convention, as modified by the revaluation of
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
which are carried at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the
process of applying the Group’s accounting policies.
The areas involving a higher degree of judgement
or complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the consolidated
financial statements, are disclosed in Note 4.

The following amendments to standards are
mandatory for the Group’s financial year
beginning 1 January 2017. The adoption of these
amendments to standards does not have any
significant impact to the results and financial
position of the Group. The amendments to HKAS
7 require disclosure of changes in liabilities arising
from financing activities.

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for
Unrealised Losses

Amendments to HKFRS 12 As part of the Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle

Softpower International Limited &EHEIBEEAERAF

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fr e MEmRMEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

The following new standards, amendments to
standards and interpretations have been issued but
are not effective for the financial year beginning 1
January 2017 and have not been early adopted by
the Group.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments?

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers!

HKFRS 16 Leases?

HKFRS 17 Insurance contracts’

Amendments to HKFRS 1 First time Adoption of HKFRS!

Amendments to HKFRS2  Classification and Measurement of Share-
based Payment Transaction®

Amendments to HKFRS 4 Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
with HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts*

Amendments to HKFRS9  Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation?

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between

HKAS 28 an Investor and its Associate or Joint

Venture*

Amendments to HKFRS 15 Clarifications to HKFRS 15!

Amendments to HKAS 28 Investments in associates and Joint
ventures®

Amendments to HKAS 28 As part of the Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle!

Amendments to HKAS40  Transfers of investment property’

HK (IFRIC) 22 Foreign currency transactions and advance
consideration

HK (IFRIC) 23 Uncertainty over income tax treatments?

Amendments to HKFRSs ~ Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-

2017 Cycle?

effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2018

effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2019

effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2021

effective date to be determined
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BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

The Group’s assessment of the impact of these
new standards, amendments to standards and
interpretations is set out below:

HKFRS 9, ‘Financial instruments’

HKFRS 9 addresses the classification, measurement
and derecognition of financial assets and financial
liabilities, introduces new rules for hedge
accounting and a new impairment model for
financial assets.

The Group has reviewed its financial assets
and liabilities. The Group does not expect the
new guidance to affect the classification and
measurement of the financial assets.

There will be no impact on the Group’s accounting
for financial liabilities, as the new requirements only
affect the accounting for financial liabilities that are
designated at fair value through profit or loss and
the Group does not have any such liabilities. The
derecognition rules have been transferred from
HKAS 39 ‘Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement’ and have not been changed.

The new impairment model requires the
recognition of impairment provisions based on
expected credit losses rather than only incurred
credit losses as is the case under HKAS 39. It applies
to financial assets classified at amortised cost,
debt instruments measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income, contract assets
under HKFRS 15 ‘Revenue from Contracts with
Customers’, lease receivables, loan commitments
and certain financial guarantee contracts. Based
on the assessments undertaken to date, the Group
does not expect significant increase or decrease in
the loss allowance for trade debtors.

Softpower International Limited &EHEIBEEAERAF

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

The new standard also introduces expanded
disclosure requirements and changes in
presentation. These are expected to change the
nature and extent of the Group’s disclosures about
its financial instruments particularly in the year of
the adoption of the new standard.

HKFRS 9 must be applied for financial years
commencing on or after 1 January 2018. The
Group will apply the new rules retrospectively
from 1 January 2018, with the practical expedients
permitted under the standard. Comparatives for
2017 will not be restated.

HKFRS 15, ‘Revenue from contracts with customers’

The HKICPA has issued a new standard for the
recognition of revenue. This will replace HKAS 18
which covers contracts for goods and services and
HKAS 11 which covers construction contracts and
the related literature.

The new standard is based on the principle that
revenue is recognised when control of a good or
service transfers to a customer.

The standard permits either a full retrospective or a
modified retrospective approach for the adoption.

Management is currently assessing the effects
of applying the new standards on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements. Based on the
assessment undertaken up to date, it is considered
that the new standard does not have a significant
impact on the Group’s revenue recognition.

HKFRS 15 is mandatory for financial years
commencing on or after 1 January 2018. The
Group intends to adopt the standard using the
modified retrospective approach which means
that the cumulative impact of the adoption will
be recognised in retained earnings as of 1 January
2018 and that comparatives will not be restated.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

HKFRS 16, ‘Leases’

HKFRS 16 was issued in January 2016. It will
result in almost all leases being recognised on
the balance sheet, as the distinction between
operating and finance leases is removed. Under the
new standard, an asset (the right to use the leased
item) and a financial liability to pay rentals are
recognised. The only exceptions are short-term and
low-value leases.

The accounting for lessors will not significantly
change.

The standard will affect primarily the accounting for
the Group’s operating leases. As at the reporting
date, the Group has non-cancellable operating
lease commitments of HK$213,091,000.

The Group has not yet assessed the adjustments,
if any, are necessary for example because of the
change in the definition of the lease term and the
different treatment of variable lease payments
and of extension and termination options. It is
therefore not yet possible to estimate the amount
of right-of-use assets and lease liabilities that will
have to be recognised on adoption of the new
standard and how this may affect the Group’s
profit or loss and classification of cash flows going
forward.

HKFRS 16 is mandatory for financial years
commencing on or after 1 January 2019. At this
stage, the Group does not intend to adopt the
standard before its effective date. The Group
intends to apply the simplified transition approach
and will not restate comparative amounts for the
year prior to first adoption.

There are no other standards and interpretations
that are not yet effective and that would be
expected to have a material impact on the entity
in the current or future reporting periods and on
foreseeable future transactions.

Softpower International Limited &EHEIBEEAERAF

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(a)

Consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity (including a
structured entity) over which the Group has
control. The Group controls an entity when
the Group is exposed to, or has rights to,
variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity.
Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date
on which control is transferred to the Group.
They are deconsolidated from the date that
control ceases.

The Group applies the acquisition method
to account for business combinations. The
consideration transferred for the acquisition
of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets
transferred, the liabilities incurred to the
former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group. The
consideration transferred includes the fair
value of any asset or liability resulting from
a contingent consideration arrangement.
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their
fair values at the acquisition date.

The excess of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest
in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair
value of any previous equity interest in the
acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable
net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill.
If the total of consideration transferred, non-
controlling interest recognised and previously
held interest measured is less than the fair
value of the net assets of the subsidiary
acquired in the case of a bargain purchase,
the difference is recognised directly in the
income statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M H R

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(a)

Softpower International Limited

Consolidation (Continued)

Inter-group transactions, balances
and unrealised gains on transactions
between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the transferred asset.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have
been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any
retained interest in the entity is re-measured
to its fair value at the date when control is
lost, with the change in carrying amount
recognised in profit or loss. The fair value is
the initial carrying amount for the purposes
of subsequently accounting for the retained
interest as an associate, joint venture or
financial asset. In addition, any amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in respect of that entity are accounted
for as if the Group had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities. This may
mean that amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified
to profit or loss.

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for
at cost less impairment. Cost includes direct
attributable costs of investment. The results
of subsidiaries are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividends received
and receivable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a
manner consistent with the internal reporting
provided to the chief operating decision-
maker. The chief operating decision-maker,
who is responsible for allocating resources
and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as the
executive directors of the Company that
makes strategic decisions.

Foreign currency translation
(i)  Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial
statements of each of the Group’s
entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity
operates (the “functional currency”).
The consolidated financial statements
are presented in HKS, which is the
Company’s functional and presentation
currency.

(iij) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are
translated into the functional currency
using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions
or revaluation where items are
remeasured. Foreign exchange gains
and losses resulting from the settlement
of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates
of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in the income statement.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(iii) Group companies

The results and financial position of
all the Group entities (none of which
has the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation
currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

— assets and liabilities for each
statement of financial position
presented are translated at the
closing rate at the date of that
statement of financial position;

— income and expenses for each
income statement are translated
at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which
case income and expenses are
translated at the dates of the
transactions); and

— all resulting exchange differences
are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences
arising from the translation of the
net investment in foreign operations,
and of borrowings and other currency
instruments designated as hedges of
such investments, are taken to other
comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)
(iii) Group companies (Continued)

Goodwill and fair value adjustments
arising on the acquisition of a foreign
entity are treated as assets and liabilities
of the foreign entity and translated at
the closing rate. Currency translation
differences arising are recognised in
other comprehensive income.

Disposal of foreign operation

On the disposal of a foreign operation
(that is, a disposal of the Group’s entire
interest in a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of control over
a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation, a disposal involving loss
of joint control over a joint venture
that includes a foreign operation, or
a disposal involving loss of significant
influence over an associate that
includes a foreign operation), all of
the currency translation differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that
operation attributable to the owners of
the company are reclassified to profit or
loss.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, comprising,
leasehold improvements, plant and
machinery, equipment, furniture and fixtures
and motor vehicles are stated at historical
cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses. Historical
cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M H R

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(d)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated
with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably.
The carrying amount of the replaced part
is derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance expenses are charged to the
consolidated income statement during the
financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment is calculated using the straight-
line method to allocate their costs to their
residual values over their estimated useful
lives, as follows:

Plant, machinery and  3-10 years
equipment

Leasehold 5 years or the lease
improvements period, if shorter

Office furniture, 3-5 years
fixtures and fittings

Office equipment 3-5 years

Computer equipment  3-5 years

Motor vehicles 3-10 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives
are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at
the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined
by comparing proceeds with carrying amount
and are recognised within ‘Other gains/
(losses), net’ in the consolidated income
statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(e)

(f)

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries
and non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life,
for example goodwill, are not subject to
amortisation and are at least tested annually
for impairment. Assets are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount
by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value
less costs to sell and value in use. For the
purposes of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped at the lowest levels for which
there are separately identifiable cash flows
(i.e. CGUs). Non-financial assets other
than goodwill that suffered an impairment
are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at each reporting date.

Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following categories: at fair value through
profit or loss, loans and receivables, and
available-for-sale. The classification depends
on the purpose for which the financial assets
were acquired. Management determines the
classification of its financial assets at initial
recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M H R

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(f)  Financial assets (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Softpower International Limited

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are financial assets held
for trading. A financial asset is classified
in this category if acquired principally
for the purpose of selling in the short
term. Derivatives are classified as held
for trading unless they are designated
as hedges. Assets in this category are
classified as current assets if expected
to be settled within 12 months of the
balance sheet date; otherwise, they are
classified as non-current.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-
derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. They are
included in current assets, except for
those with maturities greater than 12
months after the end of the reporting
period. These are classified as non-
current assets. The Group’s loans and
receivables include “trade receivables”,
“cash and bank balances”, “bank
deposits”, and “other loans, receivables
and deposits” in the consolidated
statement of financial position.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fr e MEmRMEE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICIES (Continued)

REEEREHEE 9

TREEE)

(f)  Financial assets (Continued) (f)

JRHELHEE

(iii) Available-for-sale financial assets (iii)

Available-for-sale financial assets
are non-derivatives that are either
designated in this category or not
classified in any of the other categories.
They are included in non-current assets
unless the investment matures or
management intends to dispose of the
investment within 12 months of the end
of the reporting period.

Regular way purchases and sales of
financial assets are recognised on the
trade-date, the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Investments are initially recognised
at fair value plus transaction costs for
all financial assets not carried at fair
value through profit or loss. Financial
assets at fair value through profit or
loss are initially recognised at fair value
and transaction costs are expensed in
the consolidated income statement.
Financial assets are derecognised when
the rights to receive cash flows from
the investments have expired or have
been transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership. Available-for-
sale financial assets and financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss are
subsequently carried at fair value.
Loans and receivables are subsequently
carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any
provision for impairment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M H R

2.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(f)

Softpower International Limited

Financial assets (Continued)

(iii) Available-for-sale financial assets

(Continued)

Gains or losses arising from changes
in the fair value of the “Financial
assets at fair value through profit or
loss” category are presented in the
consolidated income statement in the
period in which they arise. Dividend
income from financial assets at fair
value through profit is recognised in the
consolidated income statement as part
of “Other gain/(losses), net” when the
Group’s right to receive payments is
established.

Changes in the fair value of monetary
and non-monetary securities classified
as available-for-sale are recognised in
other comprehensive income.

When securities classified as available-
for-sale are sold or impaired, the
accumulated fair value adjustments
recognised in equity are included in the
income statement as gains and losses
from investment securities.

Dividends on available-for-sale equity
instruments are recognised in the
income statement when the Group’s
right to receive payment is established.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(f)

(8)

Financial assets (Continued)

(iii) Available-for-sale financial assets
(Continued)

For financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, the fair values of quoted
investments are based on current bid
prices. If the market for a financial asset
is not active (and for unlisted securities),
the Group establishes fair value by using
valuation techniques. These include the
use of recent arm’s length transactions,
reference to other instruments that
are substantially the same, discounted
cash flow analysis, and option pricing
models, making maximum use of
market inputs and relying as little as
possible on entity-specific inputs.

The Group assesses at the end of
each reporting period whether there
is objective evidence that a financial
asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired.

Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the
risks and rewards of ownership are retained
by the lessor are classified as operating
leases. Receipts or payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives paid
to lessees or received from the lessor) are
recognised as income or expenses in the
consolidated income statement on a straight-
line basis over the period of the lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M H R

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(h)

(i)

(i)

Softpower International Limited

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value. Cost is determined
using the first-in, first-out (“FIFO”) method.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less
applicable variable selling expenses.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised
initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less provision for
impairment. A provision for impairment of
trade and other receivables is established
when there is objective evidence that the
Group will not be able to collect all amounts
due according to the original terms of
receivables. The amount of the provision is
the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the original
effective interest rate. The carrying amount
of the assets is reduced through the use of
an allowance account, and the amount of the
loss is recognised in the consolidated income
statement. When trade and other receivables
are uncollectible, they are written off against
the allowance account for receivables.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited to the consolidated
income statement.

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents include cash
in hand, deposits held at call with banks
and bank overdrafts. In the consolidated
statement of financial position, bank
overdrafts are shown within borrowings in
current liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(k)

U]

(m)

(n)

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.
Incremental costs directly attributable to the
issue of new shares or options are shown in
equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.

Trade payables

Trade payables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value, net of transaction costs incurred.
Borrowings are subsequently stated at
amortised cost; any difference between
the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and
the redemption value is recognised in the
consolidated income statement over the
period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right
to defer settlement of the liability for at least
twelve months after the end of reporting
period.

Borrowings costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended
use or sale, are added to the cost of those
assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or
sale.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M H R

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(n)

(o)

Borrowings costs (Continued)

Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs eligible
for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they are
incurred.

Employee benefits
(i) Employee leaves

Employee entitlements to annual leave
are recognised when they accrue to
employees. A provision is made for
the estimated liability for annual leave
as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the end of reporting
period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity leave are not recognised until
the time of leave.

(ii) Bonus plans

The expected cost of bonus payments
are recognised as a liability when
the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of
services rendered by employees and a
reliable estimate of the obligation can
be made.

Liabilities for bonus plans are expected
to be settled within twelve months and
are measured at the amounts expected
to be paid when they are settled.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fr e MEmRMEE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2. FEEEREHHF @)
POLICIES (Continued)

(o) Employee benefits (Continued) (o) EERTF (&)

(iii) BURZEFEE)

(iii) Pension obligations (Continued)

Following the adoption of the
Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”)
Scheme in December 2000, all
employees of the Group employed in
Hong Kong joined the MPF Scheme.
Under this scheme, employees and
the Group are required to make
contributions to the scheme calculated
at 5% of the individual employee’s
monthly basic salaries, subject to a cap
of HKS$1,500. The Group’s contributions
to this scheme are expensed when they
are due. The assets of the scheme are
held separately from those of the Group
in independently administered funds.

The Group’s employees in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”) are
covered by various government
sponsored pension plans. These
government agencies are responsible
for the pension liabilities to these
employees. The relevant group
companies pay monthly contributions
to these pension plans based on certain
percentages of the salaries, subject to a
certain ceiling.

E-ZETTF+ - ARMASIERTE
w([BEEETEIE AEBEEE
ZHEETITHERHEBESE - B
BUtETEl - BB RASEHARER
BEFAELRFHFE5% ' A1,5008 T
B ERRFEIMHR - AEEMULETE]
ER Z BN BB AR - 5121
ZQFEEZK%IZQF P FEE - A
BUEEESER

AEERPEARAME(HED 2
BEAZAZHABRMN LM RKE
itEl - ZERTRBELERER 2R
NKEBEEE - AKEETHBAR
REHFETAESLLUAET ERA
[R) » FAMZFRKSFEIHR -

—Z—+FFH Annual Report 2017

115



116

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Employee benefits (Continued)

(iii) Pension obligations (Continued)

The employees employed by the
operations in Macau are members of
the government-managed retirement
benefits schemes operated by the
Macau government. The Macau
operations are required to pay a
monthly fixed contribution to the
retirement benefits schemes to fund
the benefits. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to the retirement
benefits schemes operated by the
Macau government is to make the
required contributions under the
schemes.

Under these plans, the Group has
no legal or constructive obligation
to make further payments once the
required contributions have been
paid. Contributions to these plans are
expensed as incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fr e MEmRMEE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2. FEEEREHHF @)

POLICIES (Continued)

(o) Employee benefits (Continued) (o) EERTF (&)
(iv) Share-based payment (iv) URGHBEBZ(TIF
The Group operates an equity-settled, LK%IT&??EH&M%:: VAR 7 32 1+t
share-based compensation plan, under WINEETE - LASRIE B IR ARG 1E

which the entity receives services from
employees as considerations for equity
instruments (options) of the Group.

AWERA E B T A (BB R
B - BB RERBAREBBERN A
ﬁ‘{gﬁﬁﬁﬁmﬁﬁﬁi - REBHINI

The fair value of the employee services ERS B ST ’},EE'\E&H:' =3Ik
received in exchange for the grant of %E’]@f‘tﬁ@ﬁ

the options is recognised as an expense.
The total amount to be expensed is
determined by reference to the fair
value of the options granted:

o including any market performance
conditions (for example, an
entity’s share price);

o excluding the impact of any service
and non-market performance
vesting conditions (for example,
profitability, sales growth targets
and remaining an employee of
the entity over a specified time
period); and

o including the impact of any non-
vesting conditions (for example,
the requirement for employees
to save or holding shares for a
specified period of time).

o  BREEMMSEEGE(HIINE
BHAE)

o TEBEARFBMIEMISEER
TR (BN B RIgE ) ~ SHE
3= Tﬁ%ﬂﬁ%%l&%ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁlﬂq
BEER)NTE:
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M H R

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(o)

(p)

Softpower International Limited

Employee benefits (Continued)
(iv) Share-based payment (Continued)

The total expense is recognised over
the vesting period, which is the period
over which all of the specified vesting
conditions are to be satisfied. At the
end of each reporting period, the
entity revises its estimates of the
number of options that are expected
to vest based on the non-market
performance and service conditions. It
recognises the impact of the revision
of original estimates, if any, in the
income statement with a corresponding
adjustment to equity.

When the options are exercised, the
Company issues new shares. The
proceeds received net of any directly
attributable transaction costs are
credited to share capital (nominal value)
and share premium.

Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises
current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in
the consolidated income statement, except to
the extent that it relates to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(p) Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is
calculated on the basis of the tax laws
enacted or substantively enacted at
the statement of financial position
date in the places where the Company
and its subsidiaries operate and
generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken
in tax returns with respect to situations
in which applicable tax regulation is
subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the
basis of amounts expected to be paid to
the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax
Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised using
the liability method, on temporary
differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements. However, the
deferred income tax is not accounted
for if it arises from initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that
at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or
loss. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates and laws that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the
statement of financial position date and
are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised
or the deferred income tax liability is
settled.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(ii) Deferred income tax (Continued)

Inside basis differences (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit
will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are
provided on taxable temporary
differences arising from investments in
subsidiaries except for deferred income
tax liability where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary difference
is controlled by the Group and it is
probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Generally the Group is unable
to control the reversal of the temporary
difference for associates.

Deferred income tax assets are
recognised on deductible temporary
differences arising from investments in
subsidiaries only to the extent that it
is probable the temporary difference
will reverse in the future and there is
sufficient taxable profit available against
which the temporary difference can be
utilised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(p)

(a)

Current and deferred income tax (Continued)
(iij) Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and
liabilities are offset when there is
a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and when the deferred
income taxes assets and liabilities relate
to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either the taxable
entity or different taxable entities
where there is an intention to settle the
balances on a net basis.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group
has a present legal or constructive obligation
as a result of past events, it is probable that
an outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, and the amount has
been reliably estimated.

Provisions are measured at the present
value of the expenditures expected to be
required to settle the obligation using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the obligation. The
increase in the provision due to passage of
time is recognised as interest expense.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M H R

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(r)

Softpower International Limited

Revenue and income recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable, and
represents amounts receivable for goods and
services supplied, stated net of discounts,
returns and value added taxes. The Group
recognises revenue when the amount of
revenue can be reliably measured; when it is
probable that future economic benefits will
flow to the entity; and when specific criteria
have been met for each of the Group’s
activities, as described below. The Group
bases its estimates of return on historical
results, taking into consideration the type
of customer, the type of transaction and the
specifics of each arrangement.

(i) Sale of goods are recognised when
goods are delivered to customers, the
customer has accepted the products
and collectibility of the related
receivables is reasonably assured.

(ii)  Interest income is recognised on a time-
proportion basis using the effective
interest method.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the company’s
shareholders is recognised as a liability in
the Group’s and the Company’s financial
statements in the period in which the
dividends are approved by the Company’s
shareholders or directors, where appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fr e MEmRMEE

3.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3. BiBERER

3.1 BREREZE

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group'’s activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: market risk (including foreign
currency risk and interest rate risk), credit
and counterparty risk and liquidity risk. The
Group’s financial risk management focuses on
the unpredictability of financial markets and
seeks to minimise potential adverse effects
on the Group’s financial performance by
actively managing debt level and cash flow in
order to maintain a strong financial position
and minimising refinancing and liquidity risks
by attaining healthy debt repayment capacity,
appropriate maturity profile and availability
of banking facilities.

(a) Market risk
(i) Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates principally
in Hong Kong and in Macau and
is exposed to foreign exchange
risk arising from various currency
exposures, primarily with respect
to the United States dollars
(“USD”), Macau Pataca (“MOP”)
and Renminbi (“RMB”). Foreign
exchange risk mainly arises from
future commercial transactions,
recognised assets and liabilities,
which are denominated in a
currency that is not the functional
currency of the group entities.
In order to mitigate the foreign
currency risk, the Group has
been closely monitoring its
foreign currency exposure and
requirements and will arrange for
any hedging facilities if necessary.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M H R

3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a) Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Softpower International Limited

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

As HKS is pegged against USD
and MOP is pegged against HKS,
the Group is exposed to limited
exchange rate fluctuation. As
a result, the exchange rate risk
exposure in respect of USD and
MOP are not significant. While
for RMB, the exchange rate
fluctuation is relatively volatile.
At 31 December 2017, if RMB
had strengthened/weakened by
5% (2016: 5%) against HKS with
all other variables held constant,
post-tax profit would have been
HKS$638,000 higher/lower (2016:
post-tax profit of HK$345,000
higher /lower) respectively mainly
as a result of foreign exchange
gains/losses on translation of
RMB-denominated financial assets
and liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a) Market risk (Continued)

(ii)

Interest rate risk

The Group’s income and operating
cash flows are substantially
independent of changes in
market interest rates. The Group’s
interest-bearing assets mainly
include loan to a related company
and bank balances and deposits,
details of which have been
disclosed in Notes 17, 19 and 20.
The Group’s exposure to changes
in interest rates is also attributable
to its borrowings, details of which
have been disclosed in Note 23.
Borrowings carry at floating rates
expose the Group to cash flow
interest-rate risk whereas those
carry at fixed rates expose the
Group to fair value interest-rate
risk. As at 31 December 2017,
approximately 26% (2016: 33%)
of the Group’s borrowings were
carried at floating rates and
expose the Group to cash flow
interest-rate risk. The Group has
not used any interest rate swaps
to hedge its exposure against cash
flow interest-rate risks.

As at 31 December 2017, if
interest rate has increased/
decreased by 25 basis points with
all other variables held constant,
profit for the year ended 31
December 2017 would have been
HKS38,000 (2016: HK$51,000)
lower/higher, mainly as a result
of increase/decrease in interest
expense on borrowings.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M H R

3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit and counterparty risk

Credit risk mainly arises from loan to
a related company, bank deposits,
trade and other receivables, and other
deposits. The carrying amounts of these
balances substantially represent the
Group’s maximum exposure to credit
and counterparty risk in relation to
financial assets.

In respect of the loan to a related
company, as detailed in Note 28(e),
the Group obtained share mortgage
executed by the mortgagor and
guarantees executed by the guarantor
in favour of the Group as a continuing
security and continuing obligation for
performance by the borrower of its
obligations to minimize the credit risk.

As at 31 December 2016 and 2017 all
the bank deposits are deposited in high
quality financial institutions without
significant credit risk. The credit risk
on bank deposits is limited because
over 61% of the Group’s bank balances
are placed with subsidiaries of state-
owned banks and others are placed
with reputable financial institutions.
Management does not expect any loss
from non-performance of these banks.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit and counterparty risk (Continued)

(c)

In order to minimise the credit risk,
the management of the Group has
delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit
approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue trade
and other receivables. In addition,
the Group reviews regularly the
recoverable amount of each individual
trade and other receivables to ensure
that adequate impairment losses are
made for irrecoverable amounts. Rental
deposits made to landlords are also
considered to be of low risk. In this
regard, the directors of the Company
consider that the Group’s credit risk
is significantly reduced. Other than
the loan to a related company as
mentioned above, the Group has no
significant concentration of credit risk,
with exposure spread over a number of
counterparties and customers.

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management
includes maintaining sufficient cash and
availability of funding from an adequate
amount of committed credit facilities.
Management maintains rolling forecast
of the Group’s liquidity reserves which
comprises undrawn banking facilities
and cash and cash equivalents, on the
basis of expected cash flows.
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e M H R

3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c) Liquidity risk (Continued)

The table below analyses the Group’s
financial liabilities into relevant maturity
groupings based on the remaining
period at the date of financial reporting
to the contractual maturity date. The
amounts disclosed in the table are the
contractual undiscounted cash flows.

At 31 December 2017

Trade and other payables
Borrowings
Interest payment on borrowings

At 31 December 2016
Trade and other payables

Borrowings
Interest payment on borrowings

3.2 Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern in order to
provide returns for shareholders and benefits
for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of
capital.
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fr e MEmRMEE

3.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3. BBEREER®
3.2 Capital risk management (Continued) 3.2 EXRRERE(E)

In order to maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Group may adjust the amount
of dividends paid to shareholders, return
capital to shareholders, issue new shares or
sell assets to reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the
Group monitors capital on the basis of the
gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as total
bank borrowings divided by total equity.

The Group'’s strategy was to maintain a solid
capital base to support the operations and
development of its business in the long
term. Given its existing principal business,
management considers a gearing ratio as
measured by total bank borrowings to total
equity of not more than 50% as solid and
reasonable. The table below analyses the
Group’s capital structure at 31 December
2016 and 2017 as follows:

Total borrowings BEE

Total equity warEs

Gearing ratio BEEA]
Note:

Decrease in gearing ratio during the year is a result of
the increase in total equity.

RERFIABRERRRE - AEE R HERA
BRERIERNHRE - MBRREREER - #1T
FA e B B E AR AMER -

MEMRE % AEENEEARLX
EREEEARANEE - BEREL XN
TTEE AR IAEER -

TEBCRBEABFERENESER - U
RHAYHASENERLERER - 1
REZTBER  EEERAZRITHE
EBEEENEERTECEERARR
KENRS0% A THBEERRLERE - TXRA
AEBR-_ZE—AR"FER-_ZT—tF+=-A
=+ —HEXREB 2D

2017 2016

S .
HK$’000 HKS'000
FHT FHT
70,477 73,991
512,042 436,268
14% 17%

Kt

A B E R RSN -

—Z—+FFH Annual Report 2017

129



130

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation

The carrying value of trade receivables,
other loans and receivables, bank balances
and deposits, trade and other payables and
borrowings are a reasonable approximation
of their fair values. The fair value of financial
liabilities for disclosure purposes is estimated
by discounting the future contractual cash
flows at the current market interest rate that
is available to the Group for similar financial
instruments.

The table below analyses the Group’s
financial instruments carried at fair value as
at 31 December 2017 by level of the inputs
to valuation techniques used to measure fair
value. Such inputs are categorised into three
levels within a fair value hierarchy as follows:

— quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities
(level 1)

— inputs other than quoted prices
included within level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (that is, as prices) or
indirectly (that is, derived from prices)
(level 2)

— inputs for the asset and liability that are
not based on observable market data
(that is, unobservable inputs) (level 3)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

Financial assets CREE
— Investment funds —KREES

There were no transfers between levels 1 and
2 during the year.

The fair value of financial instruments that are
not traded in an active market (for example,
over-the-counter derivatives) is determined
by using valuation techniques. These
valuation techniques maximise the use of
observable market data where it is available
and rely as little as possible on entity specific
estimates. It includes quoted market price
or dealer quotes for similar instruments. If
all significant inputs required to fair value an
instrument are observable, the instrument is
included in level 2.

fr e MEmRMEE

3. BBEREER®

3.3 QAEEMEE)

Fair value as at Fair value as at
31 December 31 December
2017 2016

Fair value R-ZE—tHF RZE—RF
Hierarchy +ZHA=+—-H +=-A=+—H

AREEER KR REER NAREE
HK$’000 HKS$’000
FET FET

Level 2
E_ 2,744 1,651

FREIHEEE 2 HI R o

WENERTISEE 2@ T A (IS INT
ATH) ERABENERGEREEE -
ZEHEFEBREFNARAIEATISERE
ZHE  UTRERKBERBEEG
BREENUS R T ANTERES L HER
B - M eRITANAAEMEZMEE
RE ARG B - AlZeMmTARA
FIE o
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually
evaluated and are based on historical experience
and other factors, including expectations of future
events that are believed to be reasonable under
the circumstances. The estimates and assumptions
that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities of the Group are discussed below.

(a) Provision for impairment of loan to a related
company and trade and other receivables

The policy for provision for impairment of
loan to a related company and trade and
other receivables of the Group is based
on the evaluation of collectability and on
management’s judgement. A considerable
amount of judgement is required in assessing
the ultimate realisation of these receivables,
including the current creditworthiness
and the past collection history of each
counterparty. If the financial conditions of the
counterparties were to deteriorate, resulting
in an impairment of their ability to make
payments, additional allowances may be
required.

(b) Provision for impairment of inventories

The management of the Group reviews the
marketability of inventory items at the end of
each reporting period, and makes allowance
for obsolete and slow-moving inventory items
identified that are no longer suitable for sale.
The management estimates the net realisable
value for inventories based primarily on
the latest invoice prices and current market
conditions. The Group carries out an
inventory review on a product-by-product
basis at the end of each reporting period and
makes provision for obsolete items.

Softpower International Limited &EHEIBEEAERAF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Provision for bonus and customer claims

Management reviews the provision for
bonus and customer claims at the end
of each reporting period to determine
whether the provision is adequate based
on historical experience and most reliable
estimates. Significant judgement is required
in determining the provision for bonus and
customer claims.

Current and deferred income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in
various jurisdictions. Judgment is required
in determining the provision for income
taxes in each of these jurisdictions. There
are transactions and calculations during
the ordinary course of business for which
the ultimate tax determination is uncertain.
Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that
were initially recorded, such differences will
impact the income tax and deferred income
tax provisions in the period in which such
determination is made.

Deferred income tax assets relating to certain
temporary differences and tax losses are
recognized when management considers it
is probable that future taxable profits will
be available against which the temporary
differences or tax losses can be utilized.
When the expectation is different from the
original estimate, such differences will impact
the recognition of deferred income tax assets
and taxation charges in the period in which
such estimate is changed.

(d)

fr e MEmRMEE

AREFHERE
EHEENE DW%X%V EAL KRB FE
B et MA ENEERTERE

LR - mﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ
By FREANFIE

BN R AR SE P 1S B

$EIQ@WTHT£%EW% S B
RBERBROFAEHEER - FELH

% cEAREBTAE T REREREHR
EW&%&EE fie 5% F = B KR RIS
wERAENRYCEANEEE - AIFHER

Q%E E R BERREIRE B PS5 BB AE
PSS

EETEREZENVABRE B RLER
BHEEREEEBASARREAIREHEE
s A R E R S E R E R AR
BEmMER - ERHAzeREREMA
ZRE - ARERB SR E R E 2 B
NEEBEEMEHREEZRAMMBIRE
H o
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group determines its operating segments
based on the reports reviewed by the chief
operating decision-maker that are used to make
strategic decisions. The chief operating decision-
maker has been identified as the executive
directors of the Company. The chief operating
decision-maker assesses the performance of the
operating segments based on a measure of profit
attributable to equity holders of the Company.

During the year, the Group has only one reportable
segment, which is trading of pipes and fittings.
Trading of pipes and fittings includes wholesale,
retail and logistics operations substantially in Hong
Kong and Macau.

Geographical information
The Group is domiciled in Hong Kong. The Group’s

revenues from external customers by geographical
location are detailed below:

Hong Kong BE
Macau BRFT

Softpower International Limited &EHEIBEEAERAF
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TEEH

AEBIZEFEREERREMEHALEAELR
ROMEETHEEDT - AREERKER
RERETRBZHITES - HREKERKER
BARREDT B ARG ENAFZEEDH
HIZRIR

RER > AEERBREEBEMNEHES R
ATERNOE - EELEMEZBRIRE
BFHENRFI 2 B3 - TERYRELR -

HESHBER

AEBRNES - AEBERME DGR KB I
HEPHUWALT

Revenue
WA
For the year ended 31 December

BE+-A=t—HLFE

2017 2016
—B—tF —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET FAT
604,956 550,274
45,505 68,929
650,461 619,203
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fn e MG mRMEE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

The Group’s non-current assets by geographical

location are detailed below:

Hong Kong
Mainland China

OTHER GAINS/(LOSSES), NET

Net exchange gain/(loss)

Net gain on disposal of property, plant
and equipment

Gain/(loss) on financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss

Dividend income from financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss

Provision for impairment of loan to a
third party (Note 17)

Others

5. AFERE
REBIRE D ILHIERBEELT ¢
2017 2016
. - B o= —ET—RF
HK$’000 HKS’000
FET FHETT
&5 89,680 98,620
[ 9 3 1,321 1,267
91,001 99,887
6. HttsE (BE)FHE
2017 2016
—E—+tF TN
HK$’000 HKS’000
FHET FHETT
P& Uz (E1R)/F58 1,836 (675)
LEYE BENMKEZ
Wz F%58 125 9
Tﬁi/&mﬁ@ﬁr)\ﬁ 57 &Rl
BEZWE(EE) 69 (23)
BARBEFABZ SR
BEZBRBWA 78 113
BERT—RE=HHRER
#H(Hit17) - (4,100)
EHfb 515 476
2,623 (4,113)
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EXPENSES BY NATURE

Operating profit is arrived at after charging:

Cost of inventories sold (Note 16)
Auditor’s remuneration:
— Audit services
— Non-audit services
Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment (Note 13)
Employee benefit expenses (Note 8)
Operating lease payments (Note 13)
Provision for impairment of trade and
other receivables, net (Note 17)
Provision for impairment of
inventories, net
Other expenses

Representing:

Cost of sales

Selling and distribution costs
General and administrative expenses

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

Wages and salaries
Pension costs

— defined contribution plans
Share based payment

(Notes 21(b) and 22)

Softpower International Limited &EHEIBEEAERAF
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7. BAXME
L a IR TSIEBRESR
2017 2016
—E—+F —E—REF
HK$’000 HKS’000
FHT FHETT
BEREZTFERAN(HE16) 428,629 422,559
ZERET N &
— BRI 1,252 1,192
— JEEIX RIS 191 179
Y - BB NREITE
(B17t13) 3,408 2,697
8 TEMFEXZ (4:78) 80,221 74,309
ETHEE R (Hit13) 22,724 20,452
B 5 N E b e W BB E
&R (Ht17) 198 1,055
FEREREFE
2,540 1,919
B 37,887 36,231
577,050 560,593
R -
SHER A 441,328 434,588
$HE Ko HAA 23,542 20,833
—RITHREA 112,180 105,172
577,050 560,593
8. EEFFBX
2017 2016
—S—+5F —E—REF
HK$’000 HKS’000
FHT FHETT
TERES 77,925 72,109
RIKE KA
— TR RETE 2,241 2,117
VARS {7 A BERE 2 P 3R
(Hiat21(b) %222) 55 83
80,221 74,309




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

8. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (continued)

(a)

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments
were the highest in the Group for the year
include three (2016: three) directors whose
emoluments are reflected in the analysis
shown isn Note 30. The emoluments paid to
the remaining two (2016: two) individuals
were as follows:

Salaries and other short-term
employee benefits =w
Discretionary bonus
Pension costs
— defined contribution plans
Share based payment

The emoluments of the two (2016: two)
individuals fell within the following bands:

By BIEAL
RIRE AR

— ERR MG
CARR 7 A EEHE B0 A 35K

fr e MEmRMEE

EERFBX ®)

(a)

FehEMEHEES

TfumREHFAL

REAR AEERAUKSHALTEE=A
TE-RFZMEE HFLERK
30T R - XN TFEHBH MU (ZF
—NF )AL ZBEIT

2017 2016
—EB—tF —T—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TET
3,242 3,043

1,917 1,468

36 36

18 28

5,213 4,575

TEHR(ZEARF  ZR)BReRFALTZH
TN EE

2017 2016

—E—+F —E—REF
HK$1,500,001-HK$2,000,000 1,500,001/% JT. -2,000,0007% 7T, = =
HK$2,000,001-HK$2,500,000 2,000,001/8 7T, -2,500,0007%8 7T 1 1
HK$2,500,001-HK$3,000,000 2,500,001,8 7T, -3,000,00075 7T 1 1
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8. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (Continued) 8. EERAMX@®
(b) Senior management remuneration by band (b) SREBAEFMN-EHE
The remuneration of senior management fell ]

within the following bands:

Nil-HK$1,000,000

HK$1,000,001-HK$1,500,000
HKS$1,500,001-HK$2,000,000
HKS$2,000,001-HK$2,500,000
HKS2,500,001-HKS$3,000,000

9. FINANCE INCOME, NET

Bank and other interest income

Interest expense on bank borrowings

10. TAX EXPENSE

Current taxation:
Hong Kong profits tax
Overseas tax
Over-provision in prior years

Total current tax

Deferred taxation (Note 24):
Origination and reversal of

temporary differences

Tax expense

Softpower International Limited

BHERERAE

[

4 -1,000,0007% 7T,

1,000,001 JT -1,500,000/% 7T
1,500,001 JT -2,000,000/% JT
2,000,00178 7T -2,500,0007%8 7T
2,500,00178 7T -3,000,00075 JT.

9. MBWAFHE

P17 REMFIBIA
PITEEZABR T

10. BEXH

BIEATIA -
BAENEH
IR
AT R Z 4

BISAR IR A 2R

AEIETRIA (fr5t24) -
BN ERcELS MEE

BIEZ H

ARREEBABINZHMNF 58

2017 2016
—E—tF ZE—RF
2 3

1 J—

1 1

1 1

5 5

2017 2016
—EB—tF —E-RF
HKS$’000 HKS$'000
FTHET FHT
(10,359) (5,239)
2,219 1,876
(8,140) (3,363)

2017 2016
—ZE—+tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FTHET FHT
8,806 7,091

515 367

(6) (187)

9,315 7,271

71 26

9,386 7,297
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10. TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate
of 16.5% (2016: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable
profit for the year. Taxation on overseas profits has
been calculated on the estimated assessable profit
for the year at the rates of taxation prevailing in
the countries in which the Group operates.

The tax on the Group’s profit before income tax
differs from the theoretical amount that would
arise using the Hong Kong profits tax rate as

fr e MEmRMEE

10. BEXH @)

BB TG BLIA S AT 3 AR BOR AR 16.5%
(ZZ—AF : 16.5%)5HE « HIBATYIRES
P2 R RS A A B R ER 2
RITBLREE -

AEEBBARAGEN MR HRBERBE
BREHREMAE 2 Ewm R ZRNT

follows:
2017 2016
—E—+F —ET—RF
HKS$’000 HKS’000
F#ET FHT
Profit before income tax TR A 84,174 57,860
Tax calculated at tax rate of 16.5% 1216.5% ( ZZT—7N4F ¢
(2016: 16.5%) 16.5%) B KGTE 2 IR 13,889 9,547
Effect of different tax rates in other B rlE H RN R E 2
jurisdictions o2 (439) (588)
Utilisation of previously unrecognised  {§ o B AR FER 2 T IE & 18
tax loss (2,638) (2,346)
Unrecognised tax losses RIER T IEE B 524 304
Tax effect of income not subject to AR WA HIERE
taxation (1,990) (763)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for A 0FE 2 X H 2 FiTE 2 &
taxation purposes 46 1,330
Over-provision in prior years ZAIFEZE (6) (187)
Tax expense MIEX 9,386 7,297

—Z—+FFH Annual Report 2017



140

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M H R

11. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings
per share is based on the profit for the year
attributable to equity holders and weighted
average number of shares with adjustments where
applicable as follows:

Profit attributable to equity holders of 5T E &
the Company for the purpose of basic
earnings per share

Number of shares R&OEB
Weighted average number of ordinary
shares for the purpose of basic

earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by
adjusting the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding to assume conversion of
dilutive potential ordinary shares arising from the
Company’s share options. Diluted earnings per
share for the years ended 31 December 2016 and
2017 equal basic earnings per share as the exercise
of the outstanding share options would be anti-
dilutive.

12. DIVIDEND

At the Board meeting held on 29 March 2018, the
Board did not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2017
(2016: Nil).

Softpower International Limited &EHEIBEEAERAF

T%EE? EABEE{EBTWJ

AAEEREARN 2 BB
2 A F 2K

11. BRER

TRITAEERERNEF REERZFTIRE
FAERFE ARG RN REETE BRI

RS (FERTIAFARE)
2017 2016
e —E-AF
HKS’000 HKS’000
TR it

EARBH 2 ARRF

74,945 50,572
Thousands Thousands
T Fh%
1,333,270 1,333,270

STESREERNE  BEYHERITEREK 2

TE$¢’7HX%(T/EEI HE - UBRERFIEEEEEN
IARITHEBREEEHESR HE_T—F
F—F—+F+_A=+—HIEMBEAFE &
TERTEBEREARESTE - BIEMESF
Bz BREERFNHFNERERZR -

12. RE
RZEBE-—NFZAZT+ILBRTHNEEZLLH
F EFEeTERREEEZE T —+F+ A
=T —BIFEZREABRB(ZZT—RF &)
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fr e MEmRMEE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Cost

At 1 January 2017
Exchange differences
Additions
Disposals

At 31 December 2017

Accumulated depreciation

At 1January 2017
Exchange differences
Charge for the year
Disposals

At 31 December 2017

Net hook value
At 31 December 2017

Ak
RZE—t%-f-H
EREE
i
e

RoR-tE+2A=t-H

2EiE
R-E-tE-f-H
ERES
KEERE
e

R-E-tE+ZA=t-A

REFE
R-E—+&+-A=+-H

13. Y% - BERRE

Plant, Office

machinery furniture,
and Leasehold fixtures Office Computer Motor

equipment improvements  and fittings  equipment  equipment vehicles Total
BE-  HENE BOEEA

RERRE £ RERRE  XERE  EKRA It 2
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
Tén Thn TR TR TR TEn Tén
3692 10,420 965 3 4,537 8,674 28311
= = 6 = 3 25 34
490 3 93 26 238 2141 3312
(742) (106) = = = (838) (1,686)

O - B o4 om aen
3213 9,345 857 3 4,003 5471 22,902
= = 5 = 2 23 30
319 4 38 7 318 2,285 3,408
(742) (106) = = = (838) (1,686)

LMW e W 0 e s Mg
640 958 164 39 455 3,061 5317
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13.

14.

Softpower International Limited

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. ¥ - BERZE®
(Continued)
Plant, Office
machinery furniture,
and Leasehold fixtures Office Computer
equipment  improvements  and fittings equipment equipment  Motor vehicles Total
B HEMR  BAZHR-
e e X KERFE  XERE  EERE e o
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
i TR TR Thr TEx TiEx i
Cost A
At 1January 2016 RZF—E-F-H 3,567 10,338 875 7 4,444 6,822 26,073
Exchange differences EXEE = - 0 - 1) (19) (24)
Additions ME 37 8 9% 1 9 1871 2,500
Disposals e (222) = = (16) = = (238)
M31December 2016 WTE-RETTAST-E 360 1040 %S B 4T M ;31
Accumulated depreciation  Z1EE
At 1 January 2016 R=Z—7E-A-H 31 8,972 851 4 3713 3,703 20,454
Exchange differences B ES = = 0 - ) (16) (21)
Charge for the year rERME 24 n 10 5 91 1,784 2,697
Disposals & (222) - - (6) - - (228)
At 31 December 2016 RZE-"ETZA=t-H 3223 9,345 857 3 4,003 5471 22,902
Net book value REHE
At31December206  RZE—EFTZA=T-H 469 1075 108 20 534 3,003 5,409
Lease rentals amounting to HK$22,560,000 EyEMESEHRETENEERH DA A
(2016: HK$20,289,000) and HK$164,000 (2016: 22,560,000/ 7T (= Z — /<4 : 20,289,000/ 7T )
HK$163,000) relating to the lease of property and }164,000%8 7T (= ZF— /<4 : 163,000/87T) * I
motor vehicles respectively are included in the BTG E KRB (HE7)
consolidated income statement (Note 7).
SUBSIDIARIES 14. HIBAT

Details of principal subsidiaries which, in the
Directors’ opinion, materially affect the results
and/or net assets of the Group as at 31 December
2017, are set out in Note 33.

BHERERAE

EERREAEBZEER IR Tt F
T_A=+T " BZFEEBREATEZLEE
ERIENSIPA= SN T
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

Financial assets included in

consolidated statement of financial

position:

Trade receivables, deposits and other

receivables

Financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss (Note 18)

Pledged certificate of deposit

(Note 19)

Pledged bank deposits (Note 19)
Cash and bank balances (Note 20)

Total

Financial liabilities included in
consolidated statement of financial

position:
Trade and other payables
Borrowings (Note 23)

Total

CREERREGREY®
MRRE

BHRMHIR  HehH

i F& W R IR

BAofnBEFARGR S

REE(KiF18)
BIRIRF R
(H1:t19)

BRI T FER (AT 7E19)
R& MIRITEESR(HT7E20)

ETREEEEEREME
O

B 5 R HEAFER A
B8 (#1it23)

15. BEESAITNERMTA

fr e MEmRMEE

2017 2016
—E—+F T RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FET
228,061 217,744
2,744 1,651
10,000 10,000
37,000 37,000
146,571 149,374
424,376 415,769
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HKS$’000
TERT F5TT
65,567 76,852
70,477 73,991
136,044 150,843
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17.

16. INVENTORIES 16. #8
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HKS’000 HKS’000
FHET FHT
Merchandises P& fm 204,341 159,439
At 31 December 2017, the provision for impairment RZE—tF+HA=1+—H TERERE
of inventories amounted to approximately #93£19,201,00075 7T (ZF — /54 : 22,544,000/
HK$19,201,000 (2016: HKS22,544,000). JC) °©
The cost of inventories recognised as expenses BREZLWIAEEXNARIE N 2 FEKRANE
and included in cost of sales amounted to 428,629,000/ 70 ( —ZF— /<4 : 422,559,000/
HK$428,629,000 (2016:HK$422,559,000) (Note 7). 7)) (f4EE7) °
TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 17. ESZRHEMERRKIE
2017 2016
—ZE—tF AN
HKS’000 HKS’000
FET FHT
Trade receivables B Z WA 121,406 128,998
Less: provision for impairment B RE R (2,016) (1,818)
Trade receivables — net B S EWRIE — FRE 119390 127,180
Prepayments AR 37,919 17,539
Loan to an employee BERTFT—NUET 1,328 1,343
Other receivables, deposits and other ~ EAIFEUFRIE - 15 M EAMD
assets (note) BEN) 22,490 5,143
Rental deposits MEke 6,496 6,332
Loan to a related company ERT—HEERF
(Note 28(e)) (K17t (28(e)) 78,357 77,746
146,590 108,103
265,980 235,283
Less non-current portion: RIERENER (D
Rental deposits and other assets HEKRe NEMERE (7,327) (6,732)
Loan to a related company BERF—HEERT (78,357) (77,746)
180,296 150,805

144 Softpower International Limited

BHERERAE




17.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

The carrying amounts of trade receivables, other
receivables and rental deposits approximate their
fair values.

The loan to an employee is unsecured, interest-free
and repayable on demand.

Note:

Pursuant to a non-legally binding memorandum of
understanding (the “MOU”) entered into among the Group,
I REBEZRITEEMEEREMLAR (Agria NKY Seeds
Co., Ltd. or “ANKY”) and Agria Corporation (the “Transaction
Guarantor”) on 15 December 2017, the Group intends
to inject capital into and subscribe the equity interests in
ANKY (the “Proposed Transaction”). ANKY is an enterprise
established in the PRC principally engaged in the research,
production and marketing of corn seeds in the PRC and
controlled by an executive director of the Company.

Pursuant to the MOU, an earnest deposit of HK$15,000,000
(“Earnest Deposit”) was paid by the Group on 19 December
2017. The Earnest Deposit is unsecured, interest free and
shall be refunded to the Group prior to 31 May 2018 should
the Proposed Transaction not being materialised. Up to the
date of this report, the Proposed Transaction is still under
negotiation. This earnest deposit was included in “Other
receivables, deposits and other assets”.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and
other receivables are denominated in the following
currencies:

HKS BT
RMB AR
usD x5t
MOP JRPI
Others Efb

17.

fr e MEmRMEE

EZREMERFIES

BHRIFIR - Bt IRIANREER S 2 R
HELREFEEAAEERSE -

ERT B TIEER - 28 RRIFEERA

BIRSESE -

BEAEER _ZT—+tF+_A+HRBAEIFERLR
EEERERREMT AT (EFE) X Agria Corporation
(TR SERA DTN EEEZLR I REE
([FFETER]) AEBBISE RREER ERE(Z
ERP])  BRIEA—MRPBEKZHEE  FERSE
FREFHE EEARTHEERAARRG —LHITE
EEZHH AT

BEFBRERE  AEER - ZE—+F+-A+NED
ST E £15,000,0008 T ([HEL]) - BES AEIK
W aBERER - \FREA=+T—HRERETAK
EENTHARER - BEAREBH  BEXBINEW
B e I ESEREE EMEWEUE e kEME
EIRN -

A 5 A MR 2 SR 2 B T
SR

2017 2016
—E—tfF —EXEF
HKS’000 HKS$’000
Tt T
150,866 134,782
6,928 8,561
106,771 90,619
1,415 1,221

= 100

265,980 235,283
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17. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

The Group generally grants credit period of 60-120
days to its customers for its trading of pipes and
fittings operation. The ageing analysis of the trade

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M H R

EZREMERFEIES

AEB—RETEENEHEFIXERFRZE
BEHA602120K - B 5 RWFIZE B 2 Rk
DT ¢

receivables based on the due date is as follows:

Within credit period EEHA

1 to 30 days 1RE30K
31 to 60 days 31RE60K
61 to 90 days 61K E90K
91 to 120 days 91K E£120K
Over 120 days HBiE120K

2017 2016
—B—tF —E—RF
HKS$’000 HKS'000
TERT FHET
75,863 85,535
28,226 25,089
8,052 6,810
3,491 4,028
1,282 979
4,492 6,557
121,406 128,998

Trade receivables that are current or past due less
than four months are not considered impaired.
As of 31 December 2017, trade receivables of
HKS43,527,000 (2016: HKS41,645,000) were past
due but not considered to be impaired. These
relate to a number of independent customers for
whom there is no recent history of default. The
ageing analysis of these trade receivables is as
follows:

BNEAsk @EAUE A A T 2 B S RIKKIBTIEE
BERE -BE-_T—+tF+-_A=+—8 "
2 5 W RIEA43,527,0008 T ( ZF—/~N4F ¢
41,645,000 ) E B BAE R W R ARE © %
EREE— R EBPHERCHRIBIRFE
o ZEBSRWFTRZRRDITOT ¢

1 to 30 days 1XE30K
31 to 60 days 31RE60K
61 to 90 days 61K EF90K
91 to 120 days 91 RE120K
Over 120 days HBiE120K

146 Softpower International Limited EhEKRERAH

2017 2016
—E—+tHF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
28,226 25,089
8,052 6,810

3,491 4,028

1,248 979

2,510 4,739
43,527 41,645




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

17. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

(i)

fr e MEmRMEE

17. EZREMERTE S

Impaired trade receivables (i) EZEWRENRE
As at 31 December 2017, trade receivables R—EBE—+tF+_A=+—H &85
of HK$2,016,000 (2016: HK$1,818,000) were FE W7 IE 2,016,000 T ( ZF — /N F :
impaired and provided for. The individually 1,818,000/ 7T ) EfERER M - FRIERE
impaired receivables mainly relate to JEUGRIE * B B8 KB IE N RABA
customers which have significant delay in KERNSE,XFEHE - ZEREK B
repayment or are in unexpected difficult HiAm120K °
financial situations. These receivables are
past due more than 120 days.
Movements on the provision for impairment I REBGR REREEZEINT
of trade receivables are as follows:
2017 2016
—E—tHF —TE—RF
HKS$'000 HKS’000
FHET FHETT
At 1 January Rn—H—H 1,818 1,177
Provision for impairment B 210 1,055
Unused amount reversed R FIAREE (12) -
Receivables written off during the FREWFIAREUL E]
year as uncollectible T 0 88 — (414)
At 31 December R+=—A=+—8 2,016 1,818

The addition and release of provision for
impaired receivables have been included
in general and administrative expenses
in the consolidated income statement.
Amounts charged to the provision account
are generally written off when there is no
expectation of recovering additional cash.

Th B RUE JE WK TR 8 M RS 2 BB E AT
ANFAWBERANZ —BEITHRER ° i
BRPARNSE - RN BRI K@ 5E
HNR & RS o
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e M H R

17.

18.

19.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

(ii) Impaired other receivables

As at 31 December 2017, loan to a third party
of HK$4,100,000 (2016: HKS$4,100,000) was
impaired and provided for. Although the
loan was secured by certain assets of the
third party, the Group considered that the
recoverability may take a long time and was
uncertain. In this connection, the balance
amount of the loan was provided for.

Save as above, the other classes within
trade and other receivables do not contain
impaired assets.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the
reporting date is the fair value of each class
of receivables mentioned above. Save as
disclosed above, the Group does not hold any
collateral as security.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

17. EZREMERTE S

(i) EfEWERRREE

R-EB—+F+_-_A=+—H ERXF—
%% =77H94,100,0008 T ( — T — /N F :
4,100,000 TTEERBEREE - AERK
EHEZINATEERER BEXKE
RAER B RS ZR KM BT
JE o Bhil - ZERMBRECERE -

R LALASN - B 5 R B b EUGRIBE A E At
BRI Y BEFDREEE °

K& BBz &N EERR & LS HBE
WHKIRZ AAME © R EXFIREI  KRE
B30 S5 B (AT R an (A

18. BAREBEFARBZEHEE

2017 2016

—E—+tHF —F—RF

HKS$’000 HKS’000

FET FHT

Investment funds at fair value-unlisted KEEEARBE-FELT 2,744 1,651

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS AND CERTIFICATE
OF DEPOSIT

As at 31 December 2017, bank deposits
of HK$37,000,000 (2016: HK$37,000,000)
denominated in HKS were pledged as collateral for
the Group’s banking facilities (Note 23).

Softpower International Limited &EHEIBEEAERAF

19. BEERRTERREFRE

RZZT—+tF+=A=+—H 37,000,000 7T
(ZZ—7<% : 37,000,000 70 ) A TTEHE 28R
THERE TURER ERARKBRITEERE
R (FIEE23) o



19.

20.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS AND CERTIFICATE
OF DEPOSIT (Continued)

The effective interest rate on pledged bank
deposits was 0.97% (2016: 0.78%) per annum and
these deposits are matured within 11 to 158 days
(2016: 44 to 158 days).

As at 31 December 2017, certificate of deposit
of HKS10,000,000 was denominated in HKS and
was pledged as collateral for the Group’s banking
facilities (Note 23). The effective interest rate
on the pledged certificate of deposit is 1.0% per
annum.

CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Cash and bank balances

Maximum exposure to credit risk

The carrying amounts of the Group and
the Company’s cash and bank balances are
denominated in the following currencies:

HKS BT
RMB AR
usD ET
Others Efh

e MIRTTRER

HAAXNEREEERR

fr e MEmRMEE

19. EEARTERRERE

EEBRITERCERANERAFL0.97% (=&
—NEF 1 0.78%) © WEFRZIHBHEANF11X
F158K(ZF—/RF : 44KF158K) °

RZZE—+F+=-HA=+—H 10,000,000/ T

BT BEZTERED TR - (EAEREE
RITEERE 2 BR(HE23) - BHEBERE
ZEBFEEFEL10% -
20. BEeRBITER
2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
HK$’000 HKS$’000
TET F5TT
146,571 149,374
146,247 149,161

AEBRARRZBRE RIRTTEBRZREA SR
AT EMEHE -

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET THET
122,664 129,977
8,015 8,490
12,663 8,512
3,229 2,395
146,571 149,374
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20.

21.

CASH AND BANK BALANCES (continued)

The conversion of RMB denominated balances into
foreign currencies and the remittance of these
funds out of Mainland China is subject to the
exchange control restrictions imposed by the PRC
government.

SHARE CAPITAL

At 1 January and 31 December 2016 »

At 1 January and 31 December 2017 R-E—

(a)

(b)

Issued shares

The authorized share capital of the Company
was HK$500,000,000, comprising 25,000
million shares with a par value of HK$0.02 per
share. All issued shares are fully paid.

Share option scheme

The share option scheme approved by the
shareholders of the Company on 24 June
2004 (the “2004 Scheme”) has expired on 23
June 2014. Thereafter, no further options will
be granted under the 2004 Scheme but the
subsisting options granted thereunder prior
to the expiry date will continue to be valid
and exercisable in accordance with the terms
of the 2004 Scheme.

Softpower International Limited &EHEIBEEAERAF

20 iﬁ:%&ﬂ{:rmﬂl

HAARBHEZEHRHLBRINERBZEER

TELTEAM  BR
HIEARR ©

il

(b)

B BT B B 2 SN B

21. BRA
Number of
shares issued
CEITRAOEE
thousands HKS'000
T T
F—HA—HK
+—H 1,333,270 26,665
F—A—HK
+—H 1,333,270 26,665

ERTR®A

RN BNEE AN A500,000,0005 7T © E
A& E{EO. 02,%%571 £25,000,000,000% 48 f, °
FIEBBITRNECHE -

BRERTE

AABRRR - TTMFE A - +HAHR
B E( —TTOFFFE DER

—mERNAZ+T=HEm - 1t - %
E: ﬁETJ%‘E_fEHP_TIE Jriﬂﬁ&tﬂﬁ%ﬂxﬁ% (]

& B B RIAR IR — M F 5 8HE IR
7 BB AR A S ﬁxﬁll—f‘?ﬂ@
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21. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

(b)

Share option scheme (Continued)

At the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 21 May 2015, the
shareholders of the Company approved the
adoption of a new share option scheme (the
“2015 Scheme”) under which the directors
of the Company may grant options to eligible
persons to subscribe for the Company’s
shares subject to the terms and conditions
as stipulated therein. Unless otherwise
cancelled or amended, the 2015 Scheme will
remain valid for a period of 10 years from the
date of its adoption.

No share option under the 2015 Scheme
was granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed,
during the current year nor outstanding as at
31 December 2017.

fr e MEmRMEE

21. BRA& @)

(b)

B R RE T 8 (40)

RZB—RAFRAA=-+—HABTZEARHA
IRERBFERE E - NQB LRI AERAFT
Bt al (I —F—aFat3l ) - |\t -
RRABEZAAEERATROBRE -
ARBARRBRD - EBAX —F—RF5T
IR TE 2 R BNRFFTIIR © BR R TTBUR
HAERTSN - —T—RFFFEKEERMB
IR T HRERSE® -

RAFEHEBRECABRERE-F
—hESIERE 1T - TR
TEBERER_FT—tFt+t_-_A=1+—H
R ARETTIE o
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21. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

(b)

Softpower International Limited

Share option scheme (Continued)

The Company was authorised to grant
share options under the 2015 Scheme for
subscription of up to a total of 133,327,000
shares, representing 10% of the issued share
capital of the Company as at the date of
adoption. The directors of the Company are
authorised at their absolute discretion, to
invite any eligible participants as defined in
the Scheme, to take up options to subscribe
for shares in the Company. The subscription
price will be determined by the Board, but
shall be at least the highest of (a) the closing
price of shares as stated in the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on
the date on which the relevant options
are deemed to be granted and accepted in
accordance with the terms of the Scheme
(“the Commencement Date”), which
must be a day on which the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange is open for the business of
dealing in securities (“Trading Day”); (b) the
average closing price of the shares as stated
in the Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s daily
quotation sheet for the five Trading Days
immediately preceding the Commencement
Date; and (c) the nominal value of the
shares. A consideration of HKS10 is payable
on acceptance of the grant of option. The
maximum number of shares in respect of
which options may be granted under the 2015
Scheme may not exceed 10% of the issued
share capital of the Company as at the date
of adoption of the 2015 Scheme. The number
of shares may be refreshed by the approval
of the shareholders and the refreshed limit of
the number of shares must not exceed 10%
of the issued share capital of the Company as
at the date of the approval of the refreshed
limit.

BHERERAE

21. BRA& )

(b)

R R RE T 8 (D)

RAGERERE T —AF12REE
REHE AR BB B % & $£133,327,0000% A% 15 -
HRERA B AR RIEBETIRA 210% ©
BREANIESEENEBRFTMANEER
2HE(TERBRESE)EMTRER
RO ERE  RBESHESSE
E o ERESIER (a) B 1A A B8 A
RAERERETSGRIE L REMNER
(AR B (EAE BRI EERE
BEXBzARRSH ) ) EEBHIFME
BMERMHFIKTE : (b) RIDNREEF
MABAEEA AR S BERBHIME
BRERMB 2 FHRME : K& (c)RIDE
BE=ERz&SE BEHARID2SMHER
WERE - AR AZBE 10T 2 RIE - BB
“E-RFHERD CBEBRES R 2 RD
EaHE  TEERBEEMN_—ZT—AFTE
EBARREBITRAZ10% - R1HDEHE
ATERRERALEE R - EEEH 2 RHEE
ERTSEBIEE R LR 2 HEARQF]
BEITIRAZ10% °
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21. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

(b)

Share option scheme (Continued)

As a result of the share consolidation become
effective, the exercise price and the number
of consolidated shares to be issued upon the
exercise of the outstanding options granted
under the 2004 Scheme have been adjusted
in accordance with the terms of the 2004
Scheme and Rule 17.03(13) of the Listing
Rules.

Movements in the number of share options
outstanding during the year are as follows:

Exercise
Price
Date of grant Date of maturity HKS
16E
REAH )= B
3 December 2009 2 December 2019
ZEENETZAZH ZE-NE+ZAZH 0.71
5May 2010 4 May 2020
“E-TFRARA  —Z-EFRAMA 083

Total 248

Out of 19,300,000 (2016: 19,300,000)
outstanding share options, 17,860,000 (2016:
17,140,000) share options were exercisable.

fr e MEmRMEE

21. BRA& @)

(b)

B R RE T 8 (40)

R EHERE  BRERARBRZEE
PUFET I BB M ARTTERNBARERNTTE
BERRITERETFETZAHRHEE
H_TETOFHEIMGER R ETAERE
17.03(13) {REH LA A% ©

FA - WATTEBERERE 2EFHT -

Granted
31 December and 31 December
2016  accepted  Exercised Lapsed 2017
ZZ-XF EBRH ZE-tE
+TZA=+t-A  UEH ETFE  BX®  TZA=t-H
18,300,000 = = = 18,300,000
1,000,000 = = = 1,000,000
19,300,000 = = = 19,300,000

#219,300,000/% ( == — 7~ : 19,300,000)
RERG#EH 17,860,000 (Z T —/KF
17,140,000) i AR 1 T{E ©
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21. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

(b)

Softpower International Limited

Share option scheme (Continued)

The estimated fair value of share options
granted is based on the Binomial model.
The significant inputs into the models are as
follows:

Date of grant & B
Exercise price I E
Expected volatility TEER & 1R
Option life A A F B
Annual risk free interest rate FIE ARk A
Dividend yield AR

Fair value AREE

The expected volatility measured at the
standard deviation is based on the historical
data of the weekly share price movement of
comparable companies of the Company.

(i) On 3 December 2009, 59,200,000 share
options were offered to and accepted
by Directors and employees, with an
exercise price of HK$0.71 and an option
period of 10 years commencing from
3 December 2009 and expiring on 2
December 2019 (both days inclusive).
The options granted to the grantees are
vested in stages and be exercised in the
following manner:

Maximum

percentage of the options exercisable

21. BRA& )

(b)

=

R R RE T 8 (D)

ERHBERENGTALEEREZIERX
MEEXHE HAZEANEZZ28W
T

5 May 2010 3 December 2009
—2-2% —BENE
HEAAA +=HA=H
HK$0.83 HKS$0.71
55% 54%

10 years 10 years

10 10

2.86% 2.16%
3.10% 3.58%

HK$0.26-HK$0.38 HK$0.21-HK$0.31
REEGFEBZAEKENERARRZ
A A R BHA R B 16 2 8 HO I 2 BUE -

i) RZZTEENLF+-A=ZH K&
EmMEZEERREEBHITE EE R
59,200,00010 &1 - ZEERE L
TFEEA0.71 BT MEBRIERR A1
F BH_ZEZNFT-_A=BRAKBZE
—E-AFF+-AZHIH(BREE
BRE) BFEAZANBRELS
FEERERE - WIRIA T A RITE -

Period for exercise of the relevant
percentage of the options

ATEZEBRERSEIL THEAREBERES 2L 2 MR
20% 3/6/2010 — 2/12/2019
20% 3/6/2011 - 2/12/2019
20% 3/6/2012 - 2/12/2019
20% 3/6/2013 — 2/12/2019
20% 3/6/2014 - 2/12/2019

BHERERAE
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fr e MEmRMEE

21. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued) 21, BRA®)
(b) Share option scheme (Continued) (b) HERRFERTEI(E)

(i) On 5 May 2010, 1,600,000 share (i) RZZE—ZFHRARA AEEMRE
options were offered to and accepted ENEEEZEHWEEEH 1,600,000
by a Director and an employee, with MiERE ZEEREZTEER
an exercise price of HK$0.83 and an 0.83 B MEREHRRATF B
option period of 10 years commencing T—EFRAARBRBRE_S _ZTF
from 5 May 2010 and expiring on 4 May AANBIE(EEEEMA) - &F
2020 (both days inclusive). The options AR ANEBRESHSEREREE - iR
granted to the grantees are vested in AR A =ATE -
stages and be exercised in the following
manner:

Maximum Period for exercise of the relevant
percentage of the options exercisable percentage of the options
ATEZERESSE DL TEEBRERER 2L 2R
20% 5/11/2010-4/5/2020
20% 5/11/2011-4/5/2020
20% 5/11/2012 - 4/5/2020
20% 5/11/2013 - 4/5/2020
20% 5/11/2014 - 4/5/2020

(iii) Vesting of certain options granted (i) RTETEEZE TERERZI &

to certain employees are subject to MEZEALNEBTE@ES -

achievement of profit target.
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22. RESERVES 22. f#fE
Share
Capital Merger hased
Share reserve reserve Statutory Other Exchange payment Retained
premium (notefj) (noteij) reserve reserve reserve reserve eamnings Total
WRtA
ErgRE SRR L) &
RORE ) () iRRE ReRE EXRE  ARER Al 2]
HKS000 HKS000 HKS 000 HKS000 HKS 000 HKS000 HKS 000 HKS000 HKS'000
TR TEL TETL TEL TEL ThL TR S ThL
At lanuary 2016 R-E-RE-F-B 16618 Ui 370 U 17 0 566 %6 35846l
Proft for the year KEERH - = = - - - - 50572 5057
Curtency tranclation differences ~ S%HEZE = = = - - 404 - - 10
Share based payment IRHEERIH = = = = = - 8 - 8
Actuarial gain on post-employment - BEER 4 ER| BV EE
benefitobligation, net of tax W& Ak = - - - il - - - il
Transfer upon lapse ofshare RERERIER
options - - - - - = (152) 152 -
At 31 December 2016 and NF-~EFT2R
Llanuary 2017 =+-Bk
s 31 115 3700 U 2 1107 5197 2850 d09gl
Proft for the year RERRH = - - - - - - 495 95
Curtency translation differences ~ EHHEZE = = = = - (4 - - 4
Share based payment IR EERAM = = = = - - ) - %
Actuarial gain on postemployment R EEHERARE
benefitobligations, netoftax A& MBHER = = - - 95 - - - B
Changes in ownership interestsin -~ TEHUx A 125/1E6)
subsidiaries without changes FhRERES
of control = = = = = = = (165) (165)
At 31 December 2017 R-E-t5+2R
=t-A 126,618 3115 3700 U 1,205 1,103 525 313360 4853171
Notes: Kiat -
(i) The capital reserve of the Group mainly represents (i) AEEZEARBEETEER —NANERE—MH

(ii)

Softpower International Limited

contribution from the shareholders in connection
with the acquisition of the remaining interests in a
subsidiary in 1999.

The merger reserve of the Group arising from
the Group reorganisation is determined by the
difference between the nominal value of shares of
the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the Group
reorganisation and the nominal value of the
Company’s shares deemed to have been issued.

BHERERAE

(ii)

MBAR B TREEBRBEBNER -

rEBRASBEAMEL 2 A OHHE - HIREE
EABAZHBRARRNEEERESEHTZA
RAPRMEERE R ZRETE
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fn e MG mRMEE

23. BORROWINGS 23. f&E§
2017 2016
—E—+F T RF
HKS$’000 HKS’000
FET FHT
Current Nk

Trust receipt loans, secured FEBERWEER
(note (i) (H1EZ (i) 51,865 59,637
Trust receipt loans, unsecured IR TEWIEE R 18,612 14,354
70,477 73,991

Notes:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

The carrying amounts of the trust receipt loans
approximate their fair values. As at 31 December
2017, the banking facilities were secured by corporate
guarantees, bank deposits of HK$37,000,000
(2016: HKS$S37,000,000) and certificate of deposit of
HK$10,000,000 (2016: HK$10,000,000).

The borrowings are denominated in the following
currencies:

HKS BT

The effective interest rates (per annum) of bank
borrowings at the financial reporting date are as
follows:

EFEBIRE R

Trust receipt loans

Bt :

() EHEUEBEERZEESSHENAFEALEREE B
—E—+F+-A=1+—8  FRITMEHRRAE
1R~ $R1T1F R 4937,000,0008 T (ZE—/NF :
37,000,000/ 7T ) & 17 5/ 7 710,000,000/ 7L (=&
—7N4F © 10,000,00078 7T ) EH I o

(i) EEATNEESE :

2017 2016
et e
HK$’000 HKS$’000
T THR
70,477 73,991

(i) RPBHRER  RITBEZBEBEFMNRMOT :

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
% %

3.12 2.74
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24,

DEFERRED TAXATION

R+ =

Deferred tax liabilities to be settled
after 12 months

Deferred tax is calculated in full on temporary
differences under the liability method using tax
rates of the relevant subsidiaries applicable to the
period when the asset is expected to be realised or
the liability to be settled, based on tax rates that
have been substantively enacted by the financial
reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when
the deferred tax assets and liabilities relate to
income tax levied by the same taxation authority

it’t_ﬁléi,%ﬁ

EAEBIIE
2017 2016
S .
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHT
E2IE
(436) (181)

EXEF BB AEENERNEARENEE
""""" SRYBEEE ZHRMER 2R R (NP BHR
SHERMREL RN ) IF2 RS

S8

EREEENAKAMNIAEERNARIAR
B MEEREEENMRERABBS R
Fl— RS HEEUW - —KERRA TjZTHEI’J
ERM AR BHRBAFREE - BIAHE
ERAEERECEH AR EEMREH -

on either the taxable entity or different taxable
entities where there is an intention to settle the
balances on a net basis.

The net movement on the deferred tax account is EETIERE < S8FEBLT -
as follows:

2017 2016
—E—+tHF A2
HKS’000 HKS’000
FHET FAET
At 1 January Kn—H—H (181) (137)
Charged to income statement (Note 10) FEWz= R HIE (H7F10) (71) (26)
Charged to equity ez bR (184) (18)
At 31 December R+—-—A=+—H (436) (181)
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fr e MEmRMEE

24. DEFERRED TAXATION (continued)

The movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities
during the year, without taking into consideration

24, EEHIE =)

the offsetting of balances within the same tax

jurisdiction, is as follows:

Deferred tax assets

At 1 January 2016
Charged to income statement

At 31 December 2016
Charged to income statement

At 31 December 2017

Deferred tax liabilities

At 1 January 2016
Charged to income statement
Charged to equity

At 31 December 2016 and
1January 2017

Credited to income statement

Charged to equity

At 31 December 2017

EEHREERABENFAZEE R RRE
R AEIEZ SRR T

BEHEEE
Tax losses
HEEE
HKS$’000
FHET
RN_E—"F—H—H 182
R PR (2)
RN—_E—XRF+-_A=+—H 180
Tz 2= R 0B (140)
RZF—+tF+=—HA=+—H 40
ELEBEBEEE

Remeasurement

gain of post-

employment

Accelerated tax benefit
depreciation obligations Total

BRAERNEE
MEBBTE HETEKR am
HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
T THT THT
Rn-ZE—"E—H—H (283) (36) (319)
T EERP MR (24) = (24)
TR = (18) (18)

RZE—R"F+-A=+—HK

—T—+F-H—H (307) (54) (361)
W EERPETA 69 - 69
TR - (184) (184)
R-E—tF+-A=+—H (238) (238) (476)
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24,

25.

DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for
tax losses carried forward to the extent that the
realisation of the related tax benefit through
the future taxable profits is probable. The
Group did not recognise deferred income tax
assets of HK$2,345,000 (2016: HKS4,570,000)
in respect of accumulated tax losses amounting
to HK$10,275,000 (2016: HK$24,688,000) as at
31 December 2017, that can be carried forward
against future taxable income. As at 31 December
2017, the accumulated tax losses amounting to
HK$5,449,000 (2016: HK$4,559,000) will be expired
in five years. There is no expiry period for the other
tax losses.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade payables
Accrued expenses and other payables

(note) (H1az)

Notes:

Included in other payables of the Group was a provision for
a customer claim of HKS$3,694,000 (2016: HK$3,694,000)
made for a project in Hong Kong in prior years. During
the year, management reassessed the circumstances and
considered that the amount of provision made as at 31
December 2017 remains adequate but not excessive.

Softpower International Limited &EHEIBEEAERAF

B 5 RENEIR
TBIEE M M AR T 3R

4, EEFIE ()

BEMEHIBEEEDEERBRE N =S
BARERF aMNERMMRTAEE 2 HIEES
BELHRR AEETAR T —+F+=
A=+ —BA&EUEERRERT KA
Z R HIEEE10,275,0008 0 ( —F— X
T : 24,688,000 0 ) iERELEFERIEEE
2,345,000/ 7L (—ZF— /<4 : 4,570,000/87T) °
R-EBE—+F+-_A=+—H  ZE2:HE
[E5187£5,449,000/8 7T ( —Z — /<4 : 4,559,00075
J0) R AFREE - EMRIBEEYEER
/H\HFEﬁ °

25. BEEZRHEMENRE

2017 2016

S .
HK$’000 HK$’000
FH THT
39,493 37,982
42,943 42,564
82,436 80,546

Mzt

BREEASENEMAEART  RBEFE - A%£E
—IEREBHMIAE EL 3,694,000 L (= — /N F -
3,694,000 T )N EFHERE - NAFEAR - B
BEHTERARRAZBHER-_Z—tF+=A
=+—BIHRHANTBE -



25. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued)

The ageing analysis of the Group’s trade payables,

based on the invoice date, is as follows:

Within 30 days
31 to 60 days
61 to 90 days
Over 90 days

30K AR
31 KE60K
61K E 90K
B BI0K

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and
other payables are denominated in the following

currencies:

HKS
usD
RMB
Others

BIT
XTT
ARE
Hity

25.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fn e MG mRMEE

EZREMESTES

AEEE S RNFRAENRKZER A B0

™
2017 2016
—EB—+tfF —E—REF
HK$’000 HKS$’'000
TET FA57T
33,706 34,456
4,230 2,256
1,477 1,256
80 14
39,493 37,982

REB 2 E S M EMEMNRIRZRE S BRIRIA

TE®HE :
2017 2016
—EB—+tfF —E—REF
HK$’000 HKS$’000
TERT F5TT
45,377 42,559
29,852 27,681
1,251 7,133
5,956 3,173
82,436 80,546
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26. COMMITMENTS

(a)

(b)

Softpower International Limited

Capital commitments

Capital expenditure contracted for at the end
of the year but not yet incurred is as follows:

Capital expenditure in respect of
the acquisition of motor vehicles
contracted for but not provided in
the consolidated financial statements

Operating lease commitments

Land and buildings
Not later than one year
Later than one year and not later
than five years
Later than five years

Equipment and motor vehicles
Not later than one year
Later than one year and not later
than five years

The lease terms are between one and ten
years, and the majority of lease agreements

26. IR
(a) BEAEIE

RERERITRREDNAREENE AR

Ul
2017 2016
—E—+tHF —E—REF
HK$’000 HKS$’000
FET FHET
MEBEREFAER
A BTE R ARG
&R
1,240 1,261
(b) REHERIE
2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RE
HK$’000 HKS$’000
FET FET
T REF
THBE—F 28,426 17,967
BB —FENBER
HF 92,453 72,534
HBilAF 90,391 107,932
o 198433
RENAE
THB—F 631 510
HBiE—FETEB
Faks 1,190 361
____________ 820 87
213,091 199,304

are renewable at the end of the lease period

at market rate.

BHERERAE

HEMNF—Z+F  T2ENHESORN
MEHEmEIEHEELD -



27.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT

OF CASH FLOWS

Cash flows from operations

Profit before income tax
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment
Gain on disposal of property, plant
and equipment, net (note)
Interest income
Interest expense
Provision for impairment of loan to a
third party
Provision for impairment of trade and
other receivables,net
Provision for impairment of
inventories, net
Fair value (gain)/loss on financial
sassets at fair value through profit
or loss
Dividend income from financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss
Share based payment
Exchange difference
Changes in working capital:
(Increase)/decrease in inventories
Increase in trade and other
receivables
Increase in financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss
Increase in trade and other payables

Net cash generated from operations

27. FEREREBRMT

REXBHBEZRERE

758 B A

LT PIEH AR -
ME -~ BB NEREH
e

HEME - BERREZ

Wt FEE (H7eL)
ASE PN

MEXH
ERT—RE=ZW
TR E R

B 5 R EA R EURE
B
FRBEREFE

BofBEFARRZZ
TREENLAAEE

(Y3) /518
BARBEHABRZ S
WAEBEMA
AR IR 38
i ¥ 218
WEESE

FEGEm),md
B 5 R E A EAFIE N

RO BESABRRLE

BEEE M
B 5 N EL AR IR 0

REXGRRE R

fr e MEmRMEE

2017 2016
—Z2—tF —BREF
HK$’000 HKS$’'000
TET FA57T
84,174 57,860
3,408 2,697
(125) (96)
(10,359) (5,239)
2,219 1,876
— 4,100

198 1,055
2,540 1,919
(69) 23
(78) (113)

55 83
(1,436) 740
(47,442) 2,756
(30,266) (16,864)
(1,018) —
2,145 13,741
3,946 64,538
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27. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 27. ZE8HEREXRM T @
OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

Cash flows from operations (Continued)

REXEBHBEZRERE (W)

Note: Hiat
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment LEME - WEKEE 2B HRIEEE
comprises:
2017 2016
—E—+F —EREF
HKS$’000 HKS'000
FE T FAT
Net book amount BREFE - 10
Gain on disposal &2 e 125 96
Proceeds from disposal &S FTSR0R 125 106
Represented by: K&
Cash Re 125 106
The reconciliation of liabilities arising from TRUEBEENBBENEROT ¢
financing activities is as follows:
HKS’000
AT
As at 1 January 2016 R-E—RF—H—H (71,879)
Cash flows REmE (2,112)
As at 1 January 2017 RZZE—+F—H—H (73,991)
Cash flows Behs 3,514
As at 31 December 2017 RZE—tF+=—A=+—H (70,477)

Softpower International Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fr e MEmRMEE

28. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a) Key management compensation

Salaries and other short term
employee benefits
Pension costs
— defined contribution plans
Share based payment

(b) Rental payment to a related party

Rental paid to a related company
(note)

Note:

28. BEALIRS

(a) ETEEE ASHRMN

2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
HK$’000 HKS’000
FHT FHETT

HFehEMEEHES
=l 22,321 20,853

RIRE A
— ERRHETE 126 126
VARRAD B E /e 2 1~k 55 83
22,502 21,062
(b) MEBAEATIXZNNES

2017 2016
—E—+tHF —F—RF
HK$’000 HKS’000
FHET FHETT

TS =
NG =) 164 163

wisz -

The Group paid rental of a car and a car licence to a
company controlled by Mr. Lai Guanglin, an executive
director and Chairman of the Company, for a fixed
sum of RMB12,000 (equal to HK$13,700) per month
as agreed by both parties. This is also a connected
transaction which is exempted under the Listing Rules
14A.76.

REERBEFHLERAEER —MHAARQANT
BEFTJF Lai Guanglin B EIZFIN AR XN B E
HHERNE A EFEEA12,000 A RE (F5213,700
BIT) o LR B INAIRE ETIEFI14A. 76 1M E R
HEITHEERS -
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28. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(c)

(d)

Softpower International Limited

Services income from a related party

Services income from a related
company (note)

Note:

The Group provided corporate administrative services
to a company controlled by Mr. Lai Guanglin, an
executive director and Chairman of the Company, for
a fixed sum of HKS$8,000 per month as agreed by both
parties and the agreement was terminated on 31
December 2016. This is also a connected transaction
which is exempted under the Listing Rules 14A.76.

Consultancy fee to a related party

Consultancy fee paid to a related party
(note)

Note:

During the year, the Group paid consultancy fee
to Ms. Yang Li, the former independent non-
executive director of the Company who resigned on
1 September 2016, for a fixed sum of HK$41,700 per
month as agreed by both parties. This is a connected
transaction which is exempted under Rule 14A.76 of
the Listing Rules.

BHERERAE

28. MEATRZ %)

(c)

B8 N A RIS A
(Kfat)

(d)

XATEER & T —fL
BEAL(HaE)

FIBDEA + KB BRAS A
2017 2016
S —B-AE
HK$’000 HK$’000
TR T
— 64
Btz -

AEERRHARITERER —HBEEARATHNT
B EF T JF Lai Guanglin o E1EHIAY A RIULER B &
F e RS AETEEFAS0005TT  WAEHBERZ
T-—RNFE+A=+—HEIL - KX H T AERIE
ETEGI14A. 7618 MEA EHEITHRIER S ©

FEEA T AR
2017 2016
S .
HK$’000 HKS'000
FHT T#T
500 167
Btz -

REA - AEEMABLIERTESGR L (H
RZZE—ARFNA—BEM)ITHEFHENS
REE41,7008 TR E o It XX 5 ARE EMmEA
14A.76{KMIES R HBER S °



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

28. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(e)

Loan to a related company

On 1 August 2016, the Group advanced
a loan of US$10,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$77,746,000) to China Victory International
Holdings Limited (“CVIL”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Agria Corporation, for a term of
3 years.

The loan carried interest at 10.5% per annum
and is repayable by 31 July 2019. The loan
is secured by the entire issued shares of
CVIL executed by Agria Group Limited, the
immediate holding company of CVIL, and also
guaranteed by a deed of corporate guarantee
executed by Agria Corporation in favour of
the Group. Mr Lai Guanglin, a director and
ultimate controlling party of the Company,
is also the controlling shareholder of Agria
Corporation.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the
interest income from CVIL amounted to
approximately USS$S1,050,000 (equivalent to
HKS$8,206,000) (2016: US$440,000 (equivalent
to HKS3,419,000)).

As at 31 December 2017, the loan to CVIL
amounted to US$10,000,000 (equivalent
to HK$78,357,000) (31 December
2016: USS10,000,000 (equivalent to
HKS77,746,000)). Also see Note 32.

fr e MEmRMEE

28. BMEATRZ®)

(e)

EXT-—HBEAF

RZZE—AR"ENA—H ' AEBERFER
REBABR AR ([cviL]) (Agria Corporation
N—HE2EMBAR)BNHRIFHNER
10,000,000 7T (FH7277,746,00078 7T ) ©

ZEFUFBE105%:H8 WHER-Z
—NELtA=+T—HZAMEE - ZEXKH
CVIL K E ¥ 15 f% 2 5] Agria Group Limited
TECVILH 2 HE FITROEERE
Agria Corporation #1T ¥ 2N &£ B {E A A) &
REEL) o RRFIZESZFRFZES A Lai
Guanglin 554 + 71/ Agria Corporation /%
BRER o

HE-_E—+E+=-A=+—HILtEE -
e CcVILATIE M F B A %) 51,050,0003
TT (1855 128,206,000/8 70 ) (T — N4 -
440,000 7T (#855543,419,00087T) ) °

R-_ZE—+F+-_A=+—H  EFcvlL
HE 4% /410,000,000 T (HHER
78,357,000 T( —ZE—"F+=_A=+—
H : 10,000,000 jt (1855 7277,746,00075
TC)) c B2 EIMEE32
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29. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND

RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Investments in subsidiaries

Current assets

Prepayments and other receivables
Amounts due from subsidiaries
Cash and bank balances

Total assets

EQUITY
Equity holders
Share capital
Reserves

Total equity

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities

Other payables

Taxation payable

Amounts due to subsidiaries
Total liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

The statement of financial position of the Company

Note
BRE

%5

EREBEE

W BERRE
KBARRE

hBEE

TEHM&EMF%%Z IR
JRE Wt B
fﬁﬁ&ﬁﬂﬁ%ﬁ%

mEE
R
BmfEA

TN

ﬁﬁ (i)
s

a8fE
RBAE

HAb IR
e TR IR

FEAS BB X R RRIR
mEE
mERKkAE
RBEEFHE
REERABRE

29. ARARMBMRRERFREED

As at 31 December

R+=RA=+-—

2017 2016
—E—+tF —T—R

HK$000 HKS'000
FEx TAT
109 128
90,406 90,351
_________ 90,515 ......30479
882 1,030
60,699 41,515
2,521 3,584
_________ S
154,617 136,608
26,665 26,665
107,609 90,877
134,274 117,542
4,621 3,503
159 5
15,563 15,563
20,343 19,066
154,617 136,608
43,759 27,063
134,274 117,542
ARBENMBRRNEEHESTER = *Ai

was approved by the board of Directors on 29
March 2018 and was signed on its behalf:

Lai Guanglin
Director 2%

Softpower International Limited &EHEIBEEAERAF

Yu Ben Ansheng 81 &4
Director 2%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

29. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

(Continued)

Notes:

(i)

Reserve movement of the Company

At 1 January 2016 RZE—R"F—f—H
Profit for the year AEERF

Share based payment PABR (7 BERE R 30
Transfer upon lapse of share options 7R 5 122 Sk e ¢

At 31 December 2016 and RZZ—~E+=A=+—H
1 January 2017 k= —t&—-HF—H
Profit for the year AEZRF

AR REREANR

Share based payment

At 31 December 2017

Note:

The contributed surplus of the Company represents
the difference between the nominal value of the
shares issued by the Company in exchange for all the
issued ordinary shares of World Trade Bun Kee (BVI)
Ltd. and the value of net assets of the underlying
subsidiaries acquired by the Company in 2000. Under
the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended),
the contributed surplus is distributable to the
shareholders, subject to a solvency test. At the Group
level, the contributed surplus is reclassified into its
component of reserves of the underlying subsidiaries.

R=E-tF+=A=+-H

fn e MG mRMEE

29. ARAFMBRARRBEERE @)

Hisz -
() ARAFEEZE
Contributed Share based
Share surplus payment  Accumulated
premium (note) reserve deficits Total
R 5
PN HEH
RADEE (Hiit) DEA:1] RitER Eek ]
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
FHT TET TET FET FET
126,618 86,759 5,266 (140,603) 78,040
12,754 12,754
— = 83 - 83
- - (152) 152 -
126,618 86,759 5,197 (127,697) 90,877
16,677 16,677
- - 55 - 55
126,618 86,759 5,252 (111,020) 107,609
Mt

RNFZ AR THIE RN A B ARE World Trade
Bun Kee (BVI) Ltd. 2 &2 31T & @AM 21T 2 MR (D
HEERARGMEEEENBARR _ZETZTF
ZEEFEMER EE BREARE—NN\—
FERAVEEIERT) BABBERSEBENE
BEB AR ZIERAT A2 IR TR o 4
EEZERBE L BARBEFTOELEEBENBA
A2 EEEKE D -
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30. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

30. EENANBNER (REEE (R ARG (F

(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION
383 OF THE HONG KONG COMPANIES
ORDINANCE (CAP. 622), COMPANIES
(DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION ABOUT
BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION
(CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING RULES)

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments
The remuneration of each director and

the chief executive for the year ended 31
December 2016 and 2017 is set out below:

6225 ) E33 R R (DB (MEESNEEHR)
RO (F6226 ) RERB(LMRA)WRTE
e B %)

(a) EERTHRAZME

BESEMTHASRBE_T - Fh=
E—tF+t - A=T—"HIFENHSH
plan

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BECS-tEtoAZt-ALER

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person's services as a director, whether of the Company or s subsidiary undertaking

fFRES(FERADTAENELTLR RERRARYNEE

Emoluments

paid or

receivable in

respect of

director's other

sevicein

connection

Remunerations with the

paidor ~ management

Estimated Employer's receivablein  of the affars of

moneyvalueof  contributions respectof  the Company

Discretionary Housing otherbenefits  toaretirement  acceptingoffice  orits subsidiary
Fees Salary honuses allowance (note i) benefit scheme as director undertaking Total

HEBALT

FEKRLA

FRGEE  LENER

EEERN BB ES-BW RAAMES

(EWEE  BAGEz  xHEERY  BEARAD
Name of Director £ e £ it BERE (W) {3 He  EhwHe 2
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS000
T TEm Thn T TEm Thn T Thn Thn
Lai Guanglin Lai Guanglin = 3,495 9 = 2719 = = = 6,588
YuBen Ansheng rote ) S E () - 2460 37 - 0 18 - - 305
L Fuin it = 1672 897 = 140 1 - - 2
U ean Seng 2EH 20 - - - - - - - 0
WongYee Shuen, Wison  E4AE 0 - - - - - - - 20
Chen Wei Wen REX 150 - - - - - - - 150
Guan Zhigiang i 0 = = = = = = = 0
150 1601 1,628 - 3019 3 - - 13120

Softpower International Limited &EHEIBEEAERAF



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

30. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION
383 OF THE HONG KONG COMPANIES
ORDINANCE (CAP. 622), COMPANIES
(DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION ABOUT
BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION
(CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING RULES) (continued)

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments
(Continued)

fm e MBER R

30. EENANBNER (REEE(R ARG (F

622F ) E3BHER (LA (HEESNZER)
R (Fe26 E)REB(LETRRA) WRE
mEHBEE) @)

(a) EERTHARMES (&)

Forthe year ended 31 December 2016
BECT-ETCAST-ALER

Emoluments paid or receivablein respect ofa person s serices asa irector, whether of the Company or it subsidiary undertaking

fFREZ(TERALTIENRATL S RUBHA Bk e

Emoluments

paid or

receivable in

respect of

director's other

senvicein

connection

Remunerations with the

paidor ~ management

Estimated Employer's receivablein o the affairs of

moneyvalueof  contributions respectof  the Company

Discretionary Housing  otherbenefits  toaretirement  acceptingoffice ~ orits subsidiary
Fees Salary bonuses allowance (note i) bengfit scheme as director undertaking Total

HERAAT

HENEAT

GRMET  LE0EER

EbRENG  EXERR ESBW RAEMES

rEEE  RAGEZ  RIRM  BEARAD
Name of Director 7 g 2% BERL EEE (Wim) {1 MHE  BhoEe iz
HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS'000. HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000
Tin Tin Thn Tin T Thr T Thn Thr
Lai Guanglin Lai Guanglin - 3,364 283 - 2,684 - - - 6,331
YuBenAnshengfrote ) E%E(HZy) - 236 599 - 10 1 - - 30
L Ful R - 1604 5 - 140 18 - - 2457
U Kean Seng SEA 0 - - - - - - - 0
Wong Yee Shuen, Wison  ELfE 0 - - - - - - - 0
Chen Wei Wen REEX 150 - - - - - - - 150
ang Lifnote () ) 13 - - - - - - - 13
Guan Zhigang e i) 51 i) 67 - - - - - - - 61
750 133 151 = 2,964 3 = = 12,660

—Z—+&F3% Annual Report 2017
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30. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 30. EEMFRNER(BBEB(LTERHN(E

(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION
383 OF THE HONG KONG COMPANIES
ORDINANCE (CAP. 622), COMPANIES
(DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION ABOUT
BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION
(CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING RULES) (continued)

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments
(Continued)

Notes:

(i) Mr. Yu Ben Ansheng is the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company.

(i)  Ms. Yang Li resigned as independent non-
executive director of the Company on 1
September 2016.

(iii) Mr. Guan Zhigiang was appointed as
independent non-executive director of the
Company on 1 September 2016

(iv)  Other benefits include share option and other
allowance.

(b) Directors’ retirement benefits

None of the directors received or will receive
any retirement benefits during the year (2016:
Nil).

(c) Directors’ termination benefits

None of the directors received or will receive
any termination benefits during the year
(2016: Nil).

(d) Consideration provided to third parties for
making available directors’ services

During the year ended 31 December 2017,
the Company did not pay consideration to any
third parties for making available directors’
services (2016: Nil).

Softpower International Limited &EHEIBEEAERAF

622%F ) E3BHER (LA (HEESNZEHR)
RN (FEe26 E)REFB(LETRAR)WAE
mAEHBEE) @)

(a) EBRTHAHZME (&)

Kt -

() BREEERARRFNEERITE

(i) HFREZEIR_F—RFNLA-BBRELAF
BIYFHITES °

BAENR _ZE—RFNLA-RAEEZER

(i) EE
ARG ILIFITES o

(iv) EENSEERE MR -

(b) EBHERAKER
FA - MEEFEIMHEVCERKRER(Z
T—RNEF E)o

(c) EEMNKRILLEF
FR - BEESEINIEREEESR
BEM(ZTE—RF |) o

(d) HEHEBREMEE=FRHNHE

R-ZE—+EFE+_A=+—HEER ' &K
NAW R EERESRE M ZNE=T
HEEB(ZE—RF &) -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

30. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION
383 OF THE HONG KONG COMPANIES
ORDINANCE (CAP. 622), COMPANIES
(DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION ABOUT
BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION
(CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING RULES) (continued)

(e) Information about loans, quasi-loans
and other dealings in favour of directors,
controlled bodies corporate by and
connected entities with such directors

During the year ended 31 December 2017,
there is no loans, quasi-loans and other
dealing arrangements in favour of the
directors, or controlled bodies corporate by
and connected entities with such directors
(2016: Nil).

(f) Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements
and contracts in relation to the Company’s
business to which the Company was a party
and in which a director of the Company
had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or
at any time during the year (2016: Nil).

fn e MG mRMEE

30. EENANBNER (REEE(R ARG (F

622F ) E3BHER (LA (HEESNZER)
BRI (FEe26 E)REFB(LETAR)WAE
mEHBEE) @)

(e) BEE  ZZZESEZFNEATRBEZ
EENEETBRANENR EERNH

RZBE—+E+-_A=+—BFERN " #&
BUBEE  IRSEERHEEREE
BRATZAZER EEFSHMZH
(CT—REFE )

() EFEXZ  ZHIASEANEREDR

WEABARBEFMARHEREF —
TBARREFERER(TmEZKRERZ)
BEERER (RAFFEINFRER
BREDMNEARS  “HMEH(ZF—X
FE) -
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31.

32.

Softpower International Limited

ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY

As at 31 December 2017, the Directors of the
Company consider Singapore Zhongxin Investment
Company Limited (“Singapore Zhongxin”), a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands,
as being the ultimate holding company. Singapore
Zhongxin is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr.
Lai Guanglin, a director of the Company, who is
considered to be the ultimate controlling party.

EVENT AFTER BALANCE SHEET DATE

Pursuant to a resolution passed in a special general
meeting on 23 February 2018, the Group agreed to
novate and Agria Group Limited, a wholly owned
subsidiary of Agria Corporation and the immediate
holding company of CVIL, agreed to assume the
Group'’s loan to CVIL of US$10,000,000 (equivalent
to HK$78,357,000) (as detailed in Note 28(e))
with all other terms and conditions remained
unchanged.

BHERERAE

31.

32.

BRRERAF

RZFE—+tF+ZA=1+—8 ARRIEER
B ERBHEB RIS FMAAZ Singapore
Zhongxin Investment Company Limited ([ Singapore
Zhongxin | ) A 432/ A 7] © Singapore Zhongxin
HARAZEE Lai Guanglin L EEZENE =
B HWRBREIERA o

ARERMKRERE

BER-_Z—N\F_A-_+=ZHRITHKRE
BFRRE EBBMNARE  A5ERE Agria
Group Limited (Agria Corporation B2 & {18 A A
RCOVILMWEREZER AR AR ERAEER CVILAE
710,000,000 7T (185 5278,357,000% 7T ) (F1F
FAKIE28(e)) - HABBGRAUEFIRIFTE o
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33. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL 33. FEMELRER
SUBSIDIARIES
Percentage
Bat
Particulars of issued and fully paid Attributable Held by

Name Principal Activities share capital/registered capital to the Group subsidiaries
£ TEER BRIRMEREHMER rEEEE WEARRE
Incorporated and aperating in Hong Kong
EEBAUREE
Bun Kee (International) Limited Trading of construction materials, mainly 100 ordinary shares of HK$1 each and 100 100

pipes and fittings in Hong Kong 3,000,000 non-voting deferred

shares of HKS1 each

o (Bl ) BIR A A REBUSEEN(FEREERE 100RERAGEIETZ EBRE

ft) 8% 3,000,000k BREELE T2 ER
Hamerwind Logistic Company Limited  Provision of warehousing and logistic 800 ordinary shares of HK$100 each 100 100

services in Hong Kong
REMRERAT REBRERE KRR 800fk B IR EL008 T 2 LBk
Established and operating in Macao
ERPIAUREE
Bun Kee Building Material and Trading of construction materials, mainly ~ MOP50,000 100 100

Equipment (Macao) Co., Ltd. pipes and fittings in Macao

W RXEEERRT  RRPCSRENR(EZAEERE 50,0008

ft) 8%

—Z—+FFH Annual Report 2017
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Five-Year Financial Summary

AFEMBHRE

Results
Revenue

Profit before income tax
Income tax expense

Profit for the year
Attributable to:

Equity holders of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Assets and liabilities

Total assets
Total liabilities

Total equity

Softpower International Limited

S|
WA

AT R
HIBXH

AEEE
SR -

ARFEEREA
IRIERE

Bk B

BERRR

e~
iz
Bk

BHERERAE

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
“T-=fF —Z-NF —T-HF TR F CZE—+f
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TAT FET TAT T
504,143 553,845 611,534 619,203 650,461
20,258 26,091 39,585 57,860 84,174
(3,597) (4,362) (5,562) (7,297) (9,386)
16,661 21,729 34,023 50,563 74,788
16,661 21,729 34,023 50,572 74,945

= - - (9) (157)

16,661 21,729 34,023 50,563 74,788
491,950 505,577 531,414 598,173 671,953
(160,722) (154,500) (146,288) (161,905) (159,911)
331,228 351,077 385,126 436,268 512,042
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